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HIGHLIGHTS

Financial KPIs

Visitors
52 weeks 638m +1 3% (53 weeks 65 Im}

GRAPH REMOVED

Underlying EBITDA
52 weeks £433m +7 7% {53 weeks £45{m)

GRAPH REMOVED

Profit before tax
52 weeks £259m +9 2% (53 weeks £277m)

GRAPH REMOVED

Return on capital employed 1
52 weeks 9 6% (53 weeks |0 2%)

GRAPH REMOVED

Non-financial KPls

Revenue

52 weeks £1,428m +11 7% (53 weeks £1,457m)

Like for like growth +1 4%

GRAPH REMOVED

Underiyng operating profit [
52 weeks £302m +3 6% (53 weeks £320m)

GRAPH REMOVED

Basic EPS
52 weeks [95p +157% (53 weeks 208p)

GRAPH REMOVED

Adjusted EPS []
52 weeks 195p +9 3% (53 weeks 20 8p}

GRAPH REMOVED

2015 2016
Customer satisfaction [/] - Based en customer satisfaction surveys. Our target 1s a score over 90% 94% 94%
Staff engagement - Based on annual employee surveys (see page 44). Our target is a score over 80% 89% 89%
Health and safety /1 - The Medical Treatment Case {MTC) rate captures the rate of guest njuries requiring nia 0.06

external medical treatment relative to 10,000 guest visitabions The MTC rate is a new measure n 201 6.

How we report our results

This year we are reporting on the 53 weeks to 31 December 2014 Profit metnes are prowded on g 53 week statutory bosis i the finanaial statements To
provide a more direct comparison with fast year's 52 week period, the operating performance commentary 1s stated on g 52 week basts, unfess otherwse noted
More detorls on the penod under review {'52" and '53" week data) nnd the performance medsures used are set out in the Group Financial Review on page 42

Terms used throughout this document are defined in the Glossary on pages 172 to 173

Executve Directors’ remunerction 15 hinked to certan KPJs, as indicated by the following symbol ¥] More details an Director’s remuneration are set out in the
Drrectors’ Remuneration Report on pages 82 to 103
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MERLIN

at a glance

OUR COMPANY

Merlin Entertainments is Europe’s leading and the
world’s second-largest visitor attraction operator.

We are first and foremost an entertainment company. We aim to
deliver urique, safe and memorable experiences to rmillons of
VISEOrs across our growing estate - our passion ts putting smiles

on pecple’s faces! We believe that we achieve this objective
largely thanks to the cormmitment and passion of our teams and
the strength of our brands, which will never fall to be distinctive,
challenging and innavative Together they deliver some of the
best financial returns and growth in the sector In every respect
and to every group of stakeholders, Merlin will always be an
exciting company to be involved with,

OURVISION

Our vision is to become the worldwide leader in
branded, location based entertainment.

We operate in an attractive, dynamic, global marketplace,
Worldwide we see growth in lesure spending, an expansion 1iri
leisure time and an expansion of the middle classes in emerging
economies, We believe international tourism will cortinue to
grow, as will the market for short break vacations

OUR STRATEGY

Our strategy is to create a high growth, high return,
family entertainment company based on strong
brands and a global portfolio that is naturally
balanced against the impact of external factors.

Qur international footprint and varety of attraction types

means we are not dependent on any one rnarket, YWe operate
over Eurcpe, North Amenica and Asia Paafic, with a long term
ambition of an even split between these three areas. We have

a 60/40 balance of outdoor and indoor attractions, and with

two thirds of our visitors being domestic, are not reliant on fly-n'
markets, At an attraction level, visits are increasingly booked in
advance, also reduang volatiity,

See page 10 for cur global portfolio of attractions.

Merlin delivers two types of visitor experiences
that we manage across three Operating Groups.

+  Our Midway Attractions are predominantly indoor
attractions located n oty centres or resorts providing visits
of shorter duration, We have high qualtty, chainable brands
postioned across all key target demographics. Merlin 1s the
only company to successfully operate the Midway product
across multiple brands and sites.

+  Our Theme Parks are outdoor attracuions offering
accommaodation, rides, shows and interactive experences
around a central theme

+ LEGOLAND Parks are aimed at families with younger
children and have LEGO as the central theme. Merlin holds
the global, exclusive rights to the LEGOLAND brand.

+ Resort Theme Parks are national brands aimed at
families, teenagers and young adutts. They have high
brand and customer awareness in their local markets
and include the leading theme parks in the UK, kaly
and Northern Germany




MERLIN at a giance

Indoor attractions located in
City centres or resorts

MIDWAY GRAPH
REMOVED

104 ATTRACTIONS

21 COUNTRIES

IMAGE REMOVED 4 CONTINENTS

1-2 HOWUR EXPERIENCE

6 GLOBAL BRANDS

MIDWAY ATTRACTIONS

Outdoor attractions with ndes
and shows, complemented with
themed accommeodation

LEGOLAND GRAPH
PARKS REMOVED

7 ATTRACTIONS
6 COUNTRIES

IMAGE REMOVED 3 CONTINENTS
-3 DAY EXPERIENCE

LEGO THEMED ACCOMMODATION, RIDES,
SHOWS AND INTERACTIVE EXPERENCES

¢. 1,450 ROOMS

2 NEW PARKS IN JAPAN AND
SOUTH KOREA UNDER DEVELOPMINT

RESORT GRAPH
THEME REMOVED

PARKS

& ATTRACTIONS

THEME PARKS

UK GERMANY, ITALY
1-3 DAY EXPERIENCE

ACCOMMODATION, RIDES, SHOWS
AND INTERACTIVE EXPERIENCES
AROQUIND A CENTRAL THEME

IMAGE REMOVED

c. 1,600 ROOMS

Footnotes
' Based on 2016 revenue




MERLIN’S

Business model

OUR GROWTH DRIVERS

We have six highly complementary growth drivers
to deliver growth in our existing portfolio and as
we open new attractions all around the world.

« Growing the existing estate through planned
investment cycles - adding new ndes and features to our
attractions to drive customer satisfaction, increase capacity
and provide a compelling new proposition to guests. The
investment cycle 1s specfic to each attraction which receves
a ‘high'.'mechurm’ or low' investrent depending on s place
i the cycle These cycles smooth capital expenditure across
the portfolio, ensure investments are funded from operating
free cash flow, and enable attractions to plan effectively.

+ Exploiting strategic synergies - leveraging the scale of
the Group in key markets to explort ennhanced operational,
marketing and buying power, including the implementation
of e-commerce inivatives that provide commercial benefits
and improved ‘digital journeys’ for our guests.

See page |2 to learn more about developments in
the yeor ond progress on our 2020 miestones

* Transforming our theme parks into destination resorts -
developing our theme parks nto short break destinations
to extend the catchment area, create new revenue streams
and improve guest satisfaction. Key to this 1s on-site themed
accommaodation. Our 2020 milestone target 15 to add 2,000
rooms to our accommodation portfolio between 2016
and 2020,

* Rolling out new Midway attractions - opening new
Midway attractions under one of our chainable global
brands, with a focus on 'cluster’ locations where we can
derive operating cost, marketing and cross-selling advantages.
Our 2020 miestone target 1s to open 40 new Midways
between 2016 and 2020.

* New LEGOLAND park developments - which we operate
under three models (operated and owned, operated and
leased, under management contract) Ve combine our
operational expertise with the LEGO brand's worldwide
popularty. Our 2020 milestone target 1s to open four new
LEGCLAND parks between 2016 and 2020

= Strategic acquisitions - pursuing acquisition opportunities
that complernent our strategic objectives,

OUR UNIQUE RESOURCES

Supporting our Operating Groups are
two specialist teams.

Merlin Magic Making (MMM) is the unique
resource sitting at the heart of Merlin.

MMM supports all our attractions with specalists in four areas-
* site-search and business development
* creative design
» production across the whole pertfolio including animal
husbandry, wax figures and LEGO models
* project management of new sité construction and
major caprtal Investrents

MMM also pursues acquisition and Investment opportunities

See pages 20 to 23 to learn more about MMM

New Openings is a specialist team that has three
areas of focus.

* Developing new LEGOLAND parks - locating potential
new sites, negotiating contracts, managing the build
process before setting up operations, recruting teams,
then opening the attraction and operating it for 12 to 18
months post opening.

« Operning new Midway attractions - setting up operations,
recruting teams, then opening the attraction and
operating it for 12 to 18 months post opening.

* Integrating acquisitions,

See pages 24 to 25 to learn more about New Openings




MERLIN’S

Brands

MIDWAY ATTRACTIONS

Key

O Number of attractions

SEA LIFE

IMAGE
REMOVED

SEA UFE 15 the world's biggest
aguarurmn brand, built around the
notion of Amazing Discovenies and
home 1o a variety of creatures from
shrimps and starfish to seahorses,
rays. sharks and seals SEA LIFE
campaigins actively on a variety of
censervation issues priontised
around breeding, rescus and
protection of the manine
enyironment

MADAME
TUSSAUDS

IMAGE
REMOVED

Madame Tussauds” hertage
and the breathtaking artistry
of the figures differentiate it
from other wax attractions
Famous Fun 15 the heart

of the experience, where
visttors are encouraged to
‘nteract writh all the historical

Mapoleon to One Direction

and celebrry figures from

LEGOLAND
DISCOVERY
CENTRE

IMAGE
REMOVED

LEGOLAND Discovery
Centres are the uluimate
LEGO indoor playground,
with aver two milhon

bricks under one roof

With Playful Learning at
the heart of the experience,
they create a fun filled and
interactive environment

where children and parents

THE DUNGEONS

IMAGE
REMOVED

Dungeons are a unique mix
of dark, historical horrer and
irreverent humour delivered
through set piece shows
performed by live actors,
ndes and spine chillingly
themed sets Scary Fun is
the goal, delvered daily to
families, teenagers and
young adults

are nspired to be creative O

O

IMAGE
REMOVED

THE EYE BRAND

Each of our Eye obhservation
attractions offers the
ultmate viewing experience,
unparalleled and different
every tme, giving an Eye
Opening perspective of the
location's landscape and

iconic landmarks O

DREAMWORKS
TOURS - SHREK'S
ADVENTURE!

IMAGE
REMOVED

At ‘DreamWorks Tours -
Shrek's Adventure” guests

play their part n a unigue

and interactive DreamWorks
experience, where the choices
they make decide the outcome
At the heart of this are the
Hilarious Misadventures you
experience in the company of
your favourite DireamWorks

characters @



THEME PARKS

MERLIN’S Brands

With Playful Learning at the
heart of the experience, our
LEGOLAND resorts across
Europe, North America and
Asia offer a umique LEGO
themed expenence for families
with children aged two to
twelve years, Including highly
themed accommaodation
and based cnh interactivity,
imagination and family fun,

LEGOLAND RESORTS

IMAGE
REMOVED

@

ALTON
TOWERS
RESORT

IMAGE
REMOVED

Alton Towers Resart 1s set

in 500 acres of beautiful
Staffordshire countryside
Boasting two themed hotels,
‘The Enchanted Village' lodges
and an indoor waterpark, it
invites families, teenagers and
young adults alike into a waorld
of Fantastical Escapism

THORPE PARK

IMAGE
REMOVED

Insane fun 15 on offer at
THORPE PARK, the UK's
third biggest theme park
and acknowledged thrill
caprtal for teenagers, young
adults and older families,
The resort includes the
unique THORPE SHARK
Hotel, offering bite-sized
rooms In a stunming
waterfront location.

CHESSINGTON
WORLD OF
ADVENTURES
RESORT

IMAGE
REMOVED

Wild Adventure is at the
heart of Chessington Waorld
of Adventures Resort, with
axatic themed lands and
rides mixed with amazing
creatures from around the
world. Guests can stay in
the heart of the adventure
at our Safan and Azteca
resart hotels or

even go glamping

HEIDE PARK

IMAGE
REMOVED

Heide Park s Germany's
third biggest theme park
with rides and attractions
appealing 1o all ages, set in
five lands of Extraordinary
Adventure, The resort
attracts visitors from all over
Germany and beyond, who
can stay in the Heide Park
Adventure Hotel or adjacent
Holiday Village.

WARWICK
CASTLE

Jousting, krights, princesses,
falconry, staged scenes by
Madame Tussauds and the
Castle Dungeon all make
Warwick the Ultimate
Castle experience, now
with three different types
of themed accommodaticn.

IMAGE
REMOVED

GARDALAND
RESORT

IMAGE
REMOVED

Gardaland Resort 15 ltaly's
leading theme park. Located
on the edge of Lake Garda,
1t boasts rides for all

ages setin a beautifully
{andscaped and themed
world Big Fantasy
Adventure 15 all around,
including at cur Fantasy
and Adventure hotels

and adjacent SEA LIFE




MERLIN’S

Global portfolio

MAP IMAGE REMOVED

GRAPHS REMOVED



MERLIN’S

Growth drivers

EXISTING ESTATE GROWTH

NEW BUSINESS DEVELOPMENT

GROWING THE EXISTING ESTATE
THROUGH PLANNED INVESTMENT CYCLES
Adding new rides and features to our attractions to drive

customer satisfaction, increase capacity and prowide a
compelling new proposition to guests.

IMAGE REMOVED

EXPLOITING STRATEGIC SYNERGIES

Leveraging the scale of the Group in key markets to exploit
enhanced operational, marketing and buying power.

IMAGE REMOVED

TRANSFORMING OUR THEME PARKS
INTO DESTINATION RESORTS
Developing our theme parks into short break

destinations' extending the catchment area, creating
new revenue streams and improving guest satisfaction.

IMAGE REMOVED

ROLLING OUT NEW
MIDWAY ATTRACTIONS

Opening new Midway attractions under
one of our chainable global brands.

IMAGE REMOVED

NEW LEGOLAND PARK
DEVELOPMENTS

Opening new full scale LEGOLAND parks.

IMAGE REMOVED

STRATEGIC ACQUISITIONS

Pursuing acquistion oppceriunities that
complement our strategic ohjectives

IMAGE REMOVED




MERLIN’S Growth drivers

2016 DEVELOPMENTS

2020 NBD MILES TONES

We opened new rides, shows or features at every attraction,
There were |5 maor new imvestments across Midway
Attrachions, LEGOLAND Billund and LEGCLAND Calforma
both opened 'NINJAGO - The Ride' while THORPE PARK
launched the innovative 'Derren Brown's Ghost Tram',

See Ninjago case study on page 33

We continued the global implementation of the accesso®
‘Passport” ticketing platform. The roll out 15 targeted to
be complete at major sites by the end of 2017, We have
seen improved mobile conversion rates, up-selling and
cross-selling and will further leverage the platform as

we develop trade ticketing

Our existing and new accommodation offerings have
continued to perform well, A total of 210 additional
rooms have been added across both of cur theme
park Operating Groups.

See Gardaland Adventure Hotel case study on page 37

2,000 new accommodation rooms by the end of 2020

Bulding on 2016's progress, 2017 will see a further
acceleration towards our target as we open new
accommodation offerings with more in the pipeline.

Five new Midway attractions were opened in 2016 -
LEGOLAND Discovery Centres in Michigan, Arizona and
Shanghal and Madarme Tussauds in Chongging and Istanbul,

See LDC Shanghar case study on page 25

40 new Midway attractions by the end of 2020

With five opened in 2016 and a further {4 under
development at year end, we are on track to reach
our target,

In October our seventh LEGOLAND park -
LEGOLAND Bubal - opened under a
management contract

Four new LEGOLAND parks by the end of 2020

LEGOLAND Japan will open in April 2017. We continue
to make progress with our LEGOLAND Korea location
and are explonng further potential sites in Nerth America
and Asia,

Ve acqurred a minorty stake in BIG BUS Tours and entered
Into co-promaotion agreements with them in a number of
Oty centre locations. This complements our strategy of
‘owning the wisit’ In key city centre markets.




CHAIRMAN’S

Statement
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SIR JOHN SUNDERLAND
Charman



Trading and strategy

This has been a year of good progress for Merlin Entertainments
The LEGOLAND Parks Operating Group continued to deliver
growth although Midway Attractions saw secunity concerns and
exchange rate volatility affect trading at some of our largest ity
centre locations. Within Resort Theme Parks there was the start
of what we believe 1s an encouraging recovery at Atton Towers,

We continued to make longer term strategic progress, developing
more accommodation across our resorts, opening a LEGOLAND
park m Dubal, with another soon to come in japan. We also
announced our new ‘Little Big City' concept to add to the
existing surte of chanable Midway brands, where our pipeline

for future attractions remains strong

Health, safety and security

In September the Group was fined following a prosecution
brought by the UK Heatth and Safety Executive in connection
with the acaident at Alton Towers in 2015, That acadent shocked
Merlin deeply and we have been rigorous in our response

While we are never complacent in this area, | am reassured
by the outcome of independent reviews we subsequently
commissioned INto our ride safety and our heatth and safety
governance arrangements

We prowide more detalls on further enhancements to our
approach in this most iImportant area in our Heaith, Safety
and Secunty Committee report on pages 70 to 75.

Governance and the Board

Anne-Francoise Nesmes joined Merlin as Chief Financial Officer
in August following Andrew Carr's retirement. Her extensive
finance and international experience across a number of
mdustries will be of great value to the Group as it grows

and evolves

Rachel Chiang was appointed as a Non-executive Director at the
start of the year. Rachel brings relevant sector and geographical
experience as we continue Merlin's expansion into the Asia
Pacific region,

| have enjoyed welcoming them to Merlin and look forward to
working with them both in the coming years. We have a diverse
Board that has a wealth of knowledge and experience to help
guide Merhn through the next phase of its growth story.

Dividends
The Board will be recommending to the AGM in June that we
pay a final dvidend of 4 % pence per share In june.

Taken together with the interm dvidend of 2.2 pence per share
paid last September, this will equate to a full year dvidend of 7.1
pence per share, up 9 2% on 2015.

CHAIRMAN'S Statement

Corporate social responsibility (CSR)

There are two overarching themes to Merlin's CSR approach.
Firstly, we take our responsibility to be a ‘Good Corporate
Citizen’ serioushy, There are then other specific areas where
we feel Merlin 15 uniquely placed to be a ‘Force for Good',

Key to this are our employees who are proud to be part of and
1o support their communities, demonstrating to all of Meriin's
stakeholders the strength of the Company's core values. This 1s
underpinned by robust governance standards and practices to
help us operate our businesses responsibly and safely.

All our attractions are tasked with delivering plans to reduce
energy consumption and carbon emissions In our commitment
to the environment | am pleased therefore that we agan
exceeded our carbon reduction target.

Cur partrer charity, the SEA LIFE Trust, protects marine wildlife
through its worldwide campaigns. In 2016, as part of our focus on
marine protection, we campagned worldwide and were proud to
support President Obama's expansion of the world's biggest
marine protected area in Hawan.

Merlin's Magic Wand 1s our own children’s charity, delivering
magical experiences around the world to children who are
disadvantaged through sickness or disability. Ve have now
installed 31 ‘magical spaces’ across four continents, ranging from
themed areas at children’s homes and hosprtals to the complete
refurbishment of an orphanage Ve continue to arrange visits to
our attractions {over 86,000 i 2018) and to take the magc' to
local children’s organisations with community outreach activities,

Qur aspiration 1s to become industry leaders for guests with
accessibility challenges, Our inftiatives are amed at improving
guest information, prowiding employees with tools and traning
and delivering environments that are accessible to all.

More details can be found on pages 53 to 59.

Our people

As always 1t 1s Merlin's management team and our many
thousands of employees around the world who have driven
our results and strategic progress. They are the foundation of
our relatiens with our communities and all stakeholders,
They have my ongoing gratitude for ther contribution.

Looking forward

As we erter 2017,1 am confident that Merlin's strategy of
continued diversification and expansion, together with the
commitment of the Group's employees, stand us 1n good
stead as we deliver further growth,

Sir John Sunderland
Chairman
| March 2017
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Chief Executive Officer



CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S Report

53 weeks ended 52 weeks ended 52 weeks ended Constant
3| December 24 December 26 December currency
2016 2016 2015 Growth!! growth'"

Yisitors (m) 65 | 638 629 | 3%
Revenue {£m) [,457 1,428 1,278 11.7% 3.6%
EBITDA (£Em} 451 433 402 7.7% {1.8)%
Operatng profit (£m}) 320 302 291 3.6% (6.2)%
Like for like revenue growth 1.4%
Like for like EBITDA growth (36)%

HIGHLIGHTS

REVENUE GROWTH DESPITE CHALLENGING MARKET CONDITIONS
GOOD PROGRESS TOWARDS 2020 MILESTONES

CONFIDENT IN STRATEGY AND QUTLOOK

Merlin Entertainments has made good progress in 2016 n
the context of a challenging external emvironment.

From a trading perspective the Group's longstanding
diversificafion strategy meant that we delivered revenue and
EBITDA growth at reported foreign exchange rates of 11.7%
and 7.7% respectively, desprte headwinds in many markets, in
particular from nternational terrorism.

This was reflective of an encouraging recovery in Resort Theme
Parks, ongoing growth in LEGOLAND Parks and some Midway
Attractions divisions, offset by more difficult condrtions in London
and a number of other Midway markets, There was also a strong
impact from New Business Development as we opened more
attractions and benefited from a meaningful contribution from
our accommodation expansion,

66

made good progress in 2016

Merlin Entertainments has

B

Short term macro developments

Following the European Union referendurn in the UK, the
weakening of Sterling from its previcusly high level benefited
the 2016 results In the translation of the over 70% of profits we
derive from other countries, netably the USA and Continental
Europe. In the medium term, we expect a more competitive
pound to help Inbound tourism to London recover and drive
more 'staycations’ from UK residents, n the same way that some
of our Continental European attractions enjoyed a period of
Eurc weakness. We are encouraged by recent wisitation trends
in our London attractions, although 1t 15 premature to declare

a recovery, and we continue to plan accordingly.

Nonetheless we continue to believe that the UK tax system puts
the country's tourism industry at a disadvantage, wrth the UK
VAT rate of 20% in many cases being twice that charged in other
European Union countries. The industry therefore continues to
lobby the Government for a reduction in VAT on tourtsm
services (attractions and accommaodation), This would have the
effect of ‘locking In" the value berefit of a weaker pound and
create a level playing field for UK tourism with competing
countries such as France and Spain



CHIEF EXECUTIVE'’S Report

We speak of 2017 as the

beginning of the Next Chapter in

P

the remarkable Merlin Story

Long term vision and strategy

The events of 2016 reinforce our view that a diversified portfolic
based on strong brands with natural synergies is the best way of
delwvering consistent profit growth. Consequently we continue
to pursue a Iong term vision by which the GI'OUD'S revenues are
broadly spread one third each across The Americas, Europe

and Asia Pacfic, It 15 worth neting that compared to 2005, when
Merlin was much smaller and only operating in Europe. the 2016
revenue of £1.4 billion was already derved 27% and 14% from
North America and Asia Facific respectively. With the focus of
our Midway and LEGOLAND park new openings being in

these two regions, we remain confident of achieving this goal.

Despite the escalation i terronist activity and its consequent
impact on tourism flows we continue to be excited about the
long term opportunites for Merlin, In particular, we believe that
vistation o International ‘gateway’ cities will grow steadlly driven
by the increased propensrty of resident populations to ‘short
break’ and the desire of emerging market consumers, notably
from China, to travel This will create further opportunity for
our Midway brand clusters and support the extensien of our
strategy to exploit growmng Gty centre tourism,

The short break market 15 also set for further expansion
reinforcing our aspiration te postion all our theme parks as resort
destinations. In this respect we envisage that, in the fullness of tme,
most of our resorts can support over 1,000 accommodation
rooms, ranging frem four star hotels to themed ‘glamping’.
Currently our top resorts LEGOLAND California, Gardaland
and Alton Towers have 250,347 and 516 rooms respectively.

Cur confidence in the long term prospects of our market

led us in February 2016 to announce some significant New
Business Development milestones; by 2020 to open 40 new
Midway attractions {manly n cluster city locations), four new
LEGOLAND parks and over 2000 new accommodation rooms.
By the end of 2016, |9 of these additicnal Midways were open
or under development, LEGOLAND Dubai opened in Cetober
and LEGOLAND Japan s set to open in April 2017, In addition,
over |,000 new rooms are already open or approved for
development. We are wel| advanced with other new prajects,
ncluding excrting new brands, which will see us deliver against
this strong structural growth story.

Our customers

At the heart of what we do 15 our desire to give our customers
safe. memorable experiences. Since the acadent at Alton Towers
in 2015 we have reinforced our health and safety protocols and
resources and introduced a new Group engineering function
(see the Health, Safety and Securty Committee Report on
pages 70 to 75).

In terms of the guest expenence we have delvered against our
high (30%+) KPl on customer satisfaction, but our aspiration 1s
to continually do better All businesses in the Group are now
focused on delivering Top Box' satisfaction, Trip Advisor

(or local equivalent} and ‘Net Promoter’ scores.

Our team

Merlin has one of the most engaged teams in any industry
anywhere, achieving a remarkable 89% in the 2016 staff survey.
It 15 this which drives the high productivity of the Group

and delivers memorable expenences 1o over 63 millkion

guests worldwide

With pressures on our cost ine from external factors such
as legislation-driven wage pressures around the world and
increased business tax rates in the UK as well as above
inflationary wage growth in Asia, we will continue to seek to
drive greater productivity through rescurce effiaencies and
more motivated. better rewarded employees as a means
of retaning this extraordinary energy. This extends to
share ownership via the pepular Merln Sharesave Scheme.
We will also continue our already progressive policies in
shaping a management team which reflects the gender

and cultural diversity of our customers.

Internally we speak of 2017/ as the beginning of the Next
Chapter in the remarkable Merhin Story It s one where the
Company 15 moving forward with confidence to achieve our
ambrtious growth strategy.

We have the brands, the pecple and an exciting pipeine of
projects to deliver against cur objectives. Our overarching
purpose remains to create truly memorable expernences
for our millions of visitors and value for our stakeholders.

Nick Varney
Chief Executive Officer
| March 2017



6 6 At the heart of what we do is
our desire to give our customers
safe, memorable experiences
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MERLIN Magic Making

MERLIN
MAGIC
MAKING

IMAGE
REMOVED
MARK FISHER
Chief Development
Officer

MERLIN MAGIC MAKING (MMM) IS THE UNIQUE RESOURCE THAT SITS
AT THE HEART OF EVERYTHING MERLIN DOES.

IMAGE REMOVED

FINDING THE MAGIC

MMM finds new business opportunities, ranging
from the strategic roll out of the Midway estate
to potential acquisitions.

CREATING THE MAGIC

Driving innovation across the Group, MMM creates the
highest class compelling propositions for the existing
estate and new attractions. This includes creating
Merlin's very own in-house intellectual property.

PRODUCING THE MAGIC

MMM takes creative ideas and then produces amazing
content for our attractions. ¥We make LEGO models,
wax figures, attraction theming, and ensure that
Merlin provides the best animal care possible.

DELIVERING THE MAGIC

MMM's project management teams produce world
beating attractions for our guests to enjoy!
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FINDING THE MAGIC

In 2016 our organic roll out programme continued, leading
us towards our strategic goal of 40 new Midways by 2020,

This progress will continue into 2017 and beyond as we roll
out new and existing brands into new territones,

Most excrting 1s our entry into India, with a Madame Tussauds
beng built mght in the heart of Delhi, on the world famous
Connaught Place We are also taking the LEGOLAND
Discovery Centre brand over to Australa for the first

tme as we open in Melbourne. This 15 1 addition to our
cantinued roll out in China of our SEA LIFE and
LEGOLAND Duiscovery Centre brands.

The USA will see the further expansion of the LEGOLAND
Discovery Centre brand together with a ‘new concept’
Madame Tussauds in Nashwville, where this first fully musically
themed attraction will ieverage ts prime location dose to
the Grand Ole Opry.

Finally, we will launch our new Midway brand, 'Little Big City',

that will open alongside our Berlin cluster (see case study
on page 23).

IMAGE REMOVED

6 6 More NINJAGO

training camps are appearing
in LEGOLAND parks, ready to

train the next generation of

LEGO warriors

IMAGE REMOVED

MERLIN Magic Making

IMAGE REMOVED

CREATING THE MAGIC

We are well advanced in introducing our first full intellectual
property based hotel outside of the LEGOLAND resorts,

with the launch of the ‘CBeebies Land Hotel' at Alton Towers
Children will be able to come and stay n the fully immersive and
magical world of CBeebies. before embarking on their day of
adventures within Alton Towers and a wvisrt to the successful
CBeebies Land.

Further in 2017, a new 'Ghostbusters’ nde experience at
Heide Park prormises 1o 'scare the parts off” our visitors, while
mare NINJAGO traning eamps are appearing in LEGOLAND
Deutschland, LEGOLAND Florida and LEGOLAND Windsor,
ready to train the next generation of LEGO warriors. For those
with a more sedate side, The Gruffale’ will be dropping in to
Chessington World of Adventures

Meanwhile, on the Midway side. amongst a whole host of exciting
projects, we will be introducing a new selection of Penguins in

Paris and a new wobbly world of Jellyfish in London.

Probably most exciting of all 15 the introduction of one of
our home grown attraction concepts, 'Little Big Crty'.
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MERLIN Magic Making

PRODUCING THE MAGIC

We have produced some amazing things in 2016 and think none

15 more spectacular than the 'huge” Minland at the heart of cur
new LEGOLAND park in Dubal.

Qur new LEGO model shop 1s now cperational in Horida,
as we absorb the ever increasing demand and focus on
operational efficences in rolling out new LEGOLAND parks
and Discovery Centres, as well as new attractions n our
exsing estate Our Malaysian mode!

shop will see further expansion

as we move through 2017,

IMAGE REMOVED

Innovation continued to be a key feature in 201 6, with many
new production technigues being trialled as technology plays
more of a central role in our production thinking, Examples are
facial scanning being used I the development of our handmade
wax figures and the use of 31 printing to proeduce ever more
|ifelike thering across the Merlin estate.

Merlin Animal Welfare, our team of marine biologists,
continues 1o be at the forefront of our creature care as
well as developing even more innovative displays for our
SEA LIFE attractions.

IMAGE REMOVED

IMAGE REMOVED

DELIVERING THE MAGIC

Whether it 1s from new Midway attractions or other
developments, 2016 has seen no tet-up in the variety,
geographic spread and number of delivered projects
We have been working on over 48 major projects for
delivery in 2016 and 2017, across eleven countrres,
representing a capial investment of over £245 mithon

Cur accommeaedation roll out will continue into 2017.

We will open the already mentioned ‘CBeebies Land Hotel at
Alton Towers, together with a new beach themed holday
village in LEGOLAND Flonda, a new LEGC Castle hotel at
LEGOLAND Windsor and an expansion of the holiday wllage
in LEGOLAND Billund, Cverall we are well on target to
reach our goal of 2,000 new rooms by 2020,

Finally, after the successful launch of our virtual reality coaster
at Atton Towers in 2016, we will see a further roll out of this
innovative concept in Gardaland in 2017,

Owerall 2016 has been another great vear for Merlin Magic Making

with the whole team rising to the challenge. We are excited
about the opportunities in 2017.

6 6 We have produced

some amazing things in 2016.
None more spectacular than the
‘huge’ Miniland at the heart of
our new LEGOLAND park

in Dubai

oD
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MERLIN Magic Making

LOGO REMOVED

In search of new Midway brands, the We are developing Merfin's take on a madel village with
Merlin team have deveFoped our own a unigue fusion of mimiature maodels and a mix of old and
new technology We will make the history of a particular
aty come alive as we open a Little Big City' in our cluster

in-house concept that can fit alongside
our portfolio of existing brands,
broadening our long term options
when it comes to achieving our

crties alongside our existing Midway brands

Midway pipeline roll out. We will open our first Little Big City’ nght in the heart
of Berlin in the summer of 2017 We will bring to life

the most iImportant stories and events from medieval to

madern Berbn using a captivating combination of special

effects. storyteling and interactve miniature designs

DID YOU KNOW?

Our little ‘Reichstag’ss 4m wide,
3m high & 2m deep, and we

‘burn it down’every 3 mmutes!

There are 6,000 characters, each IMAGE REMOVED

indwidually digitally posed, dressed
and 3D printed.

We teff 391 character stories
through & eras of Berlins history.
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NEW

Openings

THE NEW OPENINGS TEAM IS MERLIN'S
SPECIALIST RESOURCE THAT

DEVELOPS NEW LEGOLAND PARKS
OPENS NEW MIDWAY AT TRACTIONS

INTEGRATES ACQUISITIONS

IMAGE
REMOVED

John jakobsen
Chief New Operings Officer

Reflecting Merlin's ambrtious growth plans, in May 2015 the
Group announced the formation of a new team, New Openings,
responsiblie for the development of our LEGOLAND park
portfolio, overseeing the opening of all new attractions and

the integration of strategic acquisitions.

ft 15 a vital element in delivering the Group's strategic 2020
milestones, where from 2016 1o 2020 the Group will be opening
40 new Midway attractions and four new LEGOLAND parks
{each with themed accommedation offerings). These projects will
mean hiring around 7,000 new staff aver that period to support
an anticipated visitation of up Lo 20 million vistors per year.

Development

LEGOLAND parks

New Openings has a wide remit for new LEGOLAND park
developrments, seeking out new opportunies and locations for
future resorts. Once a project 1s agreed and Board approved,
the New Openings team is responsible for the construction

of the park and any complementary accommodation.

Midway attractions

For Midway attractions, the site search activity for new project
locattons rests with Merlin Magic Making (see pages 20 to 23
for more details). Once a project has Board approval it is
handed over to New Openings to oversee the development,
with Merlin Magic Making providing core project management
to deliver the project build,

Opening

In delvering a new attraction, New Cpenings will manage the
recrutment and traning of staff, develop the marketing plan and
build brand awareness along with establishing all the functions a
new site needs, wherever possible leveraging expertise from
across the existing estate.

When a site opens, New Openings will support the business for
between |2 to 18 months. before stepping aside and leaving the
local team to execute the agreed strategy. Throughout this tme
resutts will be reported within the relevant Operating Group.

2016

During 2016 the New Openings team has proved the benefits
of this dedicated resource, opening LEGOLAND Duba under

a management contract in October while pressing forward with
the construction of LEGOLAND Japan for a planned opening in
April 2017. They have also continued to make progress with our
LEGOLAND Korea location, working with local government on
the stte’s supporting infrastructure, targeting a 2019 opening.

The team have also managed the opening of five new Midway
attractions in three different continents this year All projects are
operating well with guest satisfaction scores cn a par with high
Merlin standards

Looking forward

As highlighted on pages 20 to 23, there are a number of new and
exciting developments we are working on alongside Merln Magic
Making, and we stand ready to deliver more successful launches

Regarding new LEGOLAND parks, we continue to seek
out new sites worldwide, with opportuntties progressing in
North America and China

Acquisitions

To enable existing teams to focus on operating existing
attractions, New Operings 15 responsible for operating any
acquired businesses until they are ready to be integrated
into the relevant Operating Group.
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NEW Openings

LOGO REMOVED

After a strong and consistent increase

in LEGO toy sales in China over the past
several years we see opportunities for the
development of LEGOLAND branded
attractions in this significant market.

In considenng our first important step inte the
market the Group decded to open the first
LEGOLAND attraction as an LDC in Shanghar

This 1s one of the strongest LEGO markets in China
and with a location within walking distance of our
Chang Feng Ocean World aquanum we have been
able to leverage operational synergies with our
existing well established Merhn tearn

IMAGE REMOVED

The attraction follows the established LDC format
and New Openings worked together waith the MMM
project management team to ensure we opened on
schedule in April 2016 Following a well executed
marketing and sales programme - integrated with
LEGO China - the attraction enjoyed a strong launch
and has seen very promising guest

satisfaction scores so far

The success of this highly strategic launch provides
confidence for the potential for many further
LDC projects in China, as well as supporting our
conviction of the market potential for our larger
scale LEGOLAND parks

We look forward to overseeing this successful new
attraction for its remaining tme with New Openings
hefore we then hand operations over to our
Midway colleagues!

DID YOU KNOW?

The Shanghai Tower, at 4 9 metres
from the floor to the top of the model,
1s the tallest i any LDC.

There are 600,000 bricks ond over
3,000 Minifigures in the Mimland
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OPERATIONAL REVIEW - MIDWAY Attractions

53 weeks ended 52 weeks ended 52 weeks ended Constant
3] December 24 December 26 December currency
2016 2016 2015 Growth(" growth("
Yisitors (m) 417 40.6 40.0 1.5%
Revenue (£m) 638 621 561 108% 3.4%
EBITDA (£m) 236 224 221 1.5% (4.7)%
Operating profit (£m) 172 160 167 4.3)% {3.7)%
Like for ke revenue growth {02)%
Lo
z IMAGE
T LIKE FOR LIKE REVENUE LEVEL WITH 2015 REMOVED
O
T SPECIFIC CHALLENGES IN A NUMBER OF KEY MARKETS
I
O GOOD GCONTRIBUTION FROM MIDWAY ROLL OUT Nick Mockensre
, I Managing Director
[ Midway Attractions

Market backdrop and strategy

The Midway Attractions Operating Group experienced a difficult
year n 2016, with several of our large, city centre attractions
experiencing volatile trading patterns, Whilst occasional 'shocks’
have always been present to a degree given the global nature of
the Operating Group, the increased prevalence of these in recent
years has resulted in a more challenging trading environment.

Nevertheless, we remain confident in the long term prospects for

Midway. We continue to see growth opportunities as consumers
seek more leisure experiences, and as increased ‘digitalisation’ of
media and entertainment leads to greater value being placed on
high-quality experiences with friends and farmily

Against this backdrop, our strategy 15 based around the continued
growth and global dersification of our brands, exceptional
marketing execution, ‘owning the wisit' in our ‘gateway’ ¢ty
attractions and maximising strategic synergies.

Trading performance

Cverall revenue growth of 10.8% was underpinned by constant
currency growth of 3.4%, with more favourable foreign exchange
rates benefitng our reported results,

EBITDA grew by 1.5% (decline of 4.7% at constant currency),
representing a dechine in the margin from 39.4% to 36.1%.
With a cost base that is typically more fixed in nature when
compared to our theme park businesses, significant structural
cost savings In Midway are challenging to achieve,

Nevertheless, a number of savings were made in hght of the
geopoltical events of the first half of 2016 and in antaipation

of mourting underlying cost pressures, Whilst the part-year
benefit of these mitigating actions did not fully offset the softer
revenue performance, they are expected to support profitability
going forward, allowing for continued investrment In marketing
and product.

IMAGE REMOVED

New ‘drop nde’ m
the Berlin Dungeon

27




OPERATIONAL REVIEW - MIDWAY Attractions

The Operating Group’s margin in 2016 was also driven by our
roll out strategy impacting mix, with newer sites typically having
lower margins.

As a result, and including higher depreciation driven by continued
investment i the estate, operating profit dechned by 4.3%
(3.7% at constant currency).

Existing estate

Revenue declined by 0.29 on a like for like basis as difficult
trading conditions in a number of our larger markets, which

were adversely affected by secunity concerns or market-specific
issues, were not fully offset by streng performances elsewhere
We are nevertheless encouraged by the continued strong market
posmioning of our brands even in these more challenging markets.

As the largest of Midway's five Divisions, the impact of security
concerns was most strongly felt in London Although the
competitiveness of Sterling improved following the UK’
referendum on the EU in June, this resublted in Iittle maternal
benefit on visitation from overseas as 2016 surmmer holiday
dewsicns had largely been made prior to the currency
movements. Some improvement In overseas visitation

was however expenenced towards the end of the year

Our Midway Asia Division saw challenging trading as localised
market factors impacted several of our larger attractions,

This was maost prevalent in Hong Kong where travel restrictions
from the Pecple’s Republic of China continue to impact vistation
to Madame Tussauds. We however remain confident n the
longer term prospects for the region as a whole and will
continue to invest 1n both our existing and new attractions.

In a portfolio of over 100 attractions, there were naturally a
number of strong performances. These tended to be delivered
at our attractions located outside of city centres. As these

are typically smaller in scale compared to their city centre
counterparts, therr good performances were insufficient to
offset weakness elsewhere.

Capital investment

2016 saw a number of significant product launches, typically
designed to deliver 'new news’ via marketing and PR to drive
repeat visitation, support price increases, or shift focus towards
a particutar audience,

Madame Tussauds New York enjoyed a new ‘Ghostbusters’
feature, coinciding with the remake of the film which was
launched n July. We also tearmed up with a virtual reality
provider - 'The Void' - to make this experience even more
nteractive and engaging. PR surrounding the product was
fantastic, and the performance uplift helped offset a

difficult tourist market In New York.

Other key product launches included a new ‘drop nide’ in the
Berlin and San Francsco Dungeons, a Sherlock Holmes feature
in Madame Tussauds London. and the ‘K-Wave Zone' in
Madame Tussauds Shanghal - capturing the appetite in China
for Korean music, We introduced a number of NINJAGO based
‘Laser Traming Camps’ at our LEGOLAND Discovery Centres
and launched a new café format at LDC Dallas which has the
potential to be rolied out to the wider estate, Late in the year
we launched a penguin feature at SEA LIFE Sydney Aquarium,

Brand investment

As part of the continuous evolution of our Icomc brands, we
continued In 2016 to support ther competitive posrtioning
In an ever-evolving landscape. In Madame Tussauds, we have
focused upon evolving the experience ‘beyond wax', creating
new IMrmersive experiences and ensuring appropnate
dfferentiation between our global portfolio of attractions.
We are alsc developing new strategic partnerships with
international media and consumer brands. In SEA LIFE, we
are roling out refreshed marketing communications and
product. and are increasingly partnering with major brands.

Customer satisfaction

Cur cormtinued focus on delivering memorable experiences
helped our Midway attractions mantain their excellent levels
of guest satisfaction with a particular focus on Improvemerits
to ‘Top Box' scores.

Existing estate - looking ahead
We will make further investrents in 2017, with something new
at each of our attractions as we deploy caprtal efficiently across
the estate. These will include
+ 2 pengun attrachion at SEA LIFE Panis and a
Jellyfish feature at SEA LIFE London Aquarium;
+ The Voice' - based around the hit TV show -
in Madame Tussauds London ang New York;
+ ‘NINJAGO Gity' - which we will roll out to
mare LEGOLAND Discovery Centres.

New pengun feature at SEA LIFE Sydney Aquanum

IMAGE REMOVED
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QPERATIONAL REVIEW - MIDWAY Attroctions

LOGO REMOVED

In Spring 2016, following a number of terrorist attacks across Europe, and with UK
exchange rates still relatively unfavourable for inbound tourists, the London tourist
market was displaying signs of weakness. European markets were struggling and
visitor sentiment was negative at a crucial point for summer holiday bookings.
With international guests typically representing over 70% of visitors to our

London attractions, we decided to execute a proactive strategy.

With a primary focus on growmng market share in This included working with our partner, Big Bus, with
domestic audiences in London and the South East advertiaing across their fleet and sales team incentives.
of the UK throughout the summer holdays, we

increased our marketing spend and developed an As we had planned, the campaign boosted

impactful campaign to drive visits to London’s domestic interest, web traffic and visitation,

South Bank. A fully ntegrated, multi-media campaign Whilst the international market remained difficult
featuring ‘Eye-Popping Days Out' ran from June over the summer period, the improvement i

until the end of August across a range of media domestic visitor numbers arrested the decine

10 maxirise awareness and ‘share of voice', in overall guest numbers

IMAGE REMOVED
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OPERATIONAL REVIEW - LEGOLAND PFarks

53 weeks ended 52 weeks ended 52 weeks ended Constant
3| December 24 December 26 December currency
2016 2016 2015 Growtht"? growth"’
Visitors {m) 12.9 128 12.7 0.6%
Revenue (£m) 495 486 429 13.5% 29%
EBITDA (£m) 193 188 169 1% 05%
Operating profit (£m) 165 160 146 5.1% (1.4)%
Like for like revenue growth 1.6%
LIKE FOR LIKE REVENUE GROWTH OF 1.6% IMAGE
SPECIFIC CHALLENGES IN FLORIDA; STRONG REMOVED

HIGHLIGHTS

PERFORMANCES IN EUROPEAN PARKS

CONTINUED ROLL OUT OF THEMED ACCOMMODATION

Hans Aksel Pedersen
Managing Director
LEGOLAND Parks

Trading performance

Following two years of extremely strong growth, the LEGOLAND
Parks Operating Group saw further positive moementum in 201 6.
Our ongoing successful mvestment in product and the guest
experience at our six existing parks, underpinned by the

LEGO toy brand, has been a major driver of ths.

Owverall revenue growth of |3.5% was driven by constant
currency growth of 2.9%, with the strength of the US Dollar

benefiting the translated result of our two North American parks.

Reflecting growth In revenue offset by underlying cost growth
and pre-opening costs related to future parks, EBITDA grew
by | 1.19% {0.5% at constant currency), and operating profit
by 9 1% (dechne of 1.4% at constant currency).

Existing estate trading

Revenue grew by | 6% on a like for like basis, reflecting the
strong comparatives following exceptionally strong growth
N recent years,

We enjoyed good performances in our parks in Billund and
Germarny which benefited from a ‘staycation’ effect, LEGOLAND
Califorma mantained a strong market position despite increased
promotional activity from competitors, whilst the Horda tounst
market suffered from a number of 1ssues, Including concerns
related to the Zika virus and the Orlando shootings, resuiting

in Increased competitive pressures

Existing estate capital investment

In 2016, the high year maor product investment was in
LEGOLAND Billund. with a medium year in LEGOLAND
California, In both these parks, we launched new offerings
based upon core LEGO NINJAGC intellectual property
{(see case study on page 330

Additionally, we launched the new and exclusive mowvie ‘'short’
The LEGQO Movie 4D A New Adventure’ across each of our
parks, Partnering with Warner Bros, and the LEGO Group, this
efficiently added further capacrty to our parks, and supported
guest satisfaction.

LEGOLAND Parks saw

further positive momentum. ..
from our ongoing successful
investment in product and the

o)

guest experience
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OPERATIONAL REVIEW - LEGOLAND Parks

IMAGE REMOVED

Resort positioning

Our strategy of developing our theme parks into short break
resorts made further progress in 2016 with the addition of 47
new accommodation rooms, We opened a 34 room ‘Castle’
hotel and more 'giant-sized” beer barrel chalets at LEGOLAND
Deutschland Holiday Village. Such accommodation developments
not only generate attractive returns in thewr own right, but

drive increased volumes to the park as a result of the broader
catchment area Data continues to show that guest satisfaction

15 higher amongst those who have stayed with us overnight

Customer satisfaction

2016 showed an improvemnent In guest satisfaction in a
number of key areas For example our themed accommaedation
performed particularly well which was also reflected through
highly favourable ratings on Trip Advisor

66 2017 will see a

significant acceleration in our

accommodation strategy 9 9

Looking ahead
In 2017 we wall continue to provide our guests with new,

innovative and cormpelling features at each of our parks

Building upon the resounding success of our NINJAGO
product investments in 2016, similar rdes and expenences

will be rolled cut across the remaning parks. We believe these
will benefit from the LEGO Group's continued investment into
the NINJAGQO brand, as well as further marketing mementum
around the LEGO NINJAGO movie currently expected to

be released towards the end of 2017,

It 15 this mutually-synergistic relatonship with LEGO, allowing
for strong product offerings and marketing oppertunities, which
provides us with confidence in the longer term outlook for the
LEGOLAND Parks Operating Group.

2017 will aiso see a significant acceleration in our accemmodation
strategy. A new holday vilage offering at LEGOLAND Flonda

will add capacity to complement the hotel that opened in 2015,
We will also open a second hotel at LEGOLAND Windsor and
expand the holiday village at LEGOLAND Billund. In total, just
over 300 rooms will be added to the estate in 2017, with a
further acceleration of the roll out expected in 2018, as

Merlin progresses towards its 2020 milestones.

IMAGE REMOVED

The “Castle’ hotel at LEGOLAND Deutschland Holiday Village
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OPERATIONAL REVIEW - LEGOLAND Parks

LOGO REMOVED

IMAGE REMOVED

The rationaile for LEGOLAND Biliund We also opened a similar NINJAGO themed
developing a NINJAGO themed feature attraction at LEGOLAND Califorma

as a high year capital investment project
was compelling, with NINJAGO aiready
one of LEGO’s best-selling toy lines and

Following the successful launches in Billund and
Califorma, and conaiding with the NINJAGO
movie anticipated in 2017, the remaining parks

becoming a key LEGO intellectual will launch similar attractions throughout 2017
property. Our own detailed market Rolling out similar or identical products i this
research reinforced that the idea of a way offers clear synergies from a development.

‘NINJAGO training camp’ scored well with operational and cost perspective
both boys and girls and across different
age groups, as well as amongst parents.

With our defined investment cycles gving danty

to our parks, LEGOLAND Billund started the DID YOU KNOW?
project n 2014 for the 2016 season The objectve

was to delver a high capacity nide and a new LEGOLAND Biffund’s NINJAGO World
themed area. drving improvements in guest covers an area of 5,100 square metres,
satisfaction and visitation whilst delivering the

expected returns on caprtal The LEGO models weigh 1.5 tonnes,

containing 727,000 bricks
LEGO NINJAGO World apened in 2016 in Billund

In addition 1o various traming exercises to become
a ‘Ninja'’. the heavily themed area includes a ‘dark’
ride - with lasers controlled by hand gestures,

as well as dning and shopping features

The high score on "NINJAGO - The Ride'
is currently 380,0001
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OPERATIONAL REVIEW - RESORT Theme Parks

53 weeks ended 52 weeks ended 52 weeks ended Constant
31 December 24 December 26 December currency
2016 2016 2015 Growth(" growth")
Visitors (m) 10.5 104 10.2 1.5%
Revenue (£m) 322 319 285 11.8% 5.8%
EBITDA {£m}) 70 69 47 459% 28.1%
Operating profit {£m) 38 37 18 109 7% 61.3%
Like for like revenue growth 4.3%
LIKE FOR LIKE REVENUE GROWTH OF 4.3%
RECOVERY IN LEISURE VISITATION UNDERWAY IMAGE
REMOVED

AT ALTON TOWERS

HIGHLIGHTS

GOOD PERFORMANCE IN THE WIDER ESTATE

STRONG CONTRIBUTION FROM NEVY ACCOMMODATION

Justin Platt
Managing Director
Resort Theme Parks

Trading performance

Following an extremely difficutt year in 2015, the Resort
Theme Parks Operating Group made good progress in 2016,
with revenues growing by 11.8% or 58% on a constant
currency basis.

Reflecting growth in revenues and control of the cost base,
EBITDA grew by 45.9% and operating profit by 109.7%
{28.1% and 61.3% respectively at constant currency).

Existing estate trading

On a lke for ke basis revenues grew by 4.3%. Growth for the
Operating Group as a whole was held back by the full year effect
of lower volumes at Alton Towers following the acadent in June
2015, although we saw a steady recovery in leisure visitation
volurmes during the year

Elsewhere, we enjoyed strong performances, including
THORPE FARK in the UK which launched a major new product
investment - ‘Derren Brown's Ghost Train” Across the estate,

a strong Halloween offering built on the success of previous
years, supporting trading outside of the summer season,

Due to the decline in visitation at Afton Towers experienced

in the second half of 2015 and in antigpation of a continuation
of this in 2016, action was taken towards the end of 2015 to
re-align the cost base. These savings have been achieved more
rapidly than inrally envisaged, wrth any further operational
improvements expected to be more modest as the focus shifts
towards driving revenue growth. Crucially, we are pleased that
guest satisfaction has remained above target levels,

IMAGE REMOVED

Krught's Yillage lodges at Warwick Castle
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OPERATIONAL REVIEW - RESORT Theme Parks

Capital investment

In line with our four year capital investment cycle, the major
investrent for 2016 was n THORPE PARK where we opened
another world first - ‘Derren Brown's Ghost Tran', This combines
the unique talents of the mentalist and illusiomist with the creative
and project management expertise of Merlin Magic Making,

This investment drove good growth In volumes afthough,
reflecting the complex and cutting-edge nature of the project,
the launch was not without s challenges. Ve are confident of
further opportunities to improve guest satisfaction, with further
product development already planned for 2017 and we continue
to see intellectual property as an area for focus in coming years.

Gardaland and Heide Park each saw new themed areas
based arcund DreamWorks Animation's ‘Kung fu Panda’
and ‘How to Train Your Dragon’, respectively

Finally, Alton Towers used state-of-the-art, virtual reality
technology to create a brand new ride experience called
‘Galactica’. Based upon the ‘re-imagining’ of an existing nde, and
desprte being a low year nvestment, we are pleased with the
positive impact the ride has had on wisitor numbers, and In
contributing towards rebulding the Alton Towers brand,

IMAGE REMOVED

‘How ta Tran Your Dragon’ at Heide Park

Resort positioning

Qur strategy of developing our resorts into short break
destinations continued in 2016, with the addtion of the 28 room
Knight's Village lodges at Warwick Castle, the launch of a 100
room second hotel in Gardaland (see case study on page 37) as
well as 35 room ‘glamping” at Chessington World of Adventures,
We wilf continue to invest in themed accommedation which,

as well as generating attractive returns directly, has the benefit
of widening a resort’s catchment area and improving

guest satisfaction,

56

state-of-the-art virtual reality

Alton Towers used

technology to create a brand
new ride experience,
‘Galactica’

P

Customer satisfaction

We mantaned good levels of satisfaction this vear as a result
of continued investment n new products and features together
with our exceptional staff We are particularly pleased that
Alton Towers showed a continued improvement in their

‘Net Promoter’ score - a metric we are increasingly focused
upon. Refinements to the ‘Derren Brown - Ghost Tran’ at
THORPE PARK in 2017 should also drnive further improvements

Looking ahead

2017 will see further investment in the existing estate and an
expansion of our accommodation offerings, with a particular
emphasis on intellectual property.

In Heide Park, following the success of previous partnerships with
Sony, ‘Ghostbusters 5D The Ultimate Ghosthurt” will launch as
Europe's only 5D 'Ghostbusters’ experience, allowing guests to
fight their way through an ‘alien-infested’ warehouse! Meanwhile,
at Chessington World of Adventures in the UK the much loved
‘Gruffalo' will come to the resort through an interactive and
immersive ride experience,

We see a strong pipeline of further accommodation across each
of our resorts as part of the Group's target to open 2,000 new
rooms by the end of 2020. Offerings will nclude not just hotels,
but holiday villages, lodges and speciality accommeodation such
as ‘glamping’. Where appropriate, we may also look to use
inteflectual property in our accommaodation projects in the
same way that we have for our existing estate investrents

At Alton Towers for example, buliding on the success we have
enioyed with CBeebies Land, which opened in 2014, we will

in 2017 open a CBeebies themed hotel, Incorporating 76

rooms and enjoying its own dedicated entertanment area

and restaurant. With a full entertanmenit programme running
throughout the vear, the new development will feature live shows,
hosted activities, character ‘'meet and greets’ and play areas
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A key pillar of Gardaland’s strategy in recent
years has been to develop its short break
offering. The existing 247 roor hotel has enjoyed
strong growth and occupancy levels as marketing
campaigns and product offerings have increasingly
been aimed at sheort breaks for the Italan domestic
market Approximately 70% of the Lake Garda
region's five million annual visters come from
outside ltaly. so in 2016 Gardaland launched the new
100 room ‘Adventure Hotel' to target this
international audience Four different "adventure’
themes are amed at families with shghtly older
children and differentiate this new product

from the existing hotel that has ‘Fantasy’ as

rts central proposition

Pricing reflects the hotel's premium nature, with
average room rates approximately €35 higher
Results have been positive, with a strong share of
nternational visitors underpinning financial results
in line wath our expectations The existing hotel also
saw a 6 percentage point increase i international
tourists and both hotels had close to 100%
accupangy rates durng peak season

Gardaland will continue te develop its resort
positioning strategy In its long term ambition
to ensure that we are offering a wide range of
accommaodation types and price points

IMAGE REMOVED
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53 weeks ended 52 weeks ended 52 weeks ended 52 week
31 December 24 December 26 December 52 week constant
2016 2016 2015 growth currency growth
£m £m £m % %
Revenue 1,457 1,428 1,278 11.7% 3.6%
EBITDA 451 433 40i 7.7% (1.8)%
Depreciation and amortisation {131) (131) (n (18.3)% (10.3)%
Qperating profit 320 302 29] 3.6% {6.2)%
Net finance ;osts (43) (43) (41) (4.9y%
Profit before tax 277 259 250 3.4%
Taxation (66) (62) (70) 11.7%
Profit for the year 211 197 180 9.3%
Post-tax exceptional items - - (10) 100.0%
-Ad]usted earnings per share 20.8p 19 5p 17 8p 9.3%
RCCE 10.2% 9.6% 9.7%
Lo on e -
6 6 Although there have been several headwinds, the strength

strategy has resulted in continued revenue growth

of the portfolio and our ongoing focus on the execution of the

P

Having joined Merhin in August 2016, | arm pleased to report a
solid set of financial results. Although there have been several
headwinds for the business in 2016, the strength of the portfolio
and our ongoing focus on the execution of the strategy has
resulted in continued revenue growth, albert on a constant
currency basis profits have been held back by underlying cost
increases and investments in new attractions. Cash generation
remains strong allowing for significant re-investment into

the business.

My focus as Chief Financial Officer 1s on ensuring that the
business has the resources to grow and that we mantain our
capital discipline, Addiionally | will develop the finance structures
and systems to evolve with the growth of the business as it
executes its strategy,

To aid comparability, the trading cormmmentary which follows 1s on
a 52 week basis. Unless otherwise stated, all growth rates are
presented on a constant currency basis, that 15, as f the 2015
results were re-translated at 2016 average rates.

Revenue
Reported reveniue for the 53 weeks to 31 Decernber 2016
increased to £1.457 million. On a 52 week constant currency
basis, total revenue grew by 3.6%.to £1.428 millon. Growih was
delvered in each of the three Operating Groups as we drive
growth from both our existing and new businesses,

On a like for ke basis, revenues grew by 1.4%, reflecting a broadly
flat result in Midway Attractions offset by continued growth in
LEGOLAND Parks and a recovery in Resort Theme Parks,

In addition to the performance in cur existing estate, we made
good progress towards our 2020 milestones driving further
revenue growth, The opening of five new Midway attractions,
together with the full year benefit of 2015 openings, contributed
1.6 percentage points to revenue growth, whilst new

accommodation added G.8 percentage points.

The opening of LEGOLAND Duba, which cpened on 31 October
and for which we earn a managernent fee, had a lrmited financial

impact, although during the year we recognised the remaining
balance of the park development fee up until 1ts opening
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EBITDA

Constant 2016
016 currency margin
52 weeks growth 52 weeks
£m % %
Midway Attractions 224 (4.7)% 36 1%
LEGOLAND Parks 188 0.5% 38.7%
Resort Theme Parks &9 28.1% 21.5%

Central (48)
Group 433 (1.8)% 30.3%

Reported EBITDA for the 53 weeks to 31 December 2016
increased to £451 milbon On a 52 week constant currency basis
EBITDA decreased by | 8% to £433 millon as underlying cost
increases in our existing estate and the additional investment in
our new attractions more than offset revenue growth.

EBITDA margins overall fell sightly to 30 3% primarly as a result
of a decline in the Midway Attractions margin. not fully offset by
a recovery in the Resort Theme Parks margin. The LEGOLAND
Parks margin was affected nn 2016 by an increase in pre-opening
costs related to LEGOLAND Japan and Korea.

Central costs grew by £13 million as a result of the full year effect
of newly created roles in health and safety and engineening areas,

together with the non-recurrence of a number of cost decreases

in 2015, for example reductions in variable remuneration

Midway Attractions EBITDA includes a £5 million sales tax rebate
which was recognised in the first half of the year, while the Resort
Therme Parks EBITDA includes a £5 milion fine arising from the
accident at Afton Towersn 2015.

As a result of a cost base which 15 1n the short term relatvely fixed,
growth in revenue In our attractions typically flows through to
hugher profits and margins. Margins in each of the Operating
Groups are affected by the source and mix of revenue n the
existing estate together with the development of new attractions
and accommodation which typically have lower margins than the
existing estate and that incur costs in the pre-opening period
Increases in Central costs to support the increasing breadth

and scale of the business will also impact margins. To maintain

or Improve margins, we continue to review our productivity to
mtigate the Impact of the cost pressures that the business is facing,

Operating profit

Depreciation and amortisation grew by 10.3% to £131 million,
This increase primarily reflects the execution of our strategic
growth drivers, for exarmnple the roll out of Midway attractions
and resort posttioning, as well as continued investment in
shorter Iife assets such as IT. On a constant currency basis,
underlying operating profit decreased by 6.29% to £302 million,

Interest

MNet underlying finance costs of £43 million were incurred

in 2006 (2015 £41 rmufhon), reflecting the impact of adverse
movements In exchange rates. At reported exchange rates this
movemnent outweighed the positive full year impact of lower
underlying borrowing costs following the refinancing and bond
issuance in 2315 together with interest income related to the
Big Bus Tours investment.

Taxation
The underlying tax charge of £62 million represents an effective
tax rate of 23.8% (2015 27 9%).

The Group's effective tax rate has fallen from 27.9% (based on
underlying results) to 23.8%, primanly due to the restructure of
the Group's external and internal financing arrangements in 2015,
which were put in place to support development and ongoing
funding needs in overseas territories. In addition, the revaluation
of ltalian deferred tax labilties due to the future reduction in
rates resulted in a one off benefit.

Going forward we expect the ongoing effective tax rate to be
higher than that reported for the 2016 financial peniod. which

incorporated the one off benefit noted above, Further detal 15
provided in note 2.4 to the financial statements,

Foreign exchange rate sensitivity

Merlin 1s exposed to fluctuations in foreign currency exchange
rates on transactions and the translauon of our non Sterling
earnings. Retranslating 2015 performance at 2016 rates would
resutt in a £101 millien benefit to revenue and a £3% million
benefit to EBITDA. We set this out in more detail by major
currency on page 171,

Dividend

The Company's policy 1s to pay a dwvidend wath a target range
of 35-40% of underlying profit after tax, so as to mamntain an
appropriate level of dividend cover whilst retaining sufficient
caprital n the Group to fund continued re-nvestment

in the business.

In September 2016 we paid an intenm dividend of 2.2 pence
per share and the Board 15 recommending a final dvidend of
4.9 pence per share. This equates to a full year dwidend of 7.1
pence per share,

When making proposals for the payment of dwvidends, the
Directors consider the resources avalable to the Company
and its subsidiares. Specifically they have taken account of the
Company's significant distributable profits (see note vi to the
Company financial statements on page 169), as well as the
liquidty of the Group.
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Cash flow There were no refinancing costs or any repayment of borrowings
in the year (2015 cash outflow of £137 milfion).
2016 2015
53 weeks 52 weeks
" fm " £m Leverage on net debt at the year end equates to 2.3x underlying
EBITDA (2015 2 3x) Going forward, we consider the range of
EBITDA 451 402 2-3x net debt to EBITDA to be an appropriate level of leverage
Working capital and other movements 32 (18) for the Group.
Tax paid (50) (59) Net assets
2016 2015
Net cash inflow from operating activities 433 325 £m fm
Capital expenditure (259) (215) Property, plant and equipment 1,841 1,495
Other investing activities (33) 5) Goodwill and intangible assets 1,017 923
Proceeds from share capital 2 - Investments and other 62 72
- - - - non-current recevables
Interest paid. net of interest received (40) (40
. Working capital (178) 129
Dwvidends paid (67) (64)
Net debt (1,025) (937)
Other 4 -
Corporate and deferred tax (180) (142)
Net cash inflow before refinancing 40 N
and repayment of borrowings Employee benefits {1 (5)
Refinancing and repayment of borrowings - (137) Other habilties (98) (78)
Net cash inflow/{outflow) for the year 40 (137) Net assets 1,428 1,149

Merlin cortinues to be highly cash generative, with a net
operating cash flow after tax for the 53 weeks to 31 December
2016 of £433 million (52 weeks to 26 December 2015

£325 rmwlhon)

This reflects EBITDA of £451 millon augmented by £32 milion
of working caprtal and other movemerits following an £18 million
autflow in 2015. This reflects the impact of the timing of
payments, foreign exchange and non cash share-based

payment charges. Cash tax payments of £50 millien

were made during the yean

A total of £259 millon was incurred on caprtal expenditure in
2016, compnising £141 million invested in the existing estate and
£118 milon on new attractions and accommaodation. All major
capital projects are appraised both commeraally and financially
and Merlin sets clear project return targets to assist In assessing
their viabilty and to ensure appropnate proriisation.

We invested £51 milhon and £36 miflion acress cur therme park
resorts and in Midway attractions respectively, related to 2016
openings and pre-spend on future years Capital expendrture of
£31 millon was incurred in respect of the new LEGOLAND
parks currently under development.

Other investing activitias of £33 million reflect predominantly a
loan note and minority equity stake investment in Big Bus Tours
with whom we have also entered into co-promotion agreements

Property, plant and equipment increased by £346 million,
primanly reflecting the caprtal addmions referred to previously
offset by depreciation charges. together with the retranslation of
those assets at different foreign exchange rates, Foreign exchange
translation differences also account for the reported increase in
intangible assets from £323 millonto £1,017 million,

The increase in nvestments prnimarily reflects the Big Bus Tours
imvestment combined with the impact of foreign exchange due
to the investment being denominated in US Dollars

Further detals of the working capital moverments of £49 million
are provided n note 3.4 to the financial staternents.

The increase in reported net debt s due to the impact of foreign
exchange movements on non Sterling borrowings, partially offset
by cash generated in the yean

Further details are prowided in the consolidated staterment of

financial position on page |17 and the notes to the financial
statements on pages |20 to 162,
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Loan facilities
Merlin's current loan faclities are detaled in note 4.2 to
the financial statements

In addition to the Group's term debt of £1,147 mullion, a
multt-currency revolving facility of £300 milon (2015 £300
rmiflion) 15 avallable, with none drawn down at 31 December

2016 (2015 £ail.

This facility, n conunction with the Group's cash balance of
£215 milion (2015 £152 muflion), 1s avallable to finance working
caprtal requirements and caprtal mvestrment, We will continue to
seek opportunties to further diversify our sources of funding
away from the bank markets.

All covenant requirements were satisfied throughout the year.

Return on capital employed (ROCE)

Reflecting Merlin's disciplined approach to the use of capital,
the Board considers ROCE to be an important metric for
appraising financial performance and uses it, along with EPS,

in the remuneration of sermior executives The return measure
used in calcutating ROCE 15 based on underlying operating
profit after tax, The caprtal employed elernent of the calculation
15 based on average net operating assets which include all net
assets other than deferred tax, derivative financial assets and
liabitities, and net debt.

ROCE in 2016 was 10.2% (52 weeks 96%, 2015 9 7%), reflecting
the fall in the effective tax rate and the impact of the 53 week
reporting period. See page 171 for how ROCE is calculated.

Summary

Since joining the business N August 2016, | have spent ume
wisiting a number of our attractions and teams around the world,
| have been struck by therr passion and dedication for Merhn,

as well as their understanding of our strategy and what we

are trying to achieve

Whilst n a complex, global business, there are always
improverments to be made, the financial foundations are sound,
and the discplined appreach to the use of capital 1s clear, My role
15 to provide the best possible finanaial support to the business
to enable Merlin to delver on its ambitious growth plans.

We will also continue to develop our structures and processes,
supporting our groupwide focus on productivity.

In summary, | am pleased with the overall good progress made
in 2016 and look forward to being part of the next phase of
Merlin's growth'!

Anne-Francoise Nesmes
Chief Financial Officer
| March 2017

How we report our results

Period under review - this year's consolidated Group financial statements
are prepared on a ‘53 week’ basis for the period ending 31 December
2016 In most years we report on @ 52 week period In certan years an
additonal week 15 included to ensure that the statutory finanoal year end
date stays in line with the end of December Withm this report we also
present ‘52 week information for 201 & where we think it will provide

a more direct comparison of performance The difference between the
twe penods 15 the week ending 37 December 2016

Finonciat KPIs - we present our performance consistently each year
We refer to EBITDA as it is the profit measure we use internally to
measure the performance of aur attractions 1t 15 the KPI that we fee!
most appropriately captures the ongoing ability of our attractions to
generate operating cash flows which contribute to capital reinvestment
that supports further growth, service the Group's debt focilities, settle
our tax obligetrons ond provide o retum to our shareholders We refer
to ‘underlyng’ results, which remove the impoct of any excepttonal
terns and provide a more direct companson of trading performance
There were no exceptional items in 2016 In 2015 there were no
exceptionat items other than refinancing related items (and thesr

ax mpact)

In the table on page 39 ‘underlying ond ‘total’ figures for hne items
down to operating profit are therefore «dentical Net finance costs
and line terns befow are stated on an underlying bosts

All bolance sheet, and therefore cash flow information, 1s reperted as
at the statutory year end date ond therefore represents a 53 week
period i 2016 (2015 52 weeks)

Cur financial performance measures are defined in the Glossary on
pages 172 to 173 Where relevant they are clearly set out within the
consolidated Group financial statements as shown on pages | 15
162 Details regarding ROCE are set out within the ‘Gther Financial
Information secton on page | 71 The five year Financial Record

on page 170 contans further information

Reference to financral statements - further nforrmntion regarding the
Group's segmenital analyss, geographucal revenues and assets, and
certan operating costs are provided in note 2 | to the financal
staternents on poges |22 to [ 24 Those areas requining significant
jurdgement i the preparation of the finuncio! statements are
summarised o page (21
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TEAM Meriin

HIGHLIGHTS

CONTINUED FOCUS ON ENGAGEMENT, DEVELOPING
OUR TALENT AND REWARDING OUR TEAMS

OUTSTANDING EMPLOYEE ENGAGEMENT SCORES
STRONG SHARE PLAN PARTICIPATION

EXTERNAL RECOGNITION IN SUNDAY TIMES AWARDS

IMAGE
REMOVED

Natahe Bickford
Group Human
Resources Director

Employee engagement

Merlin's success rests with “Team Merlin', our extracrdinary
people who have an absclute passion for what they do,
delivering memorable expeniences to our wistors Or as
we put it, inang The Merlin Way',

The Merlin Way values capture the essence of Merln

In short, "We LOVE what we do’, "We CARE  andwe do 1t
all 'FOR THE LOVE OF FUN' These values are the reason why
so many of our employees love working here to keep on giving
our visitors the most magical, memorable experiences every
day, everywhere.

Our People Strategy underpins how the Group meets its
objectives, keeping our people engaged and focused on our
customers, Wherever they work and whatever their role, our
Job 1s to make sure that our people feel that they're working for
the best — and certainly most magical — company in our sector,
Most importantly though it is our shared wvision of doing 1t all
‘FOR THE LOVE OF FUN'

Awards
For the third year running the Sunday Times have ranked us as
one of the ‘Best Big Companies to Work For'. In this expanded

category of Top 30" companies we achieved a fantastic 20th place.

We're really proud The Job Crowd also named us as number
three in therr top five companies for graduates in our sector.

‘The Wizard Wants to Know'

Every summer we run ‘The Wizard Wants to Know', cur cnline
employee survey, We invite everybody to tell us what they think
and to make suggestions — it's our chance to find out just how
engaged our ernployees really are. YWe're excited that cur pecple,
everywhere, completed the survey, and thnlled that agan, 95% of
our respondents said that they enjoy working here We think
these scares are truly awesome!

Our employee engagement score 15 ong of Merlin's Key
Performance Indicators, measuring whether our teams think

we are a ‘Great Place to Perform’, a 'Great Place for Customers),
and a 'Great Place to Work’. This year we're really proud that our
engagement score 15 at 89%. way above the global average for
aimilar surveys run by other organisations. Ve continue to believe
that The Merlin Way' sits at the heart of these great results

Other engagement inluatives

We continue to promaote strong communications across all our
offices and attractions These include quarterly team briefs from
the executive team, attraction team briefs, newsletters and good
cld-fashioned noticeboards.

All our people can play a full part at Merln through a number
of scherres. These include,

* FOR THE LOVE OF FUN — this encourages everybody to
embed ther love of fun Into the way we work, so that it's
at the heart of everything we do.

* STAR - our online global recognition scheme where
ernployees can send ‘Stars’ to recognise colleagues who live
‘The Merlin Way', or just to say Thank You' for a job well dore.

| 37,000 'Stars’ were sert worldwide in 2016 — the most ever,
and in 2016 Star number 500,000 was sent to one of our
team from Kelly Tartton's SEA LIFE Aquarium, New Zealand,

+ Spark an |dea — another online service that lets our colleagues
share their ideas, however big or small.

+ The Merlin Y¥ay Film Competition — this gives our people
the chance to make a short wideo demonstrating just how
they make The Merlin Way' come to life This year Chang
Feng Ocean World in Shangha beat amost 80 other
entries from across the globe!
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Colleagues at LEGOLAND Windsor making 1t FUN

Diversity

Our people are the single biggest reason for our success so
we're always striving to make life at Merhin better for all of them,
Dwersity 15 a crucial part of this. We want Merlin's approach te
diversity to be recognised i every market that we operate n
and are committed to ensuring that diverse groups are fully

and properly represented at alt levels of our organisation.

We have diversity development plans aligned to our strategy
and, to support this, we've launched our ‘Managing Inclusively’
programme for all our line managers.

QOur strategy strives to ensure we have the best people for every
role, regardless of gender, race, disability, sexual orientation, or any
other factor. Wherever possible, everyone should have the same

access to every cpportunity.

We make no dfferentiation between able bodied and disabled
persons in terms of recrurtment, traming and career prograssion.
We will make every effort to continue the employrment and
training of those persons who become disabled while

ermployed by the Group.

In recent years cne of our pnimary ams has been to
increase gender diversity through our Women at Merlin
(W@M) programme, which gives women the support and
opportunities they need to achieve therr ambrtions and
develop into sentor roles

20% of our Executive Committee are now women, up from
9% in 2015. Whilst we have seen a small decline (1%) in the
percentage of our senior leadership teams at 32%, we have
increased the number to 123 women Of cur permanent
colleagues, 4,226 or 47% (2015 3,925 / 49%) are women.

As we expand into new territories, the ethnic diversity of our
tearns continues to Increase Of particular note 1s the fact that
we opened LEGOLAND Dubal with 56 different nationalities
represented within the park!

TEAM Meriin

Talent and development

Merlin’s future growth depends on recruiting and developing the
Tearn Merlin of the future. We are an entertainment cornpany,
dedicated to giving our guests unforgettable experiences, so we
seek out people who have a genuine love of fun and a natural
ability to inject magic Into the lives of our guests whenever they
visit one of our attractions,

Once they are recrurted, we commit to develop and promote
pecple within Merlin by offering amazing careers We carefully
nurture therr talents, providing them with traming to do a great
Jjob and supporting their development to enable them to take full
advantage of the fantastic opportunities avalable. We encourage
ermployees to move across disciplines, brands, and countries to
build their own urique careers like many hundreds of employees
before them, Fundamentally we believe Merlin offers a world of
opportunities, whatever they want from their next role, we

strive to offer it in Merhn'

Recruitment

Merhn eperates in a sector with high employee turnover and so
it requires considerable effort to mantain our existing employee
base. On top of this, as Merlin grows each year we need an ever
greater variety of roles and skills and offer an increasingly wide
range of opportunities This becomes increasingly challenging

as we enter new terrtories to support our growth strategy.

As a result we have been working closely with our recrurters

to give them the skills, knowledge and creativity they need to
find and select candidates who have the night skills and

attitudes for long and successful careers with us

Technology plays a key role in our hiring strategy and application
process 56 we continue to put special emphasis en our social
media activities and how we present cur internal employer
brand and values to the outside world, In developing markets,
we continue to buld relationships that will help us Improve

our campaigns there,

‘YWelcome to Team Merlin’

Hinng so many new people every year means that wherever
in the world our new peaple join us, they need to recerve a
clear, consistent and fun mnduction inte our magical business.
Bulding on from last year's successful launch of our global
induction programme, 2016 saw the launch of our online,
interactive format to meet the needs of cur ever expanding
global workforce,

In 2016, we continued our ‘Senior Leader Induction’ with a total
of 65 new leaders attending, a large proportion coming from
our new openings Bringing together new leaders from across
the Merlin family for an exciting five days. the induction gives
themn a fabulous opportunity to network and a chance to
improve their understanding of the whole Merlin business,

our strategy, The Merlin Way' and how they can contribute

to our continuing success as a Meriin leader,

45



TEAM Meriin

Training

Whether customer facing, n a management role or a support
function at any of our attrachons, or In a position at cne of cur
corporate offices, our goal is to allow everyone to have the right
skilis to be the best at what they do and fulfil their potential In
their career with Merlin, A key component of this is the wealth
of training we provide. Aside from the intial induction. there are
opportunities specific to an indwdual’s role and an abundance
of learring opportunities to further enhance their careers,

Accelerate

Accelerate 15 our fast track graduate programme which provides
tailored roles for marketing and general management positions
and 1s structured to support individuals at every step of ther
Merlin career The success of the programme was demonstrated
in 2016 by more than 25 of our Accelerate alumni being
promoted Into semior postions across the Group. Reflecting
our global scale and growth plans, the September 2017 intake
will include 30 super-talented recruits from across the UK,
MNorth Amenca. China, Hong Kong, Japan and South Korea.

Leadership development programmes

We want our leaders to constantly grow and develop so

we offer lots of brillant leadership development programmes.
These nclude partnerning with the IMD Business School in
Switzerland to provide our senior executives with exceptional
leadership deveiopment Cur flagship XCalibre” programme. n
partnership with Kingston University, 1s for leaders with bags
of potential. There 1s also the 'Merlin Leadership Programme’,
which we run regionally to ensure it reaches all our leaders

And finally, to complement ali our other learming, at any tme
our teams can access Merlin's School of Magic, our online
traiming resource run with the renowned Ashridge Business
School, and the IMD Learning Hub, which features articles and
videos from close to 100 business sources across the globe,

Compensation and benefits

When you rely on your people as much as we do. it 1s essential
to provide compensation and benefit programmes which are
competitive and which support our business and culture,

In a number of cur markets there 1s an increasing focus on rising
minimum wage levels, for nstance with the UK National Living
Wage and many US states setting out plans for annual increases
In the next few years Recogrising this we plan to deliver greater
productivity through rescurce efficencies and more motivated,
better rewarded employees

Share plans

We want as many of our colleagues as possible to 'Own a Plece
of the Magic' by taking up shares In Merlbn, This is a great way of
making Team Merhn even mare committed TO our success.

2016 saw the third annual awards under the Merlin Employee
Sharesave Plan. This gives our permanent colleagues a chance to
build up a holding of Merlin shares by saving over a three year
pericd and buying shares at a discount. We are thnlled that, so
far, almost 39% of our permanent colleagues worldwide have
enrclled In the Sharesave plans. Locking forward, 2017 wall

see employees receive shares from the first Sharesave plan
launched in 2014,

We also made more than 400 share awards to colleagues at
executive, senior and middle management levels under our
long term incentive plans.

Other benefits inmiatives

Building on the extended Healthcheck programme that was
established last year we are going further to look after the
wellbeing of all of our colleagues. We call this 'Be Well

and cur focus 1s on five areas

» Be Happy - covering all aspects of emotional wellbeing, for
example incorporating our Employee Assistance Programme.

» Be Active - coverng physical wellbeing and health

* Be Secure - financial wellbeing, including retirement
and heafth insurance.

* Be Mindful - covering rental wellbeing and harnessing
employee focus to drive engagement and productivity.

= Be Involved - scaial wellbeng, including engagement in our
Force for Good chartable and environmental intiatives.

We continue to move large numbers of colleagues around the
world to support our business growth, particularly in Asia and
North America in support of our Midway and LEGCLAND
attractions as they step up their development. Our international
mobility team is invaluable 1In helping us move cur greatest
assets safely, securely and comfortably

Summary

Having joined Merlin in April 2016, ) have been incredibly
impressed by the team's dedication, hard work and commitment.
The fact that their love of The Merkn Way' and passion to
create truly memorable expenences has been recognised for

a third year running by the ‘Best Big Companies’ survey 1s
absolutely fantastic.

Merlin 1s a truly magical company, but we can't rest on our laurels.
With a team of 27,000 n peak season and potentially another
7000 as we delver our 2020 milestones, our focus on recruiting
and retaining the best talent, nurturing current and future
business leaders and driving productivity will be the foundations
for continuing to build on Merhn's remarkable success.
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RISKS

and uncertainties

MERLIN'S RISK MANAGEMENT FRAMEWORK

TOP
DOWN

Oversight,
identification,
assessment
and mitigation
at corporate
level

Identification,
assessment
and mitigation
at attraction
and function
level

BOTTOM
UP

OVERSIGHT - THE BOARD

¢« Overall responsibility for nsk management and internal control systems

+ Sets strategic objectives and defines risk appetite

* Provides tone and direction for risk management processes

* Monitors risks against Group strategy to ensure they are proportionate and considered

MONITORING AND REPORTING - REGULAR UPDATES TO THE BOARD

Health, Safety and Security Audit Committee

(HS5) Committee

Commercial and Strategic Risk
Management Committee

Charred by the CFO Chaired by the Group Chairman Charred by a Non-executive Director

Members from the Board and Members are Non-executive Directors

Executive Committee

Members from the

Executive Committee
Meets five tmes a year

Meets quarterly Meets four times a year

Responsible for oversight and guidance  Responsible for the promotion of a Responsible for ensuning that the

on the identification, mitigaton and
monitoring of commercial risk

positive and proactive safety culture to
ensure that the Group complies with
legislation, meets or exceeds industry

Group meets its external financal
reporting and compliance obligations,
manages the mitigation of financal risks

as well as assessing the effectiveness of
the Group's overall approach to sk
management and internal control.

standards and above all safeguards
our guests, employees, visitors and
contractors within our care

Oversight of the treatment of animals Oversight and guidance on the Cversight and guidance on the
N our care to ensure we meet the high  identification, mitigation and monitoring  identification, mitigation and
standards our stakeholders expect of risks In connection with HSS, monitering of risks In connechion
with finzncial management.

Annual review of the output of attractions and central functions risk assessment workshops

Participation in the regular cycle of HSS, strategic, and operational reviews, to assess whether rmaterial changes in the
external landscape or recent trading trends require an alternative approach to monitoring and managing risk.

INTERNAL CONTROL FRAMEWORK

Manage ment
Structure

Strategic Planning, Risk Management
and Business Performance Monitoring

Policies 2nd Procedures

Controls - Financial, Operational, IT, HSS, Business continuity

RISKS
OPERATIONAL SAFETY SCCURITY ANIMALWELFARL
MARKET FINANCIAL TECHNOLOGICAL ENVIRONMENTAL
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RISKS and uncertainties

Risk appetite

In fulfiling the Group's strategy. proportionate and considered
commercial risks are taken to maximise profitable growth and
sustamable returns for its investors, The amount of risk the Group
is wiling to take to achieve such commercial success must never
compromise the health, safety and security of guests, employees,
centracters, anmals or other vistors k must alsc be aligned

with the Group's policies on sustanability and the emvironment.

Quantrtative and qua!fcatlve measures are used to ensure there
is effective governance, monitaring and measurement of the
Group's appetrte for nsk. Quantitative measures include defined
financial and non-financial targets such as EBITDA, ROCE, and
Customer Satisfaction scores. Qualttative measures consicler
tems such as reputational impact and compliance with laws
and regulations

In assessing the principal risks the Group faces, the nisk appetite

parameters set by the Board fall into two distinct categories.

+ Compliance risk - this covers the requirement to comply with
legislatve or regulatory requirements n all terrrtories where
the Group operates. bt includes, but 1s not imited to, nde
safety. accounting practices, fraud and bribery, as well
as ensuring compliance wrth the Group's values and ethical
principles. In these circumstances the Board 1s risk averse and
does not countenance any breaches in compliance obhigations,

+ Commercial risk - this covers the willing acceptance of a risk
to earn a commercial reward, The Group manages this type
of risk by empioying an appropriate analysis of threats and
opportunities together with structured review processes,
independent expert opinions and decision-making authorty
levels. Factors such as the scale of possible commeraal
upside, the potential market size, the quantum of downside
risk and timescales involved may all be relevant to
commercial risk decisions,

Risk management

Afttraction and central function risk registers record the prinaipal
risks faced for each of the following three components: health,
safety and securtty; commeraal and strategic, and financial
process. The registers include a risk rating based on an
assessment of kelhood and impact, after taking into account
existing mitigating control measures, for example managemenit
oversight and independent review. Where this assessment
indicates a high residual risk, further assessment 15 performed
both lecally and by the risk management commitiee to consider
if further mitigating action 1s required.

Regular reviews of the risk registers and planned actions provide
the basis for ongaing rsk management. A formal review process
takes place annually to ensure that the significant nisks and
mitigating activities at an attracton and Operating Group fevel
are incorporated Into the strategic business planning cycle.

The Board gains assurance over risk management systems

from the regular reporting it receives on the structured internal
assurance programmes covering both finanaal processes and
health, safety and security controls across the Group In addition,
independent third party subject matter experts are also used for
detaled reviews concerning specific risk 1ssues,

Internal control framework

Cur internal control framework 1s designed to ensure,

= proper finanaal records are mantained,

+ the Group's assets are safeguarded,

» complance with laws, regulations and policies and procedures
including those relating to health and safety matters; and

+ effective and efficient operation of business processes.

The framework s supported by ‘The Merlin Way', our corporate
values, which underpin everything we do. It 1s the Board's am
that these values should drive good behaviours and actions by

all employees.

The key elements of the internal control framework are
described below

Management structure

Qur management structure has clearly defined reporting lines,
accountabilties and authorty levels The principal operating
business units are led by a member of the Executive Committee
and each attracton has its own seruor leadership team,

Strategrc planning, risk management and business

performance monitoring

Our five year strategic plan (being the current year together with
four future years) 1s updated by managerment and reviewed by
the Board annually This also includes an assessment of how the
principal nsks could prevent strategic objectives being achieved,

Business objectives and performance measures are set
annually together with budgets and forecasts. Regular business
performance reviews are conducted at both Operating Group
and iIndvidual attraction level.

Cur pipeline for the delivery of new attractions 1s reviewed

regularly to.

* assess whether new compelling expertences and attractions
in development are progressing according to schedule,

+ dentify new ideas and assess fit with our brand portfolio; and

+ assess the expected commercial returns.

Policies and procedures

The Group maintains policies and procedures across all areas

of the business, The appropriateness and application of these 15
cortinuously manitored to ensure compliance, as well as to assess
their appropnateness as the business grows and external factors
change. Assurance concerning comphance with the policies and
procedures comes from a number of sources that include HSS,
financial and operaticnal audit activities and self-certfication,
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Controls

QOur key contrels are as follows

* Operational - there are a range of control measures and
performance indicators in place to ensure the effective and
efficient operation of our attracthons and te give our guests
safe and memorable wvistts.

* Health, Safety and Security - all our sites operate using a
well established Safety Management System designed to ensure
that they cperate In compliance with relevant regulatory
and legislative requirements Regular HSS internal audrts are
undertaken to confirm this 1s the case, ensuring that any safety
and securtty matters are understood and dealt with promptly.
Further information can be found in the HSS Committee
Report on pages 70to 75.

* Information Technology - the Group has a wide range of IT
technical, securmy, and disaster recovery controls to ensure that
it has a stable infrastructure platform from which to operate.

+ Financial - our controls are designed to prevent and detect
financial misstatement or fraud and operate at three levels,
Oversight controls are typically performed by senior managers
at Group and business unit level. Month end and year end
procedures are performed as part of our regular financial
reporting and management processes, Transactional level
controls operate on a day-to-day basis. To specfically address
potential fraud risks at a transactional level, a group of
profit protection professionals are employed to support
management in addressing these risks at an attraction level

RISKS and uncertainties

* Business continuity planning - the Group has in place disaster
recovery plans incorporating escalation procedures and cnsis
management protocols. They are regularly updated. More
broadly, business continuity plans exist to allow attractions
to renstate performance In the event of adverse events,

Plans for 2017

We continue to refine and strengthen our internal control
framework where required within our existing estate and
recently opened attractions,

The implementation of accesso®, our new admissions system,

1s expected to help in this regard as it will deliver improvements
in our control framework through standardisation of business
processes and greater automation of transactional level and
period end control activties.

Principal risks

Management has identified and agreed the principal risks with
the Board, which are set out on the following pages. Of these,

a number are deemed 1o be genenic nsks facing businesses
including, but not Imited to, falure to comply with financiat
reporting regulations, adverse movements in foreign exchange
and interest rates, credit risk and non-complance with legislation.

Yiability Statement

In accordance with provision C 2 2 of the UK Carporate Governance
Code 2014, the Directors have assessed the viabiity of the Group over @
four year penod, taking mto account the Group's current pesition and the
botential impact of the principal risks documented on pages 50 to 52
of the Annual Report. Based on this assessment, the Directors confirm
that they have a reasonable expectation that the Company will be able
to continue In operation and meet its habilities as they fall due over the
period unt! December 2020

The Group's strategic planming brocess accurs annually on a roling basis,
w1 the muddie of the vear. covering the current year plus four further years
The strategic plan considers alf elements of the Group's growth strategy
It focuses on caprtol investment in the existing estate, where the review
period motches or 15 10 excess of bre deterrmuned capital nvestment
cycles: new business development ncluding the rofl out of Midway
attractions and the development of committed new LEGOLAND parks,
and the expansion of aur accammodation portfolic The Group afso
considers strategic acguisiion opportumties and other uncommitted
potential major capita! projects within the plan penod to ossess the
ovalobiity of oppropriate funding Accordingly the Directors have
deterrmined that a four year penod to December 2020 s an
appropriate beriod over which to provide its viability staterment

The Board alse carred out a robust assessment of the prinapal nsks
focng the Group, including those that would threaten its growth drvers,
future performance solvency or hquidity as well as the Group's approach
to risk management as set out in this Strategc Report

The outputs from these reviews were then used to perform liguicity and
debt covenant headroom analysis including the downside sensitavity
review based on principaf nsks

While the review has considered alf the princibal risks identified by the
Group, severe but plousible events were focused on for enhianced stress
testing Examples nclude nde safely inadents and acts of terronsm

The results take into account the controls implermented by the Group

as well as the avarlobifity and iikely effectiveness of specfic mitigating
actions that could be taken to avosd or reduce the impact or accurrence
of the identified underfung nsks The diversification of the Group's
attractions helps minmise the nsk of senous business interrupton for
many of its prinaipal nsks, for example extreme weather conditions or
changing economic and political enwironments It s important to note that
a significant portion of planned spending on both the existing estate and
for new busimess develapment is discretionary in nature This gives us
flexibility to monage cash flows Merbn's abilty to flex the cast base

and the ability to rephase or delay capital imvestment provides some
protectton to our viability in the face of macro events or uncertamiy

not i the Group's control

Merhn's banking fooiities currently mature in March 2020 Toking into
account Merln's profitabity ond frnancial position it 1s antiapated that
the Group will be able to refinance these bank focfiies The Group will
undertake a process to extend or replace these facities well n advonce
of the expiry date and therefore the Group does not. consider there to
be any matenal impact on the wabiity assessment
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RISKS and uncertainties

The tables on the follewing pages highlight the sigrificant specific
risks identified through the Group's risk assessment processes
that have the potential to impact on the strategic development
of the Group.

The three risk committees consider both gross and net risk.
Gross risk reflects the risk exposure and risk landscape before
considering how risks are managed. Gross risks are assessed in
comparison to the previous year as to whether they are stable,
increasing or decreasing, Net risk reflects the residual risk after
risk mrtigation factors.

Effectiveness of risk management and internal

control systems

In accordance with the UK Corporate Governance Code 2014,

the Board s responsible for reviewing the effectiveness of the

Group's risk management and internzl control systems, and

confirms that.

» there s an ongoing process for identifying, assessing, managing
and manitoring the Group's principal risks,

* managements assessment of the princaipal risks 15 considered
to be appropnate and those risks that have the potential to
impact Iquidity have been considered in the assessment of
the Group's viability,

* the principal rnisks and internal control processes have been
considered by management and the Board throughout the
year; and

* no significant failings or weaknesses in internal controt
processes have been identified,

Based on its review throughout the year, the Board is satisfied
that the risk management and internal cortrol systems in place
remain effective.

EU Referendum

The Board has considered the impact of the UK's referendum
on membership of the EU (Brexit) upon the business and
reflected on 1ts previous risk assessments in light of this
development Given the Group’s global footprint and the fact
that an attraction's cost base and supply chain will sit largely in
the indmidual country of operation, the impact 1s lmited In the
short term, currency movernents have affected our London
businesses as described elsewhere in this Annual Report and
have affected the translation of the results of our overseas
operations into Sterling (as set out in the Group Financial
Review on pages 38 to 42). These conditions may continue
into the future, In the mediurm term, a shift In the avallability
of skills in the UK workforce could impact recrutrment in

our UK businesses, which the Group will cortinue to monttor,

Gross
Description risk trend  How risks are managed
Health, safety and security risk (H5S)
Safety Health and safety is one of Merlin’s Stable » Regular review of performance as well as key policies
Key Performance Indicators and procedures
Serious mcidents leading to guests, staff rmembers + Proactive ownership of HSS risks by ine management
or contractors being harmed as a result of based on the provision and adoption of H55 policies,
Codes of Practice and guidance notes
+ afalure to follow prescribed safety management o
» Competent and traned operational and engineening staff,
systemns in connection with the operation
monitoring and iInspecting facilities in accordance with a
of ndes,
planned maintenance and inspection regime backed up
* inadequate maintenance and management b f | HSS +
t buldings, infrastructure and vegetation y projessiona sams
@ bt dgc.I buld aual p g p ' » Utilisation of HSS systems to support the management
substandard buld quality, asset degradatian, of nisks with annual nsk register and action planning
fire, flood, storm or utiity falure.
processes by each attraction
* Regular internal and independent external auditing
Furthermore, this could undermine confidence to and review regimes,
wist the Group’s attractions and adversely impact on + Contractor selection, approval and monrtoring by
the reputation and growth potental of the business in-house qualified project managers.
Security Sabotage or a terrorsst attack on. increasing  « Application of detaled security protocols before guests

* ande or attraction leading to a guest or staff
member or animal In our care being harmed, or
+ alocation Inwhich the Group operates

This could iInfluence guest confidence to wisit the
Group's attractions or the attraction's location
thereby impacting on the growth potential of
the busingss

or employees access an attraction (e.g. bag searches)
» Regular reviews of attraction infrastructure to reduce the
opportunity for physical threats to guests, staff or arimals
Extensive use of CCTV
Regularly tested major inadent management plans
Co-operation with lacal and national security forces
Avalability of appropriate insurance cover

-

50



RISKS and uncertainties

Gross
Description risk trend  How risks are managed
Commercial and strategic risk
Innovation, Customer satisfaction 1s one of Meriin’s Stable * Regular and detalled customer feedback collected at
brand Key Performance Indicators. every location. Data analysed against challenging
development Our growth potental could be impacted if guests satisfaction targets and actions taken accordingly
and customer « Ongoing investment n our attractions continually
satisfaction * consider our offerings are erther autdated, refreshes the experiences for customers
no longer relevant or enjoyable. or » Engagernent with the public and socal media for
* provide negative social media comments that
concerns In order to take any requisite action
adversely influence the likehhood of a customer
to wisit an attraction
People Stoff engagement is one of Merlin’s Increasing ¢ Plans to drive greater productvity through
availability and Key Performance Indicators. resource efficencies and more motivated, better
expertise Merln 15 2 people business The increasing cost of rewarded employees.
attracting and retaining appropriately experienced + Personal development plans in place at all levels of the
and well-motivated customer service onentated business to encourage long term employment stabilty
staff could impact guest satisfaction and the * Succession planning processes embedded across the
successful delvery of planned future expansion Group and preactively managed
« Annual employee survey to moritor employee
engagement and to identify opportuniues to develop
HR policies and processes.
Compeuuon Competition Increasing  * Dwersfication to reduce relance on indwidual
and Intellectual - for leisure time, attractions or locations
Property (IP) + from new ar existing providers of location * Ongaoing investment in sites to ensure cantinued
based entertanment, and appeal to visitors
= for IP around which compeling propostions + Competitor research and monitonng
are created » Dedicated in-hcuse creative team to deliver
new and innovative compelling propositions
and intellectual property
This could restrict the ability of the Group to
grow In ine with the strategic objectives
Foreign Changes in exchange rates can have a positive or Stable * Increased hedging as a result of further global
exchange rates  adverse impact on inbound tourism, if exchange diversification of the Group's operations
Impacting rates work against a country in which the Group + Ability to proportionally upweight marketing actvity
international generates a hugh proportion of its revenue this towards either domestic or international audiences
tourism can adversely iImpact visitation, depending on tourism trends
Ammal welfare Incidents or staff behaviours leading to amimals Stable + External zoo licence audits ensure appropriate
In our care being harmed as a result of amimal care
+ afalure to follow prescribed welfare « Aninternal ethics committee and the Merhn Ammal
protocols, or Welfare and Development team monitor the
« Inadequate maintenance and management treatment of animals in our care.,
of bulldings, iInfrastructure and vegetation « A comprehensive range of policies, standards, procedures
and gudelnes specifically addressing animal acquistion,
Furthermore, this could result in reputational \Trveh'are and cisplay
+ Training programmes for all staff that interact
damage. A negative reaction from the gereral woith ammals
public would undermine the performance of the + Planned preventative mant rammes b
pi aintenance programmes to
business and Imit the potential for growth ensure bulldings, infrastructure and vegetation remain
sutable for displaying the animals in our care
Availabilicy The ability of the Group to grow in line with Stable + Experienced site search and business developrment

and dehlvery of
new sites and
attractions

the strategic objectives could be inhibrted by
the lack of

+ economically viable sites to locate Midway
attractions and LEGOLAND parks, and

« timely approval of planning consent required for
bullding new rides and attractions

teams, working several years in advance to mantain
a strong pipeline of expansion opportunities

Sites regularly update ther development masterplans
and teams work closely on fostering links with local
communities and planning authorrties

The introduction of a dedicated New Openings team
in 2015 expands the Group’s resources 1o support its
roll cut strategy
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RISKS and uncertainties

Gross
Description risk trend  How risks are managed
Commercial and strategic risk {contimued)
IT robustness, The Group has vanious IT systems and applications  Increasing + 1T strategy focused on ensuring the long term stability
technological operating across its estate, the obsolescence or of operating systems and data securrty, whilst keeping
developments fallure of which could iImpede trading or the ability pace with the changing face of consumer T expectations,
and cyber to operate an attraction * Increasing reshence and stability of the Group's IT
security Without the technical developrments necessary infrastructure and security through an expanded use of
1o meet consumer or business expectations the secured hosting partners and penetration testing regimes,
Group may fall to deliver the growth required + Further secunty measures have been put in place to
by the business strategy mitigate the increasing threat of cyber securty risk
Fallure to put in place adequate preventative
measures.if attacked, could lead to data loss
or inability to use the IT systems for a
prolonged period
Financial process risk
Anu-bribery and  While Merhn’s business model s lower risk relative  Stable » A well embedded corporate culture i which fraud
corruption to other ndustries as the majority of transactions and bribery at any level are not tolerated
are of low value and from indwidual customers, » Global fraud and bribery training programme in place
a number of the terntones in which Merlin 1 alongside a fraud policy sign off for all staff
operating and proposing to enter have a greater « Effective finanaial and contractual controls with regard to
historic propensity for inadents of bribery procurement activities, Internal audit monitors purchasing
and corruption processes on a rotational basis.
Any such ncident could lead to ether crminal = A separate profit protection team monitors for theft or
or awil prosecution, fines and cause reputational other criminal actvity across the Group and ensures
damage to the Group best practice for protection s shared between sites
» A whistleblowing policy 15 in place together with an
independently operated employec hotline,
Liquidity / Alack of lquidity could nhibit the ability of Reducing » The Group has a £300 million mutt-currency
Cash flow risk the Group to grow in ine with the strategic revolving credit facility to assist with seasonal cash
objectives if flow requirernents as necessary
+ nsufficient cash 15 generated during peak * MWeekly cash flow forecasts are prepared to ensure
trading periods to caver fixed costs and capital liquidity for business operations on an ongemng basis
investments fincluding strategic acquistions, the + Plans cover at least four future years and are
roll out of Midway atiractions. the development reviewed regularly to ensure sufficent financial
of new LEGOLAND parks and new headroom exists and to meet the covenant tests
accommodation offerings), or set out in the Group's banking facilities,
+ changes in the global credit market impact the + Merhn maintains strong relationships with a number
Group's long term ability to meet current of lenders and keeps the debt markets under review
growth targets, in arder to ensure that funding can be obtaned at
the nght time and at the nght price to ensure the
avallability of funds to meet its strategic growth plans
* The continued geographical expansion of the Group
reduces the exposure to any one peak trading period.
Foreign Merlin generates its main profits in Sterling, Increasing  » The Group presents constant currency figures where
exchange Euros and US Dollars and has long term appropriate to show the underlying results of the

transfation risk

debt in these currencies,

Merlin reports its results in Sterling and 1s therefore
subject 1o transtation nisk from exchange rate
fluctuations when reporting its consohdated results,

Group excluding the impact of foreign exchange
rate translation differences

Treasury policies in place and reviewed annually
with regular reviews of currency exposures
Broad match of borrowings in the currencies
of underlying profits

Currency exposures hedged where appropriate

52



BEING A FORCE
FOR GOOD

Corporate Social Responsibility - The Merlin Way

MISSION

BEING A

FORCE FOR

GOOD

WE ARE SUPERHEROES

FOR PEOPLE

FOR OUR PLANET

Merlin's Magic Wand

Delvering memorable
experiences to
disadvantaged
children across

Accessibility

Providing memorable

expenances and
environments that
are accessible

SEA LIFE and
WILD LIFE

Protecting wildlife
through targeted
global campaigns

Sustainability and
the Environment

Operating the business
within a culture
of responsible

the globe to all and actwity sustainability
WE ARE A GOOD CORPORATE CITIZEN
Do it with Do itin the Do it Do it Right
Team Merlin Community Responsibly

Recognised by
employees, partners
and other stakeholders
as a company that cares

Being a Force for
Goad in every

community in which

we operate

Delrvering our
EXperiences In 4
safe, and socally

CONSCIoUS way

Operating our business
In accordance with
robust governance

standards and
practices




BEING A FORCE FOR GOOD Corporate Social Responsibility

MERLIN'S
MAGIC WAND

In 2016 our children’s charity Merlin’s Magic Vand
(MMW) has continued to grow with Mertin teams in
every attraction getting involved in creating magic.

MAGICAL DAYS OQUT

MERLIN'S MAGIC SPACES

COMMUNITY OUTREACH

IMAGE REMOVED

IMAGE REMOVED

IMAGE REMOVED

Providing days out to over 86,000
children and their families,

Creating |5 exciting Merlin’s
Magic Spaces, taking the total
to 3| worldwide.

Making a difference to over 3,500
children in our local communities
by taking the Magic to them in
hospitals and hospices.

66

never know how

You will

much we needed

P

that day

IMAGE REMOVED

Excellent

for giving my son
a day out away
from hospital

appointments

22
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BEING A FORCE FOR GOOD Corporate Soctal Responsibility

DURING THE MONTH OF SEPTEMBER WE CELEBRATED

IMAGE REMOVED

IMAGE REMOVED

IMAGE REMOVED

IMAGE REMOVED

FUN

FESTIVAL!

IMAGE REMOVED

IMAGE REMOVED

IMAGE REMOVED

IMAGE REMOVED

TO FIND OUT MORE VISIT WWW.MERLINSMAGICWAND.ORG

IMAGE REMOVED

66

have a good day, our

It is rare to

day out was magical

and we will never

o)

forget it

LOGO REMOVED
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BEING A FORCE FOR GOOD Corporate Secial Responsibifity

Accessibility

We am to provide experiences and environments that are
accessible to all We want to provide industry leading facilities
and experiences.

The cornerstones of our approach are:

Guest Information
« We will prowide clear, accurate, consistent and accessible
infermation to enable wvistors to make informed choices

Accessible Environments
¢ We will make our environments as accessible as possible,
continually improving our estate.

Team Engagement

« We will ensure employees have the tools and training
to deliver memaorable expenences to accessibility
challenged puests

We make no differentiation between able bodied and disabled
persons in terms of recruitment, traming and career progression.
We will make every effort to continue the employment and
training of those persons who become disabled while

ermployed by the Group.

Community Relations

Cur attrachions continue to forge partnerships in their local
communities with local charties and other groups supporting
disadvantaged people. This happens in many different ways, from
hasting wisits for foster children through to visiting local
community centres or joining other local intiatives.

IMAGE REMOVED

Student foanne Sibley meets the Duke of Cambridge

IMAGE REMOVED

Recerved from o farmly that emoyed time together at Alton Towers Resort

A particular highlight this year was when Joanne Sibiey, a student
from Livability's Victona Education Centre in Poole, Dorset, was
invited to meet the Duke and Duchess of Cambridge at the
Coca-Cola London Eye when we hosted a 'Heads Together'
chartty coaliion for World Mental Health Day. focused on the
importance of 'psychological and mental health first aid for all'.

Merlin's Magic Wand have been working with Victornia Education
Centre for a number of years which has included a Merlin's Magic
Spaces project. jeanne has been very mvolved with the project
and the ongoing relationship between MMW and Victonia School,
so her enthusiasm and vibrant spirit made her the perfect person
to hand over the bouguet to the Duchess of Cambridge during
this important wisit.
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BEING A FORCE FOR GOQD Corporate Social Responsibility

Marine and wildlife conservation

Merlin promotes the protection of wildlife across the globe by
supporting projects and campaigns which make a real difference,
In doing this we leverage our reputation for the ethical and
responsible care, preservation and conservation of arimals

and the rmarine environment

SEA LIFE

Merin supports our offical marine conservation charity partner,
the SEA LIFE Trust, dedicated to protecting our oceans and

the amazing wildlfe that calls them home. We engage cur staff
across the SEA LIFE estate to support these activities - a great
example are our beach clean events where teams keep ther
focal beaches free of litter. SEA LIFE staff across the world alsc
helped support the Trust by running, walking, rowing and
pedalling 10,328 miles to raise funds - that's like crossing

both the indian and Atlantic Oceans!

In 2016 the Trust campaigned on marine protection In

three territories,

+  In the USA, we campaigned to support President Obama's
creation of two marine protected areas including his expansion
of the world's briggest marine protected area in Hawan,

+  In the UK, and working together with the Marine Conservation
Society, we have collected more than 53.000 signatures so far
in our efforts to protect 34 priority coastal areas.

+ In Austraha, we gathered over 10% of the total subrmissions
to the Australian Gevernment in support of 26 marine
protected areas.

Alongside this, the Trust donated over £115000 to projects and
campaigns that support wildlife and habitat across the world,

Im 2017, the Trust will launch a major campaign and fund projects
that help to protect sea turtles, which are increasingly at danger
fram fishing byeatch and plastic pollution.

WILD LIFE

Chessington World of Adventures Resort in the UK, WILD LIFE
Sydney Zoo and WILD LIFE Hamilton Island in Australia, ail have
a long standing commitment to anmal breeding or managed
species programmes - at Chessington we saw three Asiatic

Lion cubs arrive just in tme for Chiistmas!

IMAGE REMOVED

Asiatic lion cubs at Chessington World of Adventures Resort

IMAGE REMOVED

IMAGE REMOVED

IMAGE REMOVED

Examples of SEA LIFE Trust campaigns throughout the year
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Sustainability and the environment

Strategy and governance

Merlin manages resources responsibly. We recognise that our
operations Impact upon the environment and that effective
management of this iImpact 1s essential for sustainable business
success, We are committed to regular manitoring, auditing
and review of our actvaties and identifying cpportunities for
sustainable environmental improvement, in ine with our
strategic business geals and in order to minimise the
potentially harmful effects of such activity.

Ulimate responsibility for this strategy rests with the CEO,
with management teams responsible for implementation at
local and regional levels, More specific detalls can be found in
our environmental pclicy, avallable on our website,

Environment and energy management

We have speafic budgets set aside to test and implement
environmentally focused intiatives and an annual ‘Environmental
Award to motivate our sites in this area. ¥e have developed
groupwide sustainability management and carbon reduction plans
and a number of water and waste management nitiatives to
encourage sites in this area and bulld on examples of best
practice across the Group, through 2017 and beyond.

We partiopate in the UK Carbon Reduction Commitrent
(CRC) energy efficiency scheme, EU Energy Efficency Directives
and other apphcable emvaronmental regulations globally

Some examples of our numerous environmental initiatives

In the year are

¥ Lighting optirmisation at Sydney Harbeour cluster; Australia.
¥ Pump optimisation at SEA LIFE Blackpool, UK.

¥ Solar energy at Gardaland Hotel. ltaly.

¥ Solar thermal at SEA LIFE Benalmadena, Spain.

‘We Care about our Planet’ event

Qur attractions participated in our annual planet event to
support Merlin's commitment to sustamability, in line with
our "We Care’ core value.

There were a wide range of activities including

¥ We sent cimate change information materals to 1,000
students through THORPE PARK's partner schools.

v We engaged on chmate change ssues with 4,000 guests
at our SEA LIFE at LEGOLAND Calformia Resort

¥ We planted trees at THORPE PARK,

¥ SEA LIFE Timmendorfer Strand, Germany ditched their
voucher delivery car and replaced it with a bicycle!

¥ Chang Feng Ocean World, Shanghal engaged over
40 students at a sleepover event on cimate change.

Renewable solar
thermal for hot water
energy at SEA LIFE
Benalmadena, Spamn

IMAGE REMOVED

IMAGE REMOVED

Benches made from recyded plastic bottles
at LEGOLAND Flonido Resort, USA

IMAGE REMOVED

The team 1n SEA LIFE Timmendorfer Strond in
Germany replacing thewr delivery car with @ bicydle
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BEING A FORCE FOR GOOD Corporate Social Responsibility

Greenhouse gas (GHG) reporting

The Company 15 required 1o report each year on its carbon

dioxide ermissions which are set out In the table below.

The reported emissions intensity 1s affected by the impact of

foreign exchange movements on the revenue figure that forms
the intensity baseline, This has contributed & 6% to the reported
reduction of 15.8% and accerdingly the reduction on a constant
currency basis would be 9.2%. Furthermere, carbon emission

factors used in 2016 were lower compared to 2015 due to

a reduction in the use of coal for energy generation This

contributes 5 4% to the reported reduction. Our underlying

carbon emission ntensity reduction was therefore 3.8%, in

excess of our annual target which 1s to reduce our carbon

emission intensity by 2% year on year

Report boundaries

Consistency with
financial statements

Methodology

Intensity ratio

Scope |

Scope 2
Localised Based

Scope 2
Market Based

Group Gross
Emissions

Intensity baseline

Financial contral — all facilities under the
Group's direct finanaial control have
been included.

This repart covers the twelve manth
penod from | December 2615 to

30 November 2016 in comparison to
our financial year of January to
December 2016

The WRI/ WBCSD Greenhouse Gas
Protocol A Corporate Accounting and
Reporting Standard (Revised Edition)
applying emissions factors from (EA CO,
from fuel combustion (2016 edmion) and
ermissions factors from DEFRA (201 6),

Ermissions per £1 millon of revenue

19270 tonnes of CO, equivalent
(2015 18,980 tonnes)

116,814 tonnes of CO, equivalent
(2015 123,277 wnnes)

112381 tonnes of CO, equivalent
(2015 120,985 tonnes)

131,651 tonnes of CO, equivalent
(2015 139,965 tonnes)

£1,428 millson (2015 1,278 mullion)

(revenue)

Emissions 92 tonnes of CO, equivalent per
intensity £l milhon of revenue (2015 110 tonnes)
Tavle nores

¢ PR

Good Corporate Citizen

Merlin always seeks to operate ethically ang to be a ‘Good
Corporate Citizen’ Cur approach in this area 1s based on four
pillars that underpin our Force for Good intiatives where we
feel Merlin 15 uriquely placed to make a dfference

Do it with Team Merlin - the Team Merhn section of this report
provides more detalls on our employees, our extraordinary team
whose levels of engagement and enthusiasm help make Merhn
special. We lock to harness this enthusiasm to demonstrate and
remnforce our core values, especially how "We Care’, across our
workforce and more widely with our business partners and
other stakeholders of the business.

Regarding Human Rights, cur Policy 1s guided by the International
Labour Organisation Declaration on Fundamental Principles

and Rights at Work together with the OECD Guidelines for
Multinational Enterprises tt s set out in full on our website.

Do it in the community - our businesses sit at the heart of
communities around the world and cur teams are proud to be
part of and to support those communities This demonstrates

to all of Merlin's stakeholders the strength of the Company's

“We Care’ core value, This can be seen from our Merlin’s Magic
Wand activities, other community outreach inttiatives, or even how
our teams help clean beaches to support the SEA LIFE Trust!

Do it responsibly - our Health, Safety and Security (HSS)
Committee report on pages 70 to 75 sets out how we oversee
and manage HS5 risks to ensure we operate our businesses with
a constant focus on keeping our guests, employees and other
visitors safe and secure.

We alse believe there 15 a strong social conscience at the heart
of Merhn that can be seen in areas such as our ethical anmal
husbandry activities and our approach to procurement. We have
a responsibility to the workers in our supply chan and seek to
ensure our products are made in an appropriate envircnment
and the products we source are produced in accordance with
international laws and legislation, Maore detalls in this area are
avallable on our website.

Do 1t right - Merlin has robust governance standards and
practices that extend throughout the business, This starts

‘at the top with an experienced Board that is structured in line
with best practice and supported by appropriately ngorous
Board Committees. It then extends to how we identify and
manage the principal risks that could affect our business

(as set out on pages 47 to 52).

Qur full polhicies in speaific areas and further guidance on our

approach, together with answers to frequently asked questions,
can be found on our website (www merlinentertainments.biz)
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CORPORATE

Governance Statement

Introduction

Merlin has a premium Listing on the London Stock Exchange
and 1s subject to the UK Corporate Governance Code

(the Code). the Disclosure and Transparency Rules {the DTRs)
and the Listing Rules Merlin believes that effective corporate
governance 1s a fundamental aspect of a well run company

and 15 committed to mantaning high standards of corporate
governance across the Group. In this regard, Merlin takes account
of the views of its shareholders and instrtuticnal shareholder
representative bodies. The Code can be viewed on the website
of the Financial Reporting Councii {www.frc.org.uk). The [DTRs
and the Listing Rules can be viewed on the webste of the
Financial Conduct Authority (www.fshandbook.info}.

Statement of compliance
Merlin was fully comphant throughout the accournting period with
all relevant provisions of the Code, the DTRs ang the Listing Rules,

Board composition

The Board has undergone a number of changes during the year
On | January 2016, Yun (Rachel) Chiang was appointed to the
Beard as a Non-executive Director On 31 July 2016, Andrew
Carr left the Board, having announced his intention to retire n
January 2016. He was replaced as Chref Finanaal Officer on

| August 2016 by Anne-Franconse Nesmes. The appointments
of Rachel and Anne-Francoise, which have led to an increase
in Board diversity, followed ngorous search processes using
Russell Reynolds and Korn Ferry respectively, both of which
are external search comparues with no links to Merlin.

Fair, balanced and understandable

As part of the Company's commitment to mantaining high
standards of corporate governance, the Board has put in place
a process dedicated to ensuring that the Annual Report and
Accounts 1s presented in a way that i1s far, balanced and
understandable, This process includes a review of all Board
and Committee meetings to identify matters for inclusion

and a series of specific reviews undertaken by a dedicated
Disclosure Committee of senior managers.

Evaluation of effectiveness

During the year, externally faclitated evaluations were undertaken
of the effectiveness of the Board, its Committees, the Charman
and indvidual Cirectors. These were facilitated by Prism Cosec,
who are independent of the Company and also advise the
Company on company secretanal complance matters.

The evaluation nvolved the completion of questionnaires by

all Directors, the compitation of reports on the Board and each
of ts Committees by Prism Cosec and discussicns between the
Charman and each Director: The performance of the Chairman
was evaluated by the Non-executive Directors, led by the
Senior Independent Director.

The outcome of the evaluations was very positive overall and ne
major 1ssues were flagged However some areas were identified
for further improvement including

+ more Board time could usefully be spent debating key
risk topics {including identifying emerging risks such as
oyber security},

* suggestions for improving the format of the annual
Board strategy day.

+ the need to continue 1o bring further formality to the
operation of the Nomination Committee and for increased
focus on talent management and succession planning, and

* apponting an independent health and safety expert to
the Health, Safety and Secunty Comrittee.

Following the 2015 Effectiveness Review a programme of
Director training sessions was delvered in 2016, including content
on recent developments in corporate governance, such as the
impact of the new Market Abuse Regulations, speaific traning for
Audt Committee members and recent trends and regulation in
the area of executive remuneration, The terms of reference of
the Board's Committees were also reviewed in early 2016.

Formal reviews of the internal audit functien and the external
audrtors, led by the Audrt Committee, were also conducted
during the year and these concluded that both internal audit
and the external auditors remain effective,
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Investor relations

The Company communicates with institutional and private
shareholders in a number of ways and has a dedicated investor
relations team to facilitate the exchange of information and
feedback between shareholders and shareholder representative
bodies and the Company Detalls of major shareholders are
prowided on page 66

The Company undertakes regular meetings In which existing and
potentral investors are provided with informaztion on the financial
and trading position of the Group. This activity 1s led by the

CEQ and the CFO, together with the Company's investor
relations team. They report back regularly to the Board so that
the Non-executrve Directors in particular can appreciate and
discuss the wiews of shareholders, Dunng the year the Chairman
and the Company Secretary also met with many of our leading
shareholders to ensure a full and mutually constructive dhalogue.
Merlin's 2017 financial calendar 1s set out on page 174,

The Company's corporate website 1s regularty updated with news
and information. including its Annual Report and Accounts, which
set out our strategy, operating model and performance together
with our plans for future growth, Qur presentations to analysts
and sharehclders are also avalable on the Company website,

At our AGM, all shareholders have the opportunity to discuss
and raise questions concerning the performance, trading and
development of Merlin and to vote on the resolutions proposed

CORPORATE Governance Statement
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effective corporate governance

Merlin believes that

is a fundamental aspect of

a well run company and is
committed to maintaining

high standards of corporate
governance across the Group...
Merlin was fully compliant
throughout the accounting
period with all relevant
provisions of the Code, the
DTRs and the Listing Rules

22
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BOARD of Directors

The members of the Board during the year and at the date of this report are as follows:

IMAGE REMOVED

Sir John Sunderland
Charrman

IMAGE REMOVED

Nick Varney
Chref Execunve Officer

IMAGE REMOVED

Anne-Francoise Nesmes
Chief Financal Officer

Sir John was appointed Chairman of Merlin Entertanments in December 2009

Sir John s currently Chairman of Cambridge Education Group, Chancellor of
Aston University and an Asscaate Member of BUPA. He is also an adwiser to
CVC Capttal Partners,

Previously, Sir john was Charrman of Cadbury Schweppes from 2003 to 2008 and
Chief Executive Officer from 1996 to 2003, Sir john was also President of the CBI
fram 2004 to 2006, President of the Chartered Management Institute from 2006
to 2007 and President of the Food and Drink Federation from 2002 to 2004.

SirJohn was a Nan-executive Director of the Rank Group from 1998 to 2006
and a Director of the Financial Reporting Councll from 2004 to 201 1. 5ir John
was a Non-executive Director of Barclays Bank PLC from 2005 to 2015 and
of AFC Energy plc from 2012 to 2015.

Nick has over 25 years' expenence in the visitor attractions industy and was
appointed Chief Executive Officer of Merlin Entertainments in 1999.

Prior to Merlin. Nick was Managing Director of Varden Attractions and a main
board Dwector of Vardon plc. In 1999 Nick led the management buyout of Vardeon
Attractions to form Merhn Entertainments In 2005 he nitiated the process which
led to its acquisition by Blackstone and subsequent rapid expansion, taking the
Company to ts 2013 Listing on the Landon Stock Exchange.

Before joining Vardon Attractions, Nick held senior positions within The Tussauds
Group (then a part of Pearson plc), including Marketing Director of Alton Towers
and Head of Group Marketing. He started his career in FMCG marketing first
with Rowntree and then Reckitt & Colman.

Anne-Francoise was appointed Chief Financial Officer in August 2016, With over 23
years' experience in finance across international organisations, Anne-Francoise brings
a strong focus on strategy execution, M&A, process improvement and governance.

Anne-Francoise started her career in the UK as a finance graduate trainee at
John Crane, before moving to Tetra Pak, then ADP and later Caterpillar UK.

In 1997, she joined GlaxoSmithKine and held a variety of increasingly senior roles
across the organisation in the UK and overseas, including Senior Vice President
of Finance for Vaccines.

In April 2013, Anne-Francoise joined [Dechra Pharmaceuticals PLC as Chief
Financial Officer, where she was instrumental in transforming Dechra into a
successful pharmaceutical company specialising i arimal health, She led the
expansion of its international foctprint through acquisitions and delvered
significant efficiencies through modermising Finance and R&D processes.
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BOARD of Directors

IMAGE REMOVED

Yun (Rachel) Chiang

Non-executive Director

IMAGE REMOVED

Charles Gurassa
Senior independent
Non-executve Director

IMAGE REMOVED

Fru Hazlitt
NOH-EXGCUUVS DH’ECIOr

Rachel was apponted a Non-executive Director of Merlin Entertainments with
effect from | January 2016.

She has extensive expenence of the Asian consumer and property markets, having
held a number of senior executive and non-executive roles in the regron.

Rachel 15 currently Partner and founding member of the private equity activities

of Pacfic Allance Group (PAG), one of the region’s largest Asia-focused alternative
investrment managers with over $16 billion in funds under management across Private
Equity, Real Estate and Hedge Funds. She currently holds Non-executive positions

with Hong Kong-listed Sands China (a majority-owned subsidiary of Las Vegas Sands),
Heng Kong-hsted Pacific Century Premium Developments (PCPD} which specialises

I the development and management of prermium property and infrastructure projects
in the Asiz Pacfic region and Hong Kong-listed Goodbaby International Ltd, a leading
manufacturer of children’s durable products.

Charles was appointed Senior Independent Non-executive Director of Merlin
Entertanments and Chairman of the Remuneration Commuittee in 2013,

Charles 1s the Non-executive Chairman of Channel 4, Deputy Chairman at Easylet plc and
a trustee of English Hertage and the Migration Museum Until January 2017 be was the
Non-executive Chairman of Genesis Housing Association, a posrtion he held since 2010.

Charles 1s a former Chairman of Virgn Mobile plc, LOVERLM, Phones4l, MACH, Tragus,
MNetNames, Parthenon Entertanments and Alamo/National Rert a Car and the former
Deputy Charman of the National Trust.

His executive career included roles as Chief Executive of Thomson Travel Group plc,
Executive Charman TUI Northern Europe, Director TUI AG and as Director, Passenger
& Cargo business at British Arrways. He 1s a former Non-executive Director at
Whitbread ple, trustee of the children’s charity Whizz-Kidz and a member of the
develepment board of the University of York

Fru was appointed a Non-executive Director of Merhn Entertainments in 2014

Fru was formerly Managing Director, Commeraal, Cnline and Interactive at ITY, and
previously Chief Executive Officer at GCap Media ple and Virgin Radie. Prior to that Fru
spent six years at Yahoo! where her roles included Managing Director, UK and Ireland,
and Sales and Marketing Director;, Eurcpe.

She 15 now a Gavernor of Downe House School and has also served as a
Non-executive Director on the Boards of Betfarr Plc and Woolworths Plc,
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IMAGE REMOVED

Ken Hydon
MNon-executive Direclor

IMAGE REMOVED

Trudy Rautio
Non-executive Director

IMAGE REMOVED

Seren Thorup Serensen
Non-executve Director

Andrew Carr

BOARD of Directors

Ken was appointed a Non-executive Director and Chairman of the Audit Commitiee
of Merlin Entertainments in 2013

Ken 1s currently a Non-executive Director of Rechtt Bendaser Group plc. Previously, he
was CFO of Vodafone Group Plc. Ken was also a Non-executive Director of Tesco Plc
from 2004 to 2013, a Non-executive Directar of Royal Berkshire NHS Foundation Trust
from 2005 to 2012 and a Non-executive Director of Pearson Plc from 2006 to 2015,

Ken 15 a Fellow of the Chartered Institute of Management Accountants, the Association
of Chartered Certfied Accountants and the Assocation of Corporate Treasurers.

Trudy was appointed a Non-executive Director of Merln Entertainments in 2015,

Trudy retired on | May 2015 from the pasition of Chief Executive Officer of Carlson, a
privately held global hospitality and travel company, Trudy had been a senior executive
with Carlson since 1997, having served as Executive Vice President and Chief Financial
and Administrative Officer of Carlson preceding her appointment as CEQ.

Prior to joning Carlson, Trudy served as Serior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer
of Jostens, Inc., and served as Vice President of Finance for Minneapolis-based Pilisbury Co

Trudy 1s the Charr of The Rezidor Hotel Group Board, and also serves on the Board of
Directors for Cargill, The Donaldson Company, Inc., and Securian Holding Company.

Trudy 15 a Certfied Public Accountant (unhcensed) and Certified Management Accountant.

Saren was appointed a Non-executive Director of the Company in 2013,
representing KIRKEI,

Saren is currently the Chief Executive Officer of KIRKBI, following his appointment in
March 2010 Seren was formerly a Partner, Chief Financial Officer and member of
the Group Executive Board of AR Moller — Maersk Group between 2006 and 2009.
Prior to this he was Managing Partner of KPMG Denmark, having been a Partner

at KPMG since 1997,

Qutside the KIRKBI Group, Saren is currently Nan-executive Charman of Topdanmark
AJS and holds Non-executive Director postions at LEGO A/S and Falck Holding A/S,

Andrew retired as Chief Financial Gfficer on 31 July 2016.
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CORPORATE

Governance Report

Board membership and the Code

As at the date of this Annual Report and Accounts the Company
complies and intends to continue to comply with the Code

The Board will also take account of institutional shareholder
governance rules and guidance on disclosure and shareholder
authorisation of corporate events.

The Code recommends that a UK listed company’s Chairman be
independent on appointment. The Chairman was appointed in
December 2009, The Board considers that the Chairman was
independent cn appontment and remains so, The Chairman’s
role 15 to ensure good corporate gavernance.

The Code recommends that at least half the members of the
Board of Directors (excluding the Chairman) of a UK listed
company should be independent in character and judgement
and free from relatonships or arcumstances which are likely to
affect, or could appear to affect. therr judgement,

The Board has concluded that, for the purposes of the Cade, Charles
Gurassa, Ken Hydon, Fru Hazirtt, Trudy Rautio and Rachel Chiang

should be regarded as independent Non-executive Directors and
that their appontrments were in the best interests of shareholders

Although Mr Gurassa previously served on the board of Tragus
Group Limted (formerly a pertfolo company of Blackstone,
which was a shareholder in the Company until March 2015),
the other Directors have concluded that this relaticnship did
not have any effect on the independence of Mr Gurassa

KIRKBI was one of the pre-IPC major shareholders of Merlin
{along with Blackstone and CVC who ceased 1o hold any shares
in the Company in March 2015). KIRKBI presently holds 29.83%
of the 1ssued share caprtal of the Company. The Non-executive
Director representing KIRKBI (Seren Theorup Serensen) is not
regarded as independent for the purposes of the Code.

Accordingly, the Board considers that, throughout the 2016 year.
the Company was in full compliance with the recommendation of
the Code concerning the balance of independent Non-executive
Directors on the Board.

Reilationship agreement

The Company has entered into a Relationship Agreement

with KIRKBI dated 30 Cctober 2013 which remains in force.

Under the KIRKBI Relationship Agreement

»  KIRKBI Is entitled to appoint one Director to the Board.

+ While KIRKBI (together with its respective affiliates) holds
at least 10% of the Company's 1ssued share capital, it may
appoint an chserver (with the nght to attend and speak
but not vote) to the Board and each of the Audit Committee,
Remuneration Commuttee and Nomination Committee.

Major shareholdings

As at 28 February 2017, the latest practicable date prior to the
date of this Annual Report and Accounts, the Company had
been notified pursuant to DTRS of the following interest in
3% or more of the Company’s total voting nghts.

Nature of

Number of holding
Name of ordinary % of issued (Direct/
shareholder shares share capital Indirect)
KIRKBI Invest A/S 302,971,529 2983 Direct
Blackrock
Invesement 87.937.149 8.66 indirect
Management
(UK) Lirited
The Wellcome 42,800,000 421 Direct
Trust
GIC Private 30,583,647 301 Indirect
Limited

Board and Committees

Board Committees

The Chairman is responsible for the effective running of the
Board and for overseeing communicabions wrth all Beard and
Committee members and shareholders. He ensures that the
Beard receves sufficient information on financial, trading and
corporate 1ssues prior to Board meetings.

The Board has established Health, Safety and Security; Audt,
Rermuneration: and Nomination Committees with formally
delegated duties and responsibilities and wrrtten terms of
reference. In addition, from time to time, separate Committees
may be set up by the Board to consider spearfic 1ssues

when the need arises
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The terms of reference of each of the Board and its
Committees are availlable on the Company's corporate
website (www.merlinentertainments.biz).

The table below sets out the membership of the Board and
its Cormmittees, during the year, together with the number
of meetings held and each member’s attendance The tables
overleaf contain further information in relation to the Board
and its Committees covering their respective responsibilities,
duties and Code complance.

The Directors of all Group companies, as well as the Board and
each of its Committees, have access to the advice and services

of the Group General Counsel and Company Secretary as well
as external advice on, inter ala. legal, accounting, remuneration,
health and safety and corporate governance matters. Appropnate
induction and subsequent training 1s provided to members of the
Board and its Committees.

CORPORATE Governance Report

Executive Committee

The Chief Executive Officer 1s responsible for day-to-day
operations and the development of strategic plans for
consideration by the Board. He 1s assisted in this by an
Executive Committee of senior managers The Executive
Committee 15 not a formal committee of the Board.

The members of the Executive Committee include the Chief
Executive Officer and the Chief Financial Officer together with
the Managing Directors of each Operating Group, the Chief
Development Officer, the Chief New Openings Officer, the
Group HR Director; the General Counsel and Company
Secretary and the Chief information Cfficer.

Heaith, Safety

and Security Audit Remuneration Nomination
The Board  Committee @ @ Committee @ Committee ¥ Committee
Nurmnber of meetings held 8 4 5 3 2
Sir John Sunderland #3 H4 N/A 3 #2
Nick Varney 8 4 NiA N/A N/A
Arrme-Francmsei Nesmes - 2.'-2 22 NiA o ;JIAi 7 N.fAA
Charles Gurassa s . s s 2
Ken Hyden 8 N/A #5 3 2
FruHazlee A Il R T
Trudy Ral.;tlo - 8 h N/A o 747.'4 ?:’2 ) _ I-II
Rachel Chiang 8 33 4/4 N/A N/A
Seren Thorup é;;ernse;nr ' 7 N/A - -N/'A N:fA NIA 7
Andrew C;\rr " - 6/6 72 N/A N/A r-\IJ'A

Table notes
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The Board

Health, Safety and Security Committee

Principal
responsibilities
and duties

Number of
meetings

Code
compliance

The Board has overall responsibility for overseeing
the management of the Company.

-

-

Overseeing the Company's strategy and management
Determining the Company's capital structure
Overseeing the Company's financial reporting and contrels.
Ensuring the Company maintains a sound system of internal
controls and risk management.

Approval of the annual caprtal expenditure budget. major
capital projects and strategic transactions

Ensuring effective communication with shareholders and
managing investor relations

Considenng and, If accepted, implementing
recommendations from the Committees, including

» Appointments to the Board and Committees,

« Board and senior managerment remuneration,

¢ Succession planming, and

* Changes to the Company's share incentive plans
Appainting Comrmittees and agreemng thewr terms

of reference

Corporate governance matters and reporting thereon
Approving major pohcies, including

+ Health, safety and secunity policy.

« Fraud policy, and

= Share dealing policy

Approving the appointment of prinapal financial

and professional advisers,

Approval of rajor iigation

Approval of Group insurance programme.,

At least six times a year and as required or otherwise at the
request of one or more of the Directors.

Where urgent decisions are required en matters specifically
reserved for the Board between meetings, there 15 a process
In place to facditate discussion and decision making

We comply

The Code recommends that the Board of a UK listed plc
should comprise at least 50% independent Non-executive
Directors (exduding the Chairman).

The Health, Safety and Security Committee assists the
Board in ensuring that health, safety and security matters are
managed effectively and proactively throughout the Group

* Recommending to the Board, implementing and monitoring

the Group's health, safety and security policy.

Reviewing the effectiveness of the Group's health and safety

processes and controls

* Reviewing the health and safety resources avaltable within the
Group and the skills of the health and safety management

+ Rewviewing the adeguacy of security processes and controls

Reporting to the Board on matters within the remit of

the Committee

See the Heaith, Safety and Security Committee Report on
pages 70 to 75 for further detarls

At least four times a year and at such other times as the
Board or the Committee Chairman regquires

N/A
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Audit Committee

Remuneration Committee

CORPORATE Governance Report

Nomination Committee

The Audit Committee assists the Board

n discharging 1ts responsibiliies in relation to
financial reporting and controls and external
and internal audits.

* Reporting to the Board on matters within
the Committee’s rermit.

* Risk management process and internal

controls, including whistleblowing and fraud

Financial reporting, including considering the

processes supporting the assessment of the

Group's lenger term solvency and liquidity

which underlie the Viability Staternent

Internal audt

+ External audit

-

-

See the Audnt Committee Report on
poges 76 to 81 for further detals

At least three times during the financial year
at appropnate tmes in the audit cycle

In addition, 1t meets at such other times as the
Board or the Commuttee Chairman requires,
or if requested by the external auditars.

We comply

The Code recommends that an Audit
Committee should comprise at least three
independent Non-executive Directors
and that at least one member should have
recent and relevant financial experience

The Audit Committee consists of four
independent Non-executive Directors. Both

Ken Hydon and Trudy Rautio are considered by

the Beard to have recent and relevant financal
experience Further details arc set out on page

&5 No members of the Audit Committee have

Iinks with the Company's external auditors

The Remuneration Committee assists the
Board in discharging its responsibilities in
relation to remuneration.

* Setting the remuneration policy for
Executive Directors and the Chairman

¢ Reviewing and making recommendations
to the Board on senior management
remuneration.

» Determining the individual remuneration
and benefits package of each of the
Executive Directors.

= Determining the fees of the Chairman

* Reviewing the design of share incentrve

plans for approval by the Board

Ensuring appropriate reporting on

remuneration matters in the

Annual Report and Accounts

.

No Director may particpate in discussions
relating to hus own terms and conditions
of remuneration

Non-executive Directors' fees are
deterrmined by the full Board

See the Directors’ Remuneration Report
on pages 82 to 103 for further detars.

At least twice each year and at such
other times as the Board or the
Committee Chairman reguircs

We comply

The Code recommends that a Remuneration
Committee should comprise at least three
independent Non-executive Directors

The Committee consists of four independent
Norn-executive Directors and the Chairran

The Nomination Committee assists the Board
in discharging its responsibilities in relation to
the composition of the Board.

.

Reviewing the balance of skills, knowledge
and experience on the Board,

Reviewing the size, structure and
composition of the Board

Considering and making recommendations
to the Board on retrements, re-elections
and appointments of addtional and
replacement Directors and on
membership of Committees,
Considering succession planning for both
Executive and Non-executive Directors
and the Chairman

Considering the tme required for
Directors to fulfil their roles

Developing a policy on diversity

and reporting on progress thereon
Making appropnate recommendations

to the Board an matters within the

remit of the Committee

-

See the Nomination Committee Report
on page 104 for further details.

At least twace each year and at such
other tmes as the Board or the
Committee Charman requires

We comply

The Code recommends that a majorrty of the
members of the Nomination Committee should
be independent Non-executive Directors

The Committee 1s chaired by the Chairman
of the Board and consists of the Chairman
of the Committee and three independent
Non-executive Directors,
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HEALTH, SAFETY AND
SECURITY Committee Report

STATEMENT FROM THE CHAIRMAN OF THE HEALTH, SAFETY AND SECURITY COMMITTEE

Dear Sharehclder

Qur number one priority 15 delivering
safe and memorable experiences to
our guests. Central to this 1s our totai
commitrment to continucusly achieving
high standards in Health, Safety and
Security (HSS) Every day we reman
focused on ensuning our operations
and business activities remain safe,
thereby fulfiling the trust placed in

us by our guests, employees, business
partners and shareholders

The HSS Committee assists the Board

in ensurng that HSS risks are managed
effectively across the Group. This report
describes the work of the Committee,
the Group's HSS management systerns,
processes and performance, together with
detalls of developments during 2016,

The Smiler accident

The acadent on The Smiler’ ride at
Afton Towers Resort in June 2015
shocked the entire organisation,

We have always prided ourselves on
being an industry leader in terms of
amusement park safety, working alongside
national regulating bodies to iImprove
industry practice and highiight Innovation
in terms of safety management.

This acadent called the Group's safety
record Into question and our response
has included a ‘root and branch’ review
of all our safety procedures and protocols,
The erminal prosecution that followed,
and the Judge's comments, reflect the
sericusness of the offence and the
shortcomings in our safety arrangements
on this specific ride, as did the resultant
fine of £5 milllon We are taking action
to address the Judge's comments,

The Judge did accept that we generally
have a good health and safety record

and procedures in place, particularly
given our size Further, the Judge also
recognised our exceptional co-operation
with the UK’s Health and Safety Executive
during their investgation of the accident
and that full and extensive steps have
been taken to remedy the problem.

We have a strong history of delivering
millions of safe experiences to our guests
and we are determined to rebuild the
trust that our guests rightfully place in us.

Independent reviews

Following 'The Smiler’ accident the

HSS Committee commissioned an
independent rewew of nde safety across
the business A global nsk management
consuftancy. DNV GL, were engaged to
assess and valdate how nide safety 1s
continuously achieved and how the
Company's safety culture supparts this,

The findings of the DNV GL review
prowded reassurance to the HSS
Committee and the Board that the
Group's safety management systems in
place were surtably robust. No major or
systernic areas of concern were dentified
during the extensive audit. Furthermore,
the safety culture within the business was
described as ‘strong’ Nevertheless a
number of recommendations were
made and these are being duly actioned.

The Committee also cormmissicned an
independent review of the Company's
corporate governance arrangerments for
HSS, with a leading figure in the UK's

HSS professional community engaged and
provided with full access to the business.
Existing governance arrangemernits at
Board and Executive Committee fevel

were assessed to determine whether they
were sufficently robust and if they could
be strengthened,

Confirmation was provided that the
governance arrangerments in place were
of a surtably rigorous standard, especially
given the Company’s size A small number
of recommendations were made and
these are also being duly implemented

Risk control

Our fundamerital goal 1s to ensure the
effective prevertion or mibigation of HSS
risks through robust management systems
and programmes that are supported by
the right organisational structure and a
genuine commitment fram all staff.

‘Protecting the Magic’ 1s the name of our
ongoing commitrment to controlling HSS
risks. This branding provides us with a
high-profile communication platform
through which we drive worlkforce
engagement and a proactive safety culture,

Performance reporting

Qur performance reporting has evolved
during 2016. We now report on both
leading indicators’ (those actaties such
as inspecticns and audits we perform to
manage risk), as well as ‘lagging ndicators’
{the incident frequency type reporting
that has tradtionally been the Group's
primary reported KPl). Further details
are set out on page 74.

Looking forward

Locking forward we will continue to
challenge, monitor and support the
whole of Merlin in their HSS efforts.

Sir John Sunderland
Chairman of the HSS Committee
| March 2017
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The HSS Committee reports to the
Board, operating under speaific terms of
reference (avallable on the Company’s
website). it has three areas of focus.

| To oversee the Group's policies and
procedures for ensuring the HSS of
guests, employees, contractors and
operating assets.

2 To monrtor the Group's processes
for identifying and managing risks.

3 To monitor the skills, effectiveness
and levels of resource within the
Group's HSS teams.

The Committee receives adwice from HSS
professionals and 15 updated on industry
best practice. Issues discussed at the HSS
Committee are shared with the Board.

Details of the Committee’s membership,
together with the frequency of and
attendance at meetings, are outlned

on pages 66 to 69

HSS management

The Company maintains a well

developed and systematic approach to
the management of HS5 nisks, In line with
the endorsed model of the UK regulator
- the Health and Safety Executive (HSE).
This approach sets out how organisations
should organise themselves and deploy
surtable and sufficent safeguards for

the effective control of HSS nisks.

We therefore place great focus on

designing and implementing programmes

that relate to each of our following

five HSS cornerstones

| Leaders - Our leaders and managers
must exhibit visible leadership towards
safety and establsh robust compliance
and improvement plans in support
of this vision

2 People - Qur employees and
contractors must be equipped with the
necessary skills, experience and cuftural
attitudes such that they understand
and control safety risks effectively

3 Standards - Qur standards and
procedures must be clearly
documented and rigorously followed
te help ensure we design, build and
operate in a safe and complant way.
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4 Assets - Our assets and equipment
must be fit for purpose throughout
their term of operation such that
no unacceptable or uncontrolled
safety risk s created.

5 Performance - Qur safety performance
miust be measured so that we are able
to understand, improve and sustain
our performance.

HSS management system

Our policies and HSS management
systems set mandatory obligations for
standards and perfarmance across all
our attractions and operations.

The requirements set out In our Group
Health and Safety Manual and associated
policies are well established, prowding a
strong basis for compliance and continual
improvement in perfermance. They form
the basis for the developrment and
application of the Company’s health

and safety management system at all
levels in the business, as depicted in

the chart below,

Operational management
Operational management are
responsible for and integral to HSS
matters, supported by functional
HSS specialists

Two key safety management activities

are as foliows.

= Risk registers - attraction management
prepare detalled HSS risk registers
that identify and assess all significant
risks The Group's principal HSS risks
are surmmarnised on page 50.

*+ Action plans - every attraction 13
reguired to prepare an annual HSS
action plan, driven by the results
of rts nsk register, safety inspections
and audrts, nearmiss/incident
investigations and employee
surveys. Appropriate control
measures are then implemented.

HSS programmes and arrangements
at each attraction are part of the
overall management system that
facilitates the assessment and control
of HSS risks This includes the
Company's arganisational structures
and ncorporates planning activities,;
key roles and responsibilities; the
production of safety pohces, Codes
of Safe Working Practice for each
ride, instructions and other procedures,
and the resources for developing,
implementing, achieving, reviewing
and mantaning the orgamisation’s
heafth and safety policies.

_\
Group
HSS
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3
£
3 O
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2 a
Group HSS Policies > [P
and Standards >3
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3 o
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Training

Attracthion management teams attend
formal Safety Leadership and Safety
Managerment traning courses to ensure
they are equipped wrth the necessary
skills and knowledge, Other functional,
departmental and task-relevant safety
training takes place dependent on
specific role and needs analysis,

Training plans are formulated or reviewed
each year as part of the annual Personal
Development Plan process, or as part of
each department's training needs analysis
arrangements. A foundation of these
training programmes 1s the delivery

of mandatory new starter

Induction Traming.

Safety leadership walks

In 2016 we launched a new programme
of safety leadership walks where our
most senior managers will regularly and
frequently engage with our employees

in order to demonstrate commitment to.
focus on, and understanding of effective
heatth and safety risk rmanagement.

These walks allow seror management to
praise and reinforce safe behaviours and
to identify and modify unsafe practices
and conditions.

Ride and facilities safety

All of our attractions have i place
structured and formalised programmes
for the scheduling and completion

of maintenance works on plant

and equipment - both rides and
facilties/building assets.

Additionally, all required repair works
are logged and managed safely through
to completion.

Qur amusement rides are managed
for safety through their asset Iifetime in
Iine wath applicable national or tocal
legal requirements.
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Merlin’s fundamental approach to
ride safety was found to be suitable and
sufficiently robust. It is well supported by
the positive attitudes of its people at all
levels in the organisation

o)

Our operational, engineering and safety

processes, together with our quality

checks and Inspections caver.

I Designing, manufacturing and testing,

2 Transporting assembling, instaling
and commissioning.

3 Operating, cleaning, maintaining,
inspecting and testing,

4 Day-to-day use by guests

In order to bring a new amuserment ride
into operation n the UK. for instance, we
are reguired to demonstrate compliance
with applicable codes and practices, which
15 achieved by subjecting each ride to an
independent review by a registered /
accredited Inspection Body.

Thereafter, rides are subjected to an
annual Independent in-service inspection.
This normally requires a nde te be

fully or partially disassembled and tc be
subjected to thorough visual examination
and, where applicable, non-destructive
testing. Each ride 1s then reassembled
and subjected to a function test. A single
docurnent called a 'Dedclaration of
Operational Comphance’ confirms

that the appropriate inspection has

been completed successfully. Sirmilar
equivalent processes are in place

in non-UK locations.

Attractions mantain operational
procedures to ensure that rides are
operated in the correct and safe manner.

In 2016, alled to cne of DNV Gl
recommendations, we developed and
launched a brand new set of competency
and training criteria that must be
implemented by all applicable attractions
for their ride operations staff. This covers
both new starters and existing staff.

Additicnally, all of cur attractions have in
place robust, tested, emergency response
plans and procedures.

Contractor safety

Contractor safety 1s of great importance
to us. in 2016 we launched a new
Contractor Safety Handbook which
clearly sets out our HSS expectations
of contractors.

Contracting entities engaged to work
at our attractions undergo a safety
vetting and pre-qualification process.
They are then provided with relevant
HSS information prior to starting work,
with risk assessment documents

(or similar} completed and reviewed.
WWe ensure contractor activities on

site are appropriately supervised

and controlled,

Projects have sufficent budgets and
tirnescales to allow the contractor to
complete the works and relevant HSS
checks, and we ensure regular feedback
on any HSS issues, incidents or challenges.
Site inspectiens and audrts by our project
managers, H5S teams and external
consuttants help us to ensure that our
rigorous standards are continually met
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Food safety and hygiene

The Group applies the globally recognised
best practice approach for ensuring food
safety - the Hazard Analysis and Crrtical
Control Point (HACCP) system.

Qur detalled and prescriptive Food
Safety Manual provides clear and
consistent direction for attractions on
how to address food safety and hygiene
risks. The manual must be adhered to

at all tmes and all attractions are
ndependeritly assessed by food safety
speaalists for complance with it

In 2016 we commissioned an
ndependent review of our food safety
arrangements to ensure they reman
suitable and sufficient. We continue to
make improvements where necessary

Attraction security and travel safety
We maintain active and passive security
protocols across our attractions in order
1o maintain the integrity of our physical
boundaries together with operations and
assets within, Security risk assessmernits
help ensure that we deploy the
appropriate technology. techniques and
resources commensurate to the national
or local threat level. In 2016 security
searches of guests and their bags were
extended across specific attractions

to reflect such risks.

As the types of threats and risks evoive
we work closely with local police and
governmental security agencies to ensure
appropriate intelligence 1s shared and
attraction based security protocols
rernain sutable, proportional and robust.

When employees need to travel overseas
we work with a third party orgarisation
to ensure that we have the best avallable
security and health information to help us
assess and plan such trips. We actively
rmoniter local security conditions to
ensure deployments remain safe both
pre-departure and In-journey.

Accommodation safety

We are delighted that many of our
guests can en|oy a longer stay at our
attractions by taking advantage of our
range of accommaodation.
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The safety of any guest who stays with us
Is paramount and we deal nigorously with
the addtional and speafic safety
challenges involved.

Our approach to managing the risk of fire
15 To have systems that meet or exceed
what 15 required by local legislation. For
instance, automatic fire detection and
warning systems are In place across all our
hotels and lodges and which comply with
the highest standards. Our guests wilt get
the earliest possible warning of a potential
inaident, which allows our specially trained
staff members to quickly investigate any
problem and minimise the impact of a
false alarm. Fire drills are regularly
practised too.

All cur accommodation staff receve
thorough fire safety training that includes
risk reduction, what to do in the event
of fire, how to raise the alarm as well as
roles and responsibilities in the everit

of an evacuation.

Sorme staff are specially selected as fire
wardens and are traned to use on-site
firefighting equiprnent,

Safety for our disabled guests

At Merlin, we've always tried to make
our aftractions accessible to as many
people as possible, but we recognise
that certan rides can be physically
dernanding and vigorous so they are
not appropnate for every guest.

We carry out regular in-house surveys
and access audrts are conducted by
independent experts so that we are
abways up-to-date with the latest
guidance and recomnmendations.

Fftective and clear communication play an
impartant part in helping our visttors with
accessibility requirements to decde whether
or nat the expenences on offer are surtable,
ft 15 why our websites carry detalled
information so that people can make a
decision based on ther indwvidual needs

IMAGE REMOVED

Protecting the Magic

Protecting the Magic' s our internal
brand for the communication of HSS
matters throughout the organisation

In 2016 we launched

I Qur new Litle Book of Safety Spells
- an HSS briefing toolkit for
managers and staff

2 New Six Spelfls for Safety posters,
banners, badges, screensavers
and key info-cards

3 A new bi-monthly HSS magazine
called The Shieig”

4 Qur new Safety First Employee
Handbook - fully translated
and openly avalable on our
www.protectingthemagic.com
website

Since the end of the year we published
our comprehensive Guests” Gurde

to Safety - avalable on Merlin's

www protectingthemagic.com website,

73



HEALTH, SAFETY AND SECURITY Committee Report

Monitoring performance

HSS performance, ncludng near-miss
and inaident reporting, 1s regularly
reviewed by each attraction. each
Operating Group's senior leadership
tearn and the HSS Cornmittee,

All attractions in Merln are subjected
to routine health and safety audits,
conducted by HSS professionals
independent of the attraction being
assessed, These audits evaluate
compliance with Merhn’s Global Health
and Safety Manual and asscciated safety
policies. This includes an exarmination
of the adequacy and avalability of sk
assessments / job hazard analyses and
the implermentation of required
control measures.

Censideration 1s also made of how such
control measures are communicated or
traned out’ to those persons undertaking
the works, Any non-compliance matters
or improvement opportunities identfied
then require remedial action. These audits
cornplement regional and attraction
initiated safety inspections and audrts that
take place during the course of each year
Additionally, property and infrastructure
risk audits are conducted annually by
external engineering surveyors.

In 2816 cur performance reporting has
evolved and we can now report on
two types of performance metnc:

| Leading indicators monitor the activities
we undertake as part of cur HSS
governance and montoring Processes.
Qur approach includes arrangements
by attractions for near-rruss / unsafe
condrtion reporting, trend analysis
and corrective action management

2 Lagging indicators capture incident
rates for both guests and employees

In developing our performance reporting
we have the ambition to become the
benchmark for our industry sector

as we capture, report on, interpret

and respond to this source of
managemerit information.

Performance information

HSS Performance Indicators 2016
Leading Indicators:

Safety Inspec-tlon Certificates - Rides ! 1002
Safe Operating Procedures - Rides @ 100%
Food Safety Audits 97%
Safety Culture Survey Results © 94%
HSS Committee Meetings & 100%
Lagging lndlc;tors. N
Medlc-ai Treatm-em: (_:ase Rate (Guests) ® 70,06
Medical Treatment Case Rate (Employees) # 0.07
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FOCUS ON
Merlin Engineering

Group Engineering

In 2016 cur Group Engineenng Directorate was
established to provide dear direction to Merlin's
technical teams at every attraction and help drive
continuous Improvement and engimeening cxcellence,
The tearmn 15 now fully forrmed and has set its
strategic direction

Group Engineering Strategy - to underpin the delivery
of memaorable expernences with technical excellence
and cfficiency

.

Group Engineening Strategic Objecuve - to define and
uphold groupwide engineering standards, practices and
processes that deliver sector leading safe compliant
and optimised asset performance thus ensuring that
every guest's memorable experience 15 not negatively
impacted by any technical 1ssue

The connection between safety and engineering is
fundarnental, shaping every aspect of engneering

work undertaken in Merlin From the outset, Group
Engineering has set to reinforce this connecton and

set up systems that focus on Safety Engineering

In particular, the smmediate opportunities that have been
realised with this new central function are in elements of
Safety in Design and Mantenance

Safety in Design

Although the iIndependent Inspection Bodies conduct
thorough design reviews and provide design safety
assurance, it 1s essential that safety critical systems can
be maintained and assessed easily Group Engineening
prowides critical technical analysis of design and challenge
1o supplers and equipment manufacturers of both new
products and for modifications to existing installations,
This gives support to both attractions and project
delivery teams as the inteligent customer’ to ensure
that not enly 15 redundancy built in to safety critcal
systemns, but also that safety cnitical items are designed
for maintainability to provide the essential balance
between safety and performance

Safety in Maintenance

Robust mantenance systems and procedures are already
in place through the comprehensive surte of daily weekly,
monthly and annual maintenance activities for rides and
nstallations However, we never stand still and abways
look to incrermentally improve our maintenance

systems through the work of Group Engineering

* Learning Forums - Group Engineering has established
communication channels between Technical Directors
at attractions to allow groupwide technical expertise
to be shared effectively. Enhanced arrangements have
been set up with the prime purpose of driving shared
learning and discussion to facihtate faster responses
to technical challenges and safety improvements

Maintenance Regime Review - the maintenance regme
for each asset or ride 1s derived from the requirements
set out in the operating and maintenance manual
provided by the manufacturer, Thus regime 1s then
owverlaid with any enhanced inspections or tests that
are identified through the continued use and inspection
of the asset. Critical review and companson of evolved
rmamntenance regimes can now be undertaken to
ensure that mantenance across the Group s optimised
for assets that are installed in multiple locations

.

Root Cause Analysis - within even the most robust
safety and maintenance system unplanned technical
issues will arise Linderstanding the cause of such 1ssues
provides insight into any changes required to safety and
reliability systems to prevent recurrence. Our assets are
complex due to factors such as the technology of the
systems and materials used, the interface with attraction
operators, the way guests interact with the assets,
external environmental effects, and the continued
maintenance of the asset The oversight of Group
Engineenng and ability to use groupwide expertise

to analyse and critique any falures ensures that
appropriate alterations are made through intellectually
rigorous and consistent analysis of falures and faults

Group Engineering will continue to drive the
optirmisation of this function to help mantan
our focus on safety engneering
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Committee Report

STATEMENT FROM THE CHAIRMAN OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE

Dear Sharehalder

| am pleased to present the 2016 report
of the Audit Commrttee (the Committee).

The Commuttee has an annual standing
agenda of matters to be examined and
in addition there are focused reviews

of particular topics, During the course
of the year the Committee met with
operational management tc consider
financial, IT and other risks that the
business faces together with the controls
through which we manage those nisks
We appreciated the open discussions

Qur detaled programme of work has
focused on the following areas which

the Committee report itself covers in
more detail

Committee membership

and effectiveness

Committee meetings are scheduled ahead
of Board meetings and a summary 1s given
to the Board at the following meeting.
The Committee's terms of reference

are avallable on the Company's website,

| was pleased to welcome Trudy Rautio
and Rachel Chiang as new members of
the Audit Committee duning the year,

We have a Committee with deep financial
and internatienal business experience
particutarly in customer facing and
consurmer businesses. The external

Board Effectiveness review confirmed
that the Committee 1s effective

Risk management and internal control
The Committee 15 satisfied that the
Company has appropriate systems and
procedures in place to identify, evaiuate
and manage material risks to the business

The Group's principal nsks and
uncertainties are set out on pages
50 to 52,

The Committee has reviewed these
and 1s comfortable the Company has
addressed them apprepriately within its
ongoing operating model.

Financial reporting

| am pieased to confirm that we believe
the Annual Report and Accounts,
taken as a whole, are far, balanced

and understandable.

In preparing the Groug's financal
staternents, the two areas determined
tG be of most significance are the
valuation of assets including impairment,
and revenue recognition Further details
of our reviews in these areas are set out
on page /9.

We also considered how the Group
assesses 1ts [onger term solvency

and hquidity as set out in the Viabilty
Staterment on page 49, agreeing the
stress testing parameters of the Group's
principal nsks and the penod over
which the assessment should be made.

Internal and external audit

The Group's control framework
includes independent and effective
audrtors, The Committee has therefore
spent time during the year assessing the
internal and external audit functions,
finding both to be effective

The risk based internal audit plan has
provided appropriate coverage of the
Group's operations and we are satisfied
with the content and quality of both
reporting and management responses

Similarly, we are fully satisfied with
KPMG's ongoing performance and their
appreach to the audt, their work makes
an ymportant contribution to the integrity
of the Group's reporting and again this
year has resulted in a dean audit opinion.

We continue to monritor regufatory
matters, including the requirement to
retender the audit by 2023 and retender
the audit at least every ten years
thereafter. The Commuttee 1s mindful
that the next regular KPMG partner
rotation 15 after the 2019 audrt.

Looking forward
The Committee has an agreed programme
for 2017,

Key focus areas include monrtoring the
contiruing roll out of accesso®, as well

as to menrtor the control environment,
particularly in new attractions opened

in ine with the Group's 2020 milestones,

Recognising the impact of the new leasing
accounting standard (IFRS 16), we will
review management's work on capturing
the detall required for beth transition
accounting and the related finanaal
staternent disclosures.

| would like to thank the Committee
members for their dligence and support
throughout the year

Ken Hydon
Chairman of the Audit Committee
| March 2017
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The role of the Audit Committee

2016 focus

An external effectiveness review was
undertaken showing the Committee
to be effective.

The Audit Committee’s primary
responsibilities are as set out below,
forming the basis of a programme of work
that 1s agreed at the end of the prior year
and undertaken during the following year.
In performing their work, the Commmittee
15 kept abreast of any changes in
governance. legislation or guidance.

Risk management and internal control

+ To review and report on the
effectiveness of the Company's internal
financial controls and the overall risk
rmanagement system

+ To review the Company's
arrangements for its employees
to raise concerns through s
whistleblowing and fraud polices.

Financial Reporting

+ To monrtor the integrty of
the financial statements of the
Company and report to the Board
on significant financal reporting
issues and judgements,

+ To consider whether the Company’s
financal statements are fair balanced
and understandable’

+ To consider the processes supporting
the assessment of the Group’s longer
term solvency and quidity which
underlie the Viability Statement

AUDIT Committee Report

Internal and external audit

« To monitor and review the
effectiveness of the Company's internal
audit function, and s ratenial findings,
in the context of the Company's
overall risk management and mternal
control environment.

« To propose and select the external
auditors and then to oversee therr
performance and iIndependence.

Membership and meetings

Details of the Committee’s membership,
quahfications, and meetings are outlined
on pages 66 to 69, including details of
those members having recent and
relevant finangial expenence. The CFG
and other key members of management
routinely attend, as do other members
of semior management depending on the
matter under discussion, The Chairman
and the CEO attended most meetings
Private meetings are routinely held with
nternal audit and KPMG, The Committee
also meets privately after each
Committee meeting,

Effecuveness review

Curing the year an external effecuiveness
review of the Committee took place.
This was based on a questionnare sent
1o Committee members, all other
attendees and the Beard on a broad
range of matters including the
Committee’s scope, organisation and
meetings, qualty of debate and challenge:
and leadership, The results showed the
Committee to be effective,
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Risk management and internal control

2016 focus

The Committee concluded that
Merlin operates an appropriate
process to assess the internal
control environment, and that
controls are in place to mitigate
financial process risk.

While the Board retains overall
responsibility for the Company's internal
controls, the Committee has a delegated
responsibility in two specific areas.

| Speciically monitoring the
management of financial process risk

The Risks and Uncertainties section
on pages 47 to 52 shows how the
Company separates its oversight

of risk management into three risk
companents Health, safety and
security, Commeraal and strategic:
and Financial process

For financal process risk, management
remam responsible for establishing and
mantaining adequate internal contrels
that are designed tc manage, rather
than eliminate, such risks, tt 1s
addressed using the three levels of
activity and assurance set out below.
The outcomes of these activities are
reviewed by management. the Audrt
Committee and the Board.

Level |

Documented delegated authortty limits
and purchasing and sale price approval
levels in place across the Company.

Level 2

Frequent and regular review processes
of trading performance together with
detaled capital investment and
strategic planning processes

Level 3

Self-assessment, including quarterly
self-certification by the heads of
finance of each of the business units

Internal audit reviews with the
support of specialist experts as
appropriate, The annual risk based
internal audit plan s developed n
conjunction with management,

and approved by the Committee,
Internal audrt results and management
responses are then discussed and
challenged at each Committee
meeting, The Committee reviews
management actions i response

1o significant findings and looks at
the root cause of consistent themes
emergng across the Company,
including ‘deep dive’ assessments
where necessary. In 2016 these related
1o the purpose and structure of the
profit protection function. reviewing
residual risks identified in the Group's
business planning pracess, together
with considenng the Group's
treasury strategy.

External audit reviews the control
environment and financial statements.
KPMG present their view of Merlin's
control environment at the December
meeting, following therr audit of such
processes in the fourth quarter,

Overseeing the overall risk
management process

During the year the Committee
reviewed the overall nsk managerment
process n place. At the end of the
year rt examined the Company’s risk
crganisation and how this has been
practically implemented, and the
methodology by which risk matters
raised are brought to the attention
of the Board, The Group's risk
organisation and prinaipal risks

are disclosed on pages 47 to 52,

Whistleblowing systems and
fraud/bribery mitigation

The Company has a good culture of
encouraging its staff to report inadents of
poot practice. This is reinforced through
the work of internal audit and local profit
protection teams, a summary of whose
work 1s reviewed by the Committee,

The Committee also recerves regular
updates on whistleblowing, including the
quantrity, source and nature of inaidents
reported and how matters are resolved.
During 2016 efforts have continued to
increase awareness of the Company's
whistleblowing procedures, evidenced
by the 84% of staff who completed the
annual staff survey confirming they were
aware of the whistleblowing policy.

Financial Reporting

2016 focus

The financiaf statements
appropnately address amounts
reported and disclosures together
with any significant judgements
and estimates.

The two significant areas for review
were appropriately scrutmised by
the Committee throughout the
reporting cycle

The Committee considered and
approved the Group'’s going concern
review and viability assessment.

Together with management and

the external auditors, the Commirttee
determined that the two financal
reporting areas of most significance and
which could give rise to misstatement
of the Group's financial statements are
the valuation of assets and imparment
and revenue recognition. These rtems
are set out below and were considered
by the Committee throughout the
audit cycle.
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| The valuation of assets
and impairment

Having reviewed the basis of
management’s calculotions and the
findings of the external oudit, the
Committee 1s satisfied that no
impairment is required and that
the presentation and disclosures

in the financial statements are
appropriate and adequate.

Existing businesses operate in
geographically or politically diverse
areas and in the past the Group has
made material acquisitions resulting
in significant balances of goodwil
and intangible assets, Additionally the
Group continues to cpen attractions
in new and, to some degree, unproven
lecations, While the Group has
accumulated experience of opening
many attractions around the world,
the performance of additional
attractions, particularly in new
markets, can be difficult to predict.

As set out in note 3.3 to the financal
statemenits, valuations are performed
based on forward looking discounted
cash flow forecasts and other market
data so are nherently judgemenital

in nature, Management's detaled
papers to the Committee set out the
methodology and judgements adopted
1o test the value of assets, and the
disclosures proposed for the

Annual Report and Accounts.

The papers considered the valuation
of goodwill at an Operzating Group level,
individual brands and speafic property,
plant and equipment For each tem,
‘value in use’ and fair values’ (using an
appropriate EBITDA muttiple} were
provided. We focused especially on
how the *value in use’ of assets is
caiculated, which involves judgements
of forecast cash flows, the discount
rates used and the calculation of

an asset’s terminal value.

Management's papers considered

the performance of Alton Towers
fallowing the accident there in 2015
when considering the expected future
earnings of that attraction and the
Resort Theme Parks Operating
Group as a whole, as well as

detaling the results of sensitivity
analysis performed.

2 Revenue recognition

The Commuttee has considered the roff
out of the accesso® adrmissions system
together with existing revenue recording
systems In both areas the Committee
considered the internal controfs i
place and concluded that they

remain effective.

Reveriue 1s generated by high volurnes
of low value transactions in numerous
junsdictions across the world. Although
Merlin's revenue accounting policies
require imited judgement compared
to some other sectors, the accuracy
of financial reporting relies on

robust internal controls over cash
reconchations and accurate cut-off

at the reporting date in respect of
advanced sales or paymerits in

arrears by trade customers.

accesso®

During the year the Company continued
its roll out of the accesso® admissions
system across the Group. The new
systern 18 being used to transact an
increasing proportion of the Group's
admissions revenues with the roll cut

to all major sites targeted by the end

of 2017.

The roll out continued under the
guidance of a senior steering group,
chaired by the Group's Chief Information
Officer, and including the Group CFO
and other members of the Group's
senior finance team. The project roll out
team includes finance rescurce that i
responsible for designing and
implementing appropnate financial
processes and controls.

During the year the Committee
recerved regular updates on the
progress of the project together with
the idemtification and subsequent
resolution of 1ssues that arose.

IFRS 15

IFRS 15, the new accounting standard
on revenue from centracts with
customers, will become effective from
the 2018 accounting period.

The Committee has considered the
potential )Impact in the context

of the Company's business model and
the nature of the Company’s revenue
transactions ang has concluded that
IFRS 15 1s not expected to matenally
alter the Group's financial results.
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Going concern and viability review

We focused espeaially on the
appropriateness of the key judgements,
assurnptions and estimates underlying
the Company’s plans together with a
review of comphance with key financial
covenants. For the viability assessment
we considered the outlook period in the
context of the Group's business plan, its
planned capital Investrment cycles, new
business develepment plans and potential
uncommitted capital projects and
acquisitions We condluded that the four
year outloock period was appropriate.

We considered the key risks identified
by the Group {as set out in the Risks and
Uncertamties section on pages 50 to 52}
and any mitigating controls This process
enabled the Committee to assess
whether any material residual rnisks
remained that could pose a significant
threat to the viability of the business

as a whale,

The risks identified were thase related
to safety related maidents and the impact
of acts of terrorism or sabotage. The
Cormmittee then reviewed appropriate
sensitivity analyses in severe yet plausible
scenanos that were performed to assess
the possible impact of these risks and
the Group's resilience to them through
controls and mtigating actions that

could be taken.

The Viability Statement 15 on page 49.

Other matters

The Committee also reviewed other

matters in relation to the Company's

financial statements, In domg so they
took into account recent developments
in corporate reporting and particular
current focus areas Matters

reviewed included

= The half year and full year
financial statements.

« Dusclosures in the Annual Report
and Accounts in relation to internal
control, risk management process
and the work of the Comrmittee.

« The Group's use and description of
alternative performance measures
within its financial reporting.

* Those areas of the Group's
financal reporting considered to
have required most judgernent
ar the use of estimates,

+ The tax position of the Group, n
particular the effective tax rate and
the recognmion of deferred tax assets,

+ The impact of new accounting
standards that are yet to become
effective, especially IFRS 15
{as noted above), anc IFRS 16,
the new standard on leasing,

= Key assumptions in relation to
defined benefit pension schemes.

+ Technical updates, In particular In
relation to the requirements of
and changes to the Code,

The Audit Committee’s report
in the context of the Codes
requirernent for ‘farr, balanced
and understandable’ reporting.

Internal and external audit

2016 focus

Following an extensive review process,
the Committee considers that the
internal and external audit functions
were both effective durmg 2016.

The internal and external audit functions
represent an important part of the third
line of defence n terms of maintaining

an effective internal control environment
within the Company through the activities
set out below, The Committee oversees
both functions to ensure they are
independent and effective

Internal audit

The Company's internal audit function,
which has dual reporting ines into both
the Chairman of the Audr Commitiee
and the CFO, comprises six in-house
auditors and 15 led by an appropriately
qualfied Group Internal Audit and

Risk Managerment Director with the
relevant skills and expenence to fulfil
the obligations of the role.

When necessary external support 1s
used in specialist areas. For example
PricewaterhouseCoopers (PwC)
provided specialist support to

the audit of the Cormpany's IT
strategic roadmap and risks,

The Committee approved the internal
audn plan before the start of the year
which included an assessment of the
risk approach taken n formulating audit
priorities. Factors such as size and location
of business, history of audit findings,
competence and stability of local
management, matenal changes to

a business and relevance to the
Group's strategy were factored

inte this assessment

During the year, audits were undertaken
to obtan an appropriate level of coverage
across the business which we measure

on a rolling two-year basis Internal audrts
conducted over the last two years

have been at operations representing
coverage of approximately 60% of

the Group's revenue.

In addtion to the revenue generating
locations, internal audits were performed
over other areas including MMM project
management, procurement, legislative
complance and [T disaster recovery

The coverage 15 1n Ine with the plan
approved by the Committee.

An external review of the effectiveness
of internal audit was undertaken during
the year. Members and attendees of the
Audit Committee meetings, along with
the senior finance community of the
Cempany, were questioned on a range

of subjects ncluding the governance and
organisation of the internal audit function,
their audit approach and the effectiveness
of their reports and conclusions, The
survey results showed that the internal
audrt function 1s considered professional
and dibgert and that its internal audrts
are appropriately detalled.
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External audit

The Company’s external audrtors are
KPMG LLP As set out In more detall
below, the Committee has considered
their appointment, governance, fees
and independence, together with the
work performed.

Appointment and governance

In recommending the reappointment
of external audrtors at the AGM. the
Committee has taken into account EU
gurdance and the Competition and
Markets (CMA) Authority Order on
mandatery audn tendenng. Merlin will
be required to retender its audit no
later than for the 2023 financial year.
The Commuttee will bear in mind the
next regular KPMG partner rotation
after the 2019 audit.

The Committee has considered
whether a retender during 2017

would be appropriate as part of its
annual recommendation on the
appointment of the external audtors,
The Committee decided to recommend
retaining KPMG for 2017,

Remuneration and independence
of external auditors

Non-audit services are subject to market

tenders or tests and are awarded to the
most appropriate provider The external
auditors may provide non-audit services
only when their skills and experience
make them a competitive and most
appropriate supplier of these services,
MNoen-audt services that are awarded

to the auditors are normally limited to

assignments that are closely related to the

annual audit or where the work requires
a detaled understanding of the Group.

The new Ethical Standard for the audit
profession issued by the FRC required
KPMG to review their non-audit services
and resign from their tax appointmerits.
The Committee was satisfied with the
way KPMG approached this exercise
and has updated its Terms of Reference
on appointing the auditers for non-audtt
services accordingly

The prinaple followed 1s that the audrtors

may net provide a service which®

* Places them in a position to audit
their own work.

« Impacts thesr independence by
creating a shared interest.

* Results In the audtors developing
close personal relationships with
Merlin employees.

+ Results In the audtors functioning
as a manager or employee of Merlin,

» Puts the auditors in the role of
advocate for Merlin.

The Committee granted the CFO
authormy to approve the following
non-audit services
* Work which a third party requires
to be carried out by the
Company's audrtors,
*  Any other work up to a value of
50,000 where the external auditors
are best placed to undertake the work.

The Committee regularly reviews and,
where necessary, challenges management
to ensure that auditor objectivity and
independence 1s not rmpaired. We
review reports on audit, audrt-related
and non-audrt expendrture, together
with proposals of any matenal

non-audrt related assignments.

The Committee has adepted the
guidance and related definions from
the Department for Business, Energy and
Industrial Strategy and determined that
‘non-audtt fees’ should be no higher than
70% of 'audit fees”. ¥We will continue

to monttor this rabio, In 2016 fees for
non-audit services were £0.7 millen
(2015 £08 mifon); a ratio of 48%

(2015 58%). Detals of KPMG fees

can be found in note 2.1 to the

financial statements.

The Committee s satisfied that the
overall levels of audit-related and
non-audit fees, and the nature of
services provided, are not such that
would compromise the objectivity and
independence of the external auditors,

AUDIT Committee Report

Assessment of the performance

of the external auditors

Following consideration of the FRC's
Practice Aid on Audit Quality. the
Committee has evaluated the
performance, independence and
objectivity of KPMG. This included

an externally faciitated, questionnaire
based. effectiveness assessment as
well as interviews with Audit Committee
members and other attendees, and
senior finance personnel both at
Merlin's attractions and at its head
office. The survey covered KPMG's
mindset and culture, skills and
knowledge, judgement and

quality control of the audit.

The survey indicated widespread
satisfaction with the quality of the
KPMG audit and the Committes
accepted KPMG's responses to
ponts raised m the survey.

The effectiveness of KPMG's 2016 audit
was assessed over the year by reference
to the following factors.

* The performance of Hugh Green
in hus second year as Audit Partner,
including his understanding of our
business and the impact on the
Annual Report and Accounts.

» The robustness and perceptiveness
of KPMG's handling of key accounting
and audrt judgernents,

+ The quality of communication wrth
the Committee, ncluding the regular
reports on accounting and
governance matters.

+ The skills and experience of the
wider audit team and ther execution
of the audit, ncluding the way they
handled the key accounting and audit
Judgements and communication of
the same with management and
the Committee.

* The guality of the formal report
to shareholders,

+ Therr reputation and standing, Including
their Independence and cbjectivity,
their internal quality procedures,
and reports published by the FRC.
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DIRECTORS’

Remuneration Report

STATEMENT FROM THE CHAIRMAN OF THE REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Dear Shareholder

This year's Remuneration Report 15 split nto three sections:

Statement from the Chairman of the Remuneration
Committee contains detalls of cur remuneration principles
and of the key decisions reached by the Commuttee.

Policy Report to be put to a binding vote by shareholders at
the 2017 AGM. Given that the existing Remuneration Policy
expires in the 2017 financal year, a summary of changes is
contained in this Chairman’s Statement with the full details
set out In the Policy Report.

Annual Report on Remuneration contans details of pay
recewved by Directors in 2016 and full details of how we
intend to implement cur pay policy dunng 2017, The Annual
Report on Remuneration will be subject to an advisery vote
at the 2017 AGM.

Remuneration principles
A series of key principles underpin the Merlin remuneration

structure’ payments should be based on results and performance,

pay should be aligned to the long term success of the Company
and consistent with best practice; and widespread share
ownership should be encouraged

Performance orientated

Rewarding performance is a core part of our ethos, About
80% of our permanent employees participate in a bonus plan
and over 340 employees receve regular share awards or
share option grants

To reinforce the Iink between performance and pay, most
employees are rewarded for the performance of their
particular attraction, Only the senior executives {the
Executive Committee and therr direct reports) and
employees of central functions are rewarded for the
performance of the overall Group.

For senior executives, including the Executive Directors,
performance related pay, based on stretching short term
and longer term targets, forms a significant part of their
potential pay packages.

Aligned to the long term success of the Company

Qur pay structure encourages strong alignment between

the interests of our senior executives and the interests of

our shareholders.

* Senior executives receive regular awards of shares under
the Performance Share Plan (PSP} which are subject to the
achievement of challenging EPS and ROCE performance
targets. EPS and ROCE are key performance ndicators
aligned to the Company’s strategic priorities and the
creation of value to shareholders

= The business continues to see many global opportunities for
the successful deployment of capital and these measures are
designed to ensure that this 1s done in the most effective
manner to generate sustainable long term returns

+ For semior executives. there Is greater emphasis on rewards
for delivery of lenger term performance targets than short
term performance targets.

+ Members of the Executive Committee are required to
buld up and retain a significant holding of Merlin shares.
For Executive Directors, the requirermnent 1s to bulld a
holding of shares worth 200% of base salary.

Consistent with best practice

* Salaries are intended to be set at competitive, but not
excessive, levels compared to peers and other companies
of an equivalent size and complexity

» There s potential for market competitive levels of total
pay but only if stretching business targets are delivered,

+ For our employees, we have a high degree of smplicity
in our pay model.

Widespread share ownership

* Widespread share ownership is an integral part of Merln’s
culture. We operate all-employee share plans that enable
all of our permanent employees to purchase a stake in
our Compariy.

* These plans supplement the discretionary share plans for
senior executives (Deferred Bonus Plan and PSP) and the
Company Share Option Plan (CSOP) for middle management.
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Performance in 2016
The financial and operating performance of Merlin in 2016 1s
set out on pages 2 1o 59 in the Strategic Report.

The Group delivered a sohd set of finanaial results The
LEGOLAND Parks Cperating Group continued to deliver
growth and the Resort Theme Parks Operating Group delivered
a stronger year supported by the recovery at Alton Towers
However, a combination of security concerns and exchange

rate volatility impacted trading at some of our largest city

centre locations in the Midway Attractions Operating Group.
Taken together, the Group reported revenue of £1,457 million
and generated an underlying operating profit of £320 milhon

for the 53 weeks ended 31 December 2016.

As a result of financial performance falling below the threshold
for payment of profit refated bonus, no bonus will be paid to
the CEQ or the current or previous CFO in relation to

2016 performance.

The Performance Share Plan awards granted on IPO in
Novernber 201 3 will partally vest on | April 2017, Detalls
of the awards are set out on page 100 of this report

Pay decisions for 2017

The proposed pay structure for the Executive Directors for

2017 1s cutlned on pages 93 to 94 Key decisions made by

the Committee in relation to 2017 include’

* The CEO receved a |1.0% increase in his salary as part of the
pay review effective from | October 2C16. The annual pay
review date for the Group has moved from | October to
| April and as a result it 15 proposed to grant a further
increase of 2.25% from that date The average salary increase
for the Merlin UK workforce effective from | October 2016
was 1.0% and effective from | April 2017 15 2.25%. Under the
terms of her contract, the salary of the CFO 15 fixed until
October 2017 when a 2.25% increase will be awarded

* The Commrttee has agreed the same basic structure 1o the
bonus plan as 2016 with individual cbjectives for the Executive
Directors appropriately reflecting Company priories For the
Executive Directors 100% of bonus award depends on profit
performance and of that 20% also depends on achievement
against speafic personal objectives.

« The Cornmittee has also maintained the same basic
structure for the PSP with unchanged threshold and maximum
performance conditions. In addition, for awards from April
2017 onwards a heaith and safety underpin will be attached
to all PSP awards. Further detalls are set out on page 94.

DIRECTORS' Remuneration Report

Review of Remuneration Policy for 2017

The Comrmuttee has reviewed the applcation of the
Remuneration Policy in place since 2014 and concluded that the
structure of the current approach to salary, short term and long
term incentives for the Executive Directors remains aligned to
our remuneration principles. In light of this, no significant
amendments are preposed.

As previously communicated the Company has put in place
malus and clawback provisions and a heafth and safety underpin
for all PSP awards from 2017 onwards. We have also taken this
opportunity to clanfy that the Committee already has the ability
1o adjust bonus awards to ensure they reflect underlying business
performance, including heafth and safety matters,

These important safeguards are incorporated into the proposed
new Remuneration Policy.

Recent economic uncertainty along with suggastions for
atternative approaches to Executive Remuneration structures
and other guidelines from investors mean that the Committee
will keep the policy under active review. Any future propoesals
will be driven by the Company's strategy and will take account
of the increasing complexity of the Group

| hope you will find this report to be clear and helpful in
understanding our remuneration practices and that you will be
supportive of the resolution relating to remuneration at the AGM.
As ever, the Committee welcomes any questions or comments
from shareholders.

Charles Gurassa
Chairman of the Remuneration Committee
| March 2017
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POLICY REPORT

This part of the Remuneration Report sets cut our updated
Directors’ Rermuneration Policy (Policy). The Policy will be subject
to a binding shareholder vote at the 2017 AGM. This Policy will
apply to payments made from |3 June 2017, The current

pohey was approved n 2014 by a vote in favour of 99.4%.

The information prowvided in this section of the Remuneration
Report 1s not subject to audit

Policy table

The foliowing table sets out details of each component of the

Executive Director remuneration package, Our aim s to provide

pay packages that will.

+ Motivate and retan our industry leading employees

+ Attract high quality individuals to join us,

+ Encourage and support a high performance culiure.

+ Reward delivery of our business plan and key strategic goals.

+  Align our employees with the interests of shareholders and
other external stakeholders.

Key changes to the previous Policy are as follows with

detals included in the relevant sections of the updated
Policy below.

Purpose and link

« Effectve from 2016, malus and clawback condrtions apply

to bonus payments, deferred share awards and Performance
Share Plan awards. In addition, effective from 2017, 2 health
and safety underpin will apply to all PSP awards The Policy
also spearfically sets out that the Remuneration Cormmittee
has discretion to amend the bonus payout should any
formulaic output not reflect the Committee's assessment

of overall business performance, ncluding for health and
safety 1ssues,

« To reflect the international compasition of the Non-executive

Directors (NED}, where a NED lives cutside the UK a travel
allowance may be paid for attendance at Board meetings.

+ The updated Policy clarifies payments that can be made

in connection with a Director's cessation of office or
employment where the payments are made in good farth

in cischarge of an existing legal obligation or by way of a
compromise or settlement of any clam arnising in connection
with the cessation of a Director’s office or employment.

= The updated Policy clarfies the dscretion of the Committee

to make appropriate remuneration decisions outside the
standard Policy in the exceptional circumstances when the
Chairman or a NED or an interm appomntment takes on
an Executive Director role on a short term basis,

to strategy Operation Maximum oppottunity Performance conditions )
Fixed pay
Base salary Generally reviewed annually with any increase No absolute maximum has been set for Naone

To appropriately
recognise responsibilities
and attract and retain
talent by ensuring salanes
are market competitive

of the year if t considers it appropriate

The review takes Into consideration a number
of factors, nduding (but not imited ta)y
* The ndwidual Directer’s role, expenence
and performance
* Business performance,
* Market data for comparable roles
N appropriate pay comparators.
* Pay and conditions elsewhere in
the Group.

normally taking effect from | Apnil although the
Committee may award increases at other fimes

Executive Director base salaries Current
Executive Director salanes are set out in
the Annual Report on Remuneration
sectron of this Remuneration Report

Any annual Increase in salaries 1s at the
discretion of the Committee taking into
account the factors stated in this table
and the followang prinaples

+ Salaries would typically be increased
at a rate consistent with the average
salary increase (in percentage of salary
terms) for permanent UK employzes

+ Larger increases may be considered
appropriate in certain arcumstances
(including, but not Imrted to, a change
in an ndvidual’s responsibilities or
the scale of their role or in the size
and complexaty of the Group).

* Larger increases may also be
considered appropriate if a Director
has been nally appainted to the
Board at a lower than typrcal salary
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to strategy Operation Maximum opportunity Performance conditions
Benefits Benefits are role speafic and take into account  There s no overall maximum as the None
To provide market local market practice level of benefits depends on the annual
competitive cost of providing individual items in the
benefits Benefits currently include a company car or car  relevant focal market and the indwdual’s

allowance, phone costs, ncome protection specific role,

insurance, an annual medical, private medical

insurance and iife assurance of four tmes

annual salary. The Committee has discretion,

in the event of the appointment of & Director

based overseas or in appropriate arcumstances,

to add to or remave benefits provided to

Executive Directors
Pension Current policy is for the Company to ether Executive Directors recewve a contnbution  None

To provide market
competitive retirement
benefits

contribute 1o the Group Pension Plan and/or
to provide a cash allowance in lieu of pension,

of up to 25% of base salary to the Group
Pension Plan andfor as a cash allowance
in heu of pension

Variable pay

Annual bonus & @

To hnk reward to key
business targets for the
forthcoming year and to
indradual contrbution.

Addtional alignment with
shareholders’ interests
through the operation

of bonus deferral

The Executive Directors are participants in the
central bonus plan which 1s reviewed annually
1o ensure bonus opportunity, performance
measures and targets are appropnate and
supportive of the business strategy

Two-thirds of an Executrve Director’s annual
bonus 1s delivered in cash following the release
of audited results and the remaining third is
deferred into an award over Company shares
under The Merlin Entertainments plc
Deferred Beonus Plan

+ Deferred awards are usually granted in the
form of conditional share awards or nil-cost
options (and may also be settled in cash).

« Deferred awards usually vest three years
after award although may vest early on
leaang employment or on a change of
control (see later sections).

* An additional payment (in the form of

cash or shares) may be made in respect

of shares which vest under deferred awards

to reflect the value of dividends which would

have been paid on those shares during the
vesting period (this payment may assume
that dividends had been reinvested in

Company shares on a cumulative basis)

Bonus payments and deferred share awards

will be subject to withhalding or clawback

at the Remuneration Comrittee’'s diseretion
during the three year period following

the award of the bonus In exceptional

circumstances where the Committee finds

that the Executive Director has engaged in
misconduct justifing summary dismissal or
there has been a material misstatement of
the finanaal accounts relating to the relevant
banus year or any other error in calculation
which has led to an overpayment of bonus,

The maximum award that can be made
under the central bonus plan 1s 150%
of base salary.

Each year the Remuneration Committee
determines the maximum bonus
opportunity for individual Executive
Directors within this imit,

The bonus 1s based on
performance assessed
over one year using
appropriate financial.
strategic and indwdual
performance measures

The majcrity of the bonus
will be determined by
measure(s) of Group
finanoial performance
The selected measure(s)
for the relevant financal
year are set out in the
Annual Report on
Remuneration section
of this Remuneration
Report

A sliding scale of targets
15 set for each Group
financial measure with
payout at zero for
threshold financial
performance increasing
to 50% for meeting
expectations and

100% for maximum
performance,

The remander of the
bonus will be based

on financial, strategic

or operational measurcs
appropriate to the
indmidual Director,

The selected measures
for the relevant financial
year are set out in the
Annual Report on
Remuneration section
of this Remuneration
Report
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Purpose and link
to strategy

Operation

Maximum opportunity

Performance conditions

Performance Share Plan
(PSP &

To link reward to key
business targets for the
longer term and to retan
executives and the
creation of value for
shareholders by
rewarding long term
objectives

The discretion avallable to the Committee
remarmns unchanged and continues to provide
wide-ranging discretion on the award and
vesting of benuses In particular the Committee
has discretion to amend the payout should any
formulaie cutput not reflect the Committee’s
assessment of overall business performance,
inciuding heafth and safety 1ssues

Awards are usually granted annually under the
PSP to Executive Directors and other selected
senior executives

Individual award levels and performance
conditions on which vesting will be
dependent are reviewed annually by
the Remuneration Committee,

Awards may be granted as condrmional
awards of shares, nil-cost options or
forfeitable share awards {or, if appropnate,
as cash-settled equivalents)

Awards normally vest at the end of a period
of at least three years following grant althcugh
may vest early on leaving employment or on a
change of control (see later sections)

An additicnal payment {(in the form of cash

or shares) may be made in respect of shares
which vest under PSP awards to reflect the
value of dividends which would have been
paid on those shares during the vesting penod
fthis payment may assume that dividends had
been reinvested in Company shares on a
cumulative basis).

PSP awards will be subject to potential
withholding or clawback during the five
vear period following the date of award

i exceptional crcumstances of evidence
corring to Iight of misconduct justifying
sumrnary disrissal or of a matenal
misstatement of the financial accounts

or an error In the calculation of the extert
of payment or vesting of an incentive

In the event of a materal health and safety
breach by the Group during the period
between grant and vesting of an award, the
Remuneration Committee may reduce the
number of shares which would otherwise vest
as a result of the EPS and ROCE performance
conditions to ensure that the vesting outcome
1s appropriate.

The maximum annual award perrmitted
under the PSP is shares with a market
value (as determined by the Committee)

of 350% of salary

Each year the Remuneration Committee
determines the actuat award level for
individual Executive Directors wathin

this limit.

Any bonus payout Is
ultimatety at the
discretion of the
Committes.

Vesting of PSP awards

Is usually dependent on,
but not imited to,
measures of Group
earrings and return on
total investment with the
precise measures and
weighting of the measures
deterrmined by the
Committee ahead of
each award These details
are disclosed in the
Annual Report on
Remuneration section

of this Remunaration
Report

Performance will usually
be measured over a three
year performance penod,
For achieving a ‘threshold
level of performance
against a performance
measure, no more than
25% of the portion of the
PSP award determined

by that measure will vest.
Vesting then increases on
a shding scale to 100%
for achiewing a stretching
maximum performance
target
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to strategy Operation
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Maximum opportunity Performance conditions

All Employee Share Plan  Tax-approved monthly savings scheme

(UK Sharesave Scheme)  faclitating the purchase of shares through
R share options at a discounted exercise price
To create staff alignment by all eligible UK employees

with the Group and
promote a sense of
ownership,

Executive Directors are ehgible to partiapate
on the sarme basis as other employees

Company Share Option
Plan (CSOP) &
Executive Directors

will only receive CSOP
awards in exceptional
circumstances

zn exergise price of not less than the market
value of a share (as determined by the
Committee} at the time of grant

Options are usually exercisable between
three and ten years following grant although
Indviduals who are
promaoted to the Board
may have outstanding
awards under this plan.

employment or on a change of control
(see later sections).

Options that are HMRC unapproved may, if

appropriate, be settled in cash or be net-settled

The CSOP permits grants of share options with

may have a different exerase period on leaving

The Sharesave scheme 1s
structured in accordance
with HMRC requirements
50 has no performance
condmions but requires
participants 1o make
regular savings Into a
savings contract,

Monthly saving limit of £500 {or such
other limit as may be approved from
tme to time by HMRC} under all
savings contracts held by an indmdual,

If CSOP awards were, in
exceptional arcurmstances,
granted to an Executive
Dhrector, they would be
subject to an appropriate
performance condition as
determined by the
Commuttee

Annual awards of options over shares
worth up to 100% of salary at grant
{or if the Remuneration Comrittee
deterrmines that special arcumstances
exist, 200% of salary)

An indwidual promated
to the Board may have
outstanding CSOP awards
{granted pror to their
promotion} that have no
performance conditions
attached to them

Notes to the table:

The Commuttee may vary 0t wane any performance condiion(s} if arcumstances
accur which cause it to determine that the onginal condition{s) nove ceased io

be approprate, prowded that any 2:ch vanonen o wanet Js fon reasonable and
not materially tess difficult to satisfy than the enginal condibion (in its opinien)

The Committee may olso odust the calcutation of performance taigets and vesting
autcomes (for instance for matertal acquisitiens, disposals o7 nvestments dnd events
1ot foreseen ar the nme the targets were set) to ensure they reman a fon reflection
of performance over the relevant perod In the event that the Cammuittee were to
make an gdustment of this sort, ¢ full expianguon would be piovded 1n the next
Remuneration Report.

Performance measures - annual bonus The annua! bonus measures are reviewed
annually and chosen to focus executive rewards on detvery of key finanaal targets
for the forthcoming vear mn addition to key strategic or operational goals reievant to
an indwdual Precse targets for bonus measures are set at the start of each year
by the Remuneration Comimittee based on refevant reference bomts, induding,

for Group financal targets, the Company’s budget ond are designed to be
oppropriately stretching

The Committes may (@} i the event of a varration of the Company's share caprial
and {witn the exception of HMRC approved options) demerger, super dnadend or
dividend in specie or any other corbarate event winuch t reasonably determines
Justifies such an ogustment. adiust. and (b) amend the terms of dwards granted
unider the share schemes iefeired to above in accordance with the rules of the
relevant plans (which were summansed for shareholders i the Company's IPO
Prospectus) Share awards may be settled by the issue 6f new shares or by the
transfer of existing shares in fine with prevaiing best practice at the tirme this
Polcy Report is approved, any issuance of new shares is lnmted to 5% of share
capital over a roling ten year peniod in relation te dscretionary employee share
scheimes ond | 0% of share capital aver @ rolng ten year penod in refation to

all ermployee share schemes

Performance measures - PSP The PSP performance measures ore chosen 1o provide
augnment with our tonger te:m stategy of grawing the business in g sustamable
mannes that will be in the best interests of shareholders and other key stakeholders
ir the Company In baricular aut use of eormngs and retuin on total vestment
measwres 15 desigrned to reward management for delvery of key financial meoswes
of Company success that should resu't in sustanabie value ceauon Targets are
considered ahead of eacri PSP grant by the Remunerason Committee taking mto
account sefevant exteinal and mrernaf reference ponts and are designed 1o be
apfuopridtely stretching

" Broadly equnalent versions of the UK Sharesave Scheme operate for USA employees

(LIS Employee Stock Purchose Plan) ond averseas employees (Overseas Sharesave
Scheme) An Executve Oirector based n the USA or overseas may be ehgible to
participate in one aof these schemes instead of the UK Sharesave Scheme

The monthly contnbution hmit for the US Employee Stock Purchase Plan

would be specified by the Remuneration Committee before each grant.

¢ The Conwrittee jeserves the nght to make dny temuneration payments andfor

payments far loss of office (including exercising any discretions avaiable o 1t n
cannecton with such payrments) netwithstanding thar they are not n bne with the
policy set out above where the teims of the payment were agreed (1) before the
2014 AGM (the date the Company's first shareholder-approved Directors’
rernuneration policy come mto effect) {u) before the policy set out abave carme mnto
effect. provded that the terms of the payment were consistent with the shareholder-
approved Directors” remuneration poiicy 1n force at the tme they were ogreed, or
() at a tme when the relevant mdwdual was not o Director of the Company and
in the opimon of the Comrmittee, the payment was net m consideraton for the
ndnadual becorming a Director of the Company For these purpases “payments
ineludes the Cormimittee sausfing awards of vanable remuneration and, in relation
to an aword over shares, the terms of the payment are “agreed” at the time the
award s granted

The Cornmittee may moke gt omendments to the poliey set out in this Policy
Report {for teguiatory exchange contial, tax o administrative purposes o' fo take
account of @ change un legisianon) withott obtairing shareholder approval for
that armendment
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Differences in policy from broader employee population

There are differences in the prease compeonents within the pay pohicy for Executive Directors and for our employees generally and a

greater proportion of Executive Directors’ pay 15 "at risk’ and determined by performance than for our employees generally, However, as
outhned In the Committee Chairman’s Statement, commaon principles underhe the pay policy throughout the Company including for the

Executive Directors In particular, we place great emphasis throughout the Cempany on reward being linked to performance (erther
Group performance or of an employee's particular attraction) and on encouraging share ownership (through participation in the PSR

CSGP or the All Employee Share Plan)

Non-executive Directors

Purpose and link to strategy

Operation

Opportunity

Non-executive Director {NED) fees
To appropriately recognise responsibilities
by ensuring fees are market competriive,

NED fees (other than NEDs whose
appointment is i respect of their position
as represertatives of the pre-IPO major
shareholders) comprise payment of an
annual basic fee and additional fees for
further Board responsibifities such as

* Senior Independent Directon,

« Audit Committee Chairman

+ Remuneration Committee Chairman,

The Charman of the Board recerves an
all-inclusive fee

No NED participates in the Group's Incentive
arrangements or pension plan or receives any

other benefits other than

« where travel to the Company's registered
office 1s recogrised as a taxable benefit in
which case a NED may receive the
grossed-up costs of travel as a benefit.

* where a NED hves outside the UK n

which case a travel allowance may be paid

Fees are generally reviewed annually.

NEDs whose appointment is in respect of their
position as shareholder representatives do not

receive a fee,

Fees are set at an appropriate level that 1s
market competitive and reflective of the
responsibilities and tme commitment
associated with speafic roles

No abselute maximum has been set for
indimicdual NED fees / allowances Current
fee levels are set out in the Annual Report
on Remuneration section of this
Remuneration Report.

The Compary'’s Articles of Assocation
provide that the total aggregate fees paid
to the Chairman and NEDs will not
exceed £],000000
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lllustrations of application of remuneration policy
Merlin's remuneration arrangements have been designed to ensure that a significant proportion of pay 15 dependent on the delivery
of stretching short term and long term performance targets.

The charts below provide illustrative values of the remuneration package for Executive Directors under three assumed performance
scenarios. The charts are for illustrative purposes only and actual outcomes may differ from those shown,

Assumed performance

Assumptions used

All performance scenanos (Fixed pay)

Minimum performance (Varable pay)

Performance in ine with expectations {Vanable pay}’

Maximum performance (Vaniable pay)”

« Consists of total fixed pay, including base salary, benefits and pension

* Base salary - salary effective as at | January 2017

+ Benefits - estimated value of 5% of base salary

+ Pension - amount expected to be received in 2017 (25% of base salary)

* No payout under the annual bonus
+ No vesting under the PSR

* 50% of the maximum payout under the annual bonus
* 50% vesting under the PSP

+ 100% of the maximum payout under the annual bonus
+ 100% vesting under the PSP

GRAPH REMOVED
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Approach to recruitment remuneration

Principles

In determining remuneration arrangements for new

appointments to the Board (including internal promations),

the Committee apphes the following principles,

+ The Committee takes into consideration all relevant factors,
including the calibre of the indwidual, market data and existing
arrangements for other Executive Directors, with a view that
any arrangements should be in the best interests of Merhn
and our shareholders, without paying more than 1s necessary

+ Typically the new appointment will have (or be transitioned
onto) the same package structure as the other Executive
Directors, in line with the Policy Table presented above

+ Where an Executive Director s appointed from wathin the
organisation, the normal policy of the Company s that any
legacy arrangements would be honoured in line with the
original terms and conditions. Similarly, if an Executive Director
i3 appoirited following the Company's acquisition of or merger
with another cormpany or business. legacy terms and
conditions would be honoured.

+ Upon appointment, the Committee may consider it
appropriate to offer addtional remuneration arrangements
in order to secure the appointment, In particular the
Committee may consider it appropriate to 'buy out’ terms
or remuneration arrangements forferted on leaving a
previous employer (discussed below).

« The Committee may provide costs and support if the
recrurtment requires relocation of the indradual

+ The Committee retans discretion to make appropriate
remuneration decisions outside the standard Policy to
meet the indmdual arcurnstances of recrurtment when'

+ Aninterim appointment 1s made to fill an Executive
Director rele on a short term basis; or

+ Exceptional arcumstances require that the Chairman
or a Non-executive Director takes on an executive
function on a short term basis.

Maximum level of variable pay

The maximum level of variable remuneration which may be
granted to new Executive Directors in respect of recrutment
shall be Imted to the maximum permitted in the Policy Table,
namely 500% of their annual salary. This Imit excludes any
payments or awards that may be made to buy out the Director
for terms, awards or other compensation forfeited from their
previous empioyer (discussed below).

Buy outs

To facilitate recrutment, the Remuneration Committee may
rmake a one off award to buy out terms, ncentives and any

other compensation arrangerments forfeited en leaving a previous
employer. In doing so, the Committee will take accourt of all
relevant factors, including any performance conditions attached to
incentive awards, the likelihood of those conditions being met, the
proportion of the vesting/performance period remaining and the
form of the award (e.g. cash or shares). The overnding principle
will be that any replacement buy out award should be of
comparable commercal value to the terms, Incentrves and other
compensation which have been forfeited. However such awards
would only be considered where there is a strong commercal
rationale to do so.

Components and approach

The remuneration package offered to new appontments may
include any element listed in the Policy Table above. or any other
elernent which the Committee considers is appropriate given the
particular crcumstances, with due regard 1o the best interests of
shareholders subject to the Imits on vaniable pay set out above.

In considering which elements to include, and in determining the
approach for all relevant elerments, the Committee will take into
account a number of different factors. including {but not limited
to) market practice, existing arrangements for other Executive
Directors and internal relatvities If appropriate, different targets
may be applied to a new appointee’s ncentives in their year

of joining.

The Committee would seek to structure buy out and varable
pay awards on recrutment to be in fine with the Company’s
remuneration framework so far as practical but, if necessary,

the Committee may also gramt such awards outside of that
framework as permitted under Listing Rule 2.4.2 subject to

the imits on variable pay set out above, The exact terms of any
such awards (e.g the form of the award, tmeframe, performance
condrtions, and leaver provisions) would vary depending upon
the specfic commeraal arcumstances,

Recruitment of Non-executive Directors

In the event of the appointment of a new Non-executive
Director, remuneration arrangements will normally be in line
with the structure set out in the Policy Table for Non-executive
Directors. However the Committee (or the Board as
appropnrate) may indude any element listed in the Policy Table
above, or any other element which the Committee considers

15 appropriate given the particular arcumstances, with due
regard 10 the best interests of shareholders.
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Service contracts

Key terms of the current Executive Directors’ service agreements

and Non-executive Directors' letters of appointment (other than
the Non-executive Director whose appointment is in respect of
their position as representative of KIRKBI) are summarised in the
table below It 15 envisaged that any future appointments would
have equivalent contractual arrangements unless otherwise
stated in this Policy Report,

Provision Policy

Notice pernod Executive Directors - twelve mornths” notice by

either the Company or the Executive Director

Non-executive Directors - three months' notice
by either the Company or the Non-executive
Director or na notice perod 1f terminated

by shareholders.

Termination
payment

There 1s no payment in heu of notice ¢lause in
the Executive Directors' service agreements
Any payments of compensation on termination
would be subject to negotiation in line with
general principles which include a duty for

the indwvidual to mitigate loss

Non-executive Directors are entitled to recewe
any fee accruing in respect of therr notice period

Expiry date Executive Directors have rolling twelve months’

notice periods so have no fixed expiry date

All Non-executive Directors have rolling three
months' notice pertods so have no fixed
expiry date

Seren Thorup Serensen, as the Non-executive Director
nomenated by KIRKBI 1s appointed pursuant to the Relatienship
Agreernent with his nominating shareholder and does not
have an indmdual letter of appointment with the Company.
The Relationship Agreement provides for KIRKBI to maintain

a Non-executive Director as a shareholder representative for
50 long as they hold 10% of the Company’s share capital.

The Company has the right to remove this Director should
the relevant shareholding fall below 0% and no fees or
termination payments are payable, All Executive Directors’
service agreements and Non-executive Directors’ letters of
appointment are avalable for inspection at the Company's
registered office at 3 Market Close. Poole, Dorset BHIS INQ.

Policy on payment for loss of office

As outhned above, there are no contractual obligations to make
any payments to Executive Directors in relation to loss of office
and any termination payment would be subject to negotiation
afthough would not be expected in normal arcumstances te
exceed salary, pension and benefits in relation to the individual's
outstanding notice period,

DIRECTORS' Remuneration Report

In relation to payments under nen-contractual incentive schemes,

the Committee would take the following factors into account.

» The Committee may determine that the Executive Director
s eligible to recewe a bonus in respect of the financial year in
which they cease employment This bonus would usually be
time apportioned. In deterrmining the level of bonus to be
paid, the Committee may, at its discretion, take into account
performance up to the date of cessation or over the financial
year as a whole based on appropriate performance measures
as determined by the Committee,

» The treatment of outstanding share awards 15 governed by
the relevant share plan rules,

The Committee reserves the right to make any cther payments
in connection with a Cirector's cessation of office or employment
where the payments are made in good faith In discharge of an
existing legal obligation (or by way of damages for breach of such
an cblgation) or by way of a compromise or settlement of any
claim arising in connection with the cessation of a Director’s
office or employment. Any such payments may include but are
not imited to paying any fees for outplacernent assistance and/or
the Birector's legal andfor professional advice fees in connection
with his cessation of office or employment

The table cverleaf summanises the treatment of share awards
for leavers and on a change of control In share plans under
which Executive Directors could hold awards.

Consideration of employment conditions elsewhere in
the Group

The Committee does not formally consult with erployees

as part of its process when determining Executive Director pay.
However the Committee 15 kept informed of general decsions
made 1n relation to employee pay and related issues by the
Group HR Director and 1s conscious of the importance of
ensuring that its pay decisions for Executive Directors are
regarded as far and reasonable within the business. As cutlined
in the Policy Table, pay and condtions in the Group are one

of the specfic considerations taken into account when

the Committee Is determining salary levels for the

Executive Directors.

Consideration of shareholders’ views

The Company's fargest shareholder (KIRKBI} has an observer

at the Committee. In addition we have sought the views of our
largest institutional shareholders {for instance through discussicn
with the Chairman of the Board and/or the Rermuneration
Committee Chair) and leading advisory bodies,
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The following table summarises the treatment of share awards for ieavers and on a change of control in share plans under which

Executive Directors could hold awards.

Good leaver

Treatment for
good leaver

Treatment
for any
other leaver

Treatment on a change
of control { voluntary
winding-up

Plan categories
Deferred ¢+ Death,
Bonus Plan ¢ Inury
¢ Disability
* {I-health,
¢ Retirement
+ Redundancy
+ Transfer of employing
company or business to
which an individual’s
employment relates
Performance out of the Group.
Share Plan .

Any other scenanc in
which the Remuneration
Comrmittee determines

that good leaver

treatment is appropnate
{other than circumstances
wstifing summary disrrissal)

Company Share
Option Plan
Executive
Directors will
only receive
CS0OP awards
in excephional
clrcumstances.

Indiviguals who
are promoted to
the Board may
have cutstanding
awards under
this plan

UK Sharesave
Scheme /
Orverseas
Sharesave
Scheme

the Cormpany

US Employee
Stock Purchase
Plan

Dreferred bonus awards vest on
cessation of employment / death

PSP awards will usually vest on a
tme-apportioned basis on the normal
vesting date subject to any relevant
performance condition(s} measured
over the full performance perod

Heowever, in the event of death,

or spectal arcurmnstances at the
Remuneration Commuttee’s discretion,
awards may vest early based on the
Committee's determination of the
extent to which any relevant
performance conditions are satisfied,

The Committae has the discreton,
acting fairly and reasonably to dis-apply
time apportionment.

Options become exercisable for a period
of six manths after the date on which
the Committee determines the extent to
which the option becomes exerasable

(or twelve months in the event of death).

Options will become exercisable subject
to the Commuttee’s determination of the
extent to which any relevant
performance conditions are satisfied and
on a time-appertioned basis unless the
Commuittee determines otherwise In
relation to HMRC-unapproved options,
options may become exeraisable at the
normal vesting date or earlier If the
Committee determines.

Deferred bonus
awards lapse

Awwards lapse

Options lapse

Deferred bonus awards
vest in full,

PSP awards will vest on a
time-apportioned basis
{unless the performance
period 15 complete or unless
the Committee determines
otherwise) and subject to the
Committee's determination of
the extent to which any
relevant performance
conditions are satisfied

Options will become
exerasable on a time-
apportioned basis (unfess
any performance period Is
complete or unless the
Committee deterrmines
otherwise) and subject to the
Committee’s determination
of the extent to which any
relevant performance
canditions are satisfied.

Opticns become exercisable immediately on death, ceasing employment due to injury, disability, retirernent, redundancy. sale of
the employing company or business to which an Indwidual’s employment relates out of the Group or on a change of control of

Options become exercisable on death, ceasing employment due to imury, permanent disabiity, reaching nermal retirerent age, sale
of the employing company or business to which an individual’s employment relates or on a change of control of the Company
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ANNUAL REPORT ON REMUNERATION

The Annual Report on Remuneration will be subject to an advisory shareholder vote at the 2017 Annual General Meeting

UNAUDITED INFORMATION

Implementation of remuneration policy in 2017
This section provides an overview of how the Committee 1s propasing to implerent our remuneration policy, as set out in the
Policy Report, in 2017 for the current Executive Directors.

Base salary
Salary detals for the current Executive Directors are set out below,

Salary Salary
| October 2015 | October 2016 % increase
Nick Varney (CEO) £581,400 £587,214 1%
Anne-Francoise Nesmes (CFQ) - on joining - £385,000 -

Following a review of the timing of the Group's annual pay review it was decided to move the review date from { QOctober to | April,
effective from 2017, To effect this transition, small interim pay awards were made in October 2016 with a full annual award to be made
in April 2017, As a resutt, Nick Varmey received an increase of 1.0% in October 2016 and will recewve an increase of 2 25% in Apnl 2017
in line with the average increase for all UK permanent employees. In accordance with her contract Anne-Francoise Nesmes will recerve
a first review of her salary in October 2017, also reflecting a 2.25% increase,

Pension and benefits

Asin 2016, the current Executive Directors wilf recesve a Company contribution worth 25% of salary. Nick Varney will receve this
contribution as a cash allowance and Anne-Francoise Nesmes wall receve a contribution to the Group Pension Plan of ne more than
the mimirmumn annual allowance for pensions of £10,000 and a cash allowance in respect of the balance. To the extent that a cash
allowarice 15 pad this 1s reduced by the corresponding amount of employer National Insurance Contributions. They will also receive
a standard package of other benefits consistent with those receved in 2016

Annual bonus

The structure of the annual bonus plan for 2017 remains broadly consistent with the 2016 plan. Key features are as follows:

« The maximum annual bonus potential will be 150% of salary for the CEO and |135% for the CFO.

« One-third of any bonus earned will be deferred nto shares for three years under The Merlin Entertainments plc
Deferred Borus Plan.

» Bonus payments and deferred share awards will be subject to potential withholding or dawback during the three year period
following the award of the bonus In exceptional arcumstances of ewdence coming to light of misconduct justifying summary
dismissal or of a material misstatement of the financial accourtts or an error in the calculation of the extent of payment or vesting
of an incentive.

« Asnoted in the new Policy, the Committee's discretion remains unchanged and we have specifically noted that the Committee has
the ability to adjust bonus awards to ensure they reflect underlying business performance. including heafth and safety 1ssues

The annual bonus for 2017 for Executive Directors will be determined as detalled below:

As a percentage of maximum bonus opportunity

Measure CEO CFO
Underlying operating profit 80% 80%
20% 20%

Personal objectives

Total 100% 100%
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Payment under the non-financial elements of the bonus will be scaled back to the extent that Group underlying operating profit targets
are not fully met This means that if there 1s no payment under the Group underlying operating profit element of the bonus scheme,
there will also be no payment under the personal element of the bonus irrespective of performarnce against the aforemertioned
individual measures, The targets themselves, as they relate to the 2017 financial year, are deemed to be commercially sensitive.
However, retrospective disclosure of the targets and performance zgainst them will be prowvided in next year's remuneration report

to the extent that they do not remain cormmeraally sensitive at that time.,

Performance Share Plan

Performance Share Plan (PSP} awards are granted over Merlin shares with the number of shares under award determined by reference
1o a percentage of base salary. Vesting of the awards 1s conditional upon satisfaction of performance condtions and is usually also

condrtional upon continued employment urtll the awards vest, in addtion, for awards from April 2017 onwards a health and safety

underpin will be attached to all PSP awards.

The CEQ and CFO waill be amongst the participants in the PSP award to be granted in April 2017, Awards will be over shares worth, at
the date of grant, 250% of salary for the CEO and 225% of salary for the CFO Vesting of these awards will be subject to satisfaction of
the following performance conditions measured over the three financial years to December 2019

EPS performance condition (50% of award)

ROCE performance condition (50% of award)

Adjusted EPS growth

% of award vesting

Average ROCE

% of award vesting

Below threshold
cumulative growth

7% pa

Threshold
cumulative growth

7% - 14% pa
cumulative growth

Between threshold
and maximum

14% pa

Maximum
cumulanive growth

<7% pa.

0%

10%

10% to 50%
on shding scale

50%

Below threshold <9%

Threshold 9%

Berween threshold

9% - 13%
and maximum

Maximum 13%

0%

12.5%

12 5% to 50% on

sliding scale

50%

As noted elsewhere we are exploning the opportunity for a third LEGOLAND park in North America, Because of the large scale and
early stage of this potential development and the fact that a park is yet to be confirmed, all costs and revenues related to this project
will be excluded from the calculation of vesting of the 2017 PSP award and added back into the calculation of future awards.

PSP awards will be subject to potential withholding or clawback during the five year period following the date of award in exceptional
arcumstances of evidence coming to hight of misconduct justifying summary dismissal or of a material misstatement of the financial
accounts or an error i the calculation of the extent of payment or vesting of an mcentive.

Employee Share Plan

Inwrtations to UK employees {induding Executive Directors) to particpate in the Employee Sharesave Plan (UK Sharesave Plan) were
1ssued in 2014, 2015 and 2016, Similar invitations were 1ssued to relevant employees under the US Employee Stock Purchase Flan

and the Overseas Sharesave Plan.

Invitations for the next award under each of these plans commence in March 2017,
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Non-executive Director remuneration

The table below shows the fee structure for Independent Non-executive Directors for 2017/, Independent Non-executive
Director fees are determined by the full Board except for the fee for the Chairman of the Board which 5 determined by
the Remuneration Commitiee.

2017
Basic fee for UK-based Non-executive £50,000
Basic fee for overseas-based Non-executive £50,000 ptlus a travel allowance of £1,000 per Board meeting attended n person
Sernor Independent Director addiuonal fee V £10,000
Audit Commltte; Cha;rman additional fee ;:I0.000
Remuneration Committee Chairman additional fee £10,000
Chalrrrmanrof ;he éogrd alljmctuslv‘e fee £250,000

There are no fees paid for membership of Board Committees nor to the shareholder representative Non-executive Director.
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AUDITED INFORMATION

The information provided in this section of the Remuneration Repart up untll the 'Unaudited information’ heading on page 1C|

Is subject to audr,

Single total figure of remuneration in 2016

The following table sets out the total remuneration for Executive Directors and Non-executive Directors for 2016 with prior year

comparatives for 2015,

2016

Salary Annual Long term
All figures shown in £000 and fees (0 Benefits @ bonus @  incentives Other ® Pension Total
Executive Directors
Nick Varney 583 21 - 1,193 - 128 1,925
Anné-Fr';ncoise Nesﬁes 160 8 - . o 36 72(7)4
Former Executive Director
Andrew Carr 9 205 10 - 572 - 45 832
Non-executive Directors
Sir john Sunderland 250 - - - - - 250
_(E-I'l:_:rit-e-s“é:rassa 770 7 - - - R R 770
Ken Hydon 60 - - - - - 60
Fru Hazlict 50 - - - - - 50
Trut-:l-y"RaL;tlo 57 - - - - - 7 53'
Ra;hel Chiang 57 - - . , - - 57
gﬁrénThorup Sarensen - - . - - - -

2015

Salary Annual Long term
All figures shown in £000 and fees (¥ Benefits @ bonus @  incentives ¥ Other & Pension © Total
Executive Directors
Nick Varney 581 21 - - 3 128 733
Andrew 7Carr7: 7 - 73752 I7 - - o 37 8u2 E‘i
Non-executive Directors
Sir John Sunderfand 250 - - - - - 250
_C_I:a;l_es Cminu;;s-sa 70 - - - - - - 70
Ken Hydon T e - - - - 60
Miguel Ko ! 21 - - - - . 21
Fru Hazlitt 50 - - - - - 50
Trudy Rautic ® 14 - . : } i 14

Seren Thorup Serensen

Naotes to the tabke - methadology

[N

Benefis

Anruek horus
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MNeotes o the mable - method slogy

v

Additional disclosures in respect of the single figure table

Annual bonus

Executve Directors are participants in the central bonus plan. The maximum annual benus opportunity for the Executive Directors for
2016 was 150% of salary for the CEQ and 135% of salary for the CFO. One-third of any bonus earned 1s deferred into shares for three
years under The Merlin Entertainments pic Deferred Banus Plan.

In 2016, Andrew Carr was not eligible for bonus due to fis retirement and Anne-Francoise Nesmes was eligible on a pro-rated basis for
the periad from joining until 31 December 201 6.

The maximum potential annual bonus that could be paid to Executive Directors in respect of 2016 performance was determined by
underlying operating profit performance with targets set by reference to the Group budget 20% of that potential bonus was addtionally
subject to satisfaction of individual objectives. Performance measures and targets applying to the 2016 annual bonus are set out below,

In 2016 no benus was payable to employees under the central bonus plan, including the Executive Directors, since the financial
threshold for payment of bonus was not achieved

Proportion of % of
Performance  bonus determined Threshold Target Maximum Actual maxsmum
measure by measure performance performance performance performance bonus payable
Underlying 80% £338.8 millon £3604 midlion £382 0 milon £320 million 2 0%
operating profit (0% of bonus {40% of bonus (80% of bonus

payable) payable) payable)

Indraidual 20% Following the year end, the Committee assessed perfarmance
objectives against the individual objectives for each Director for 2016,

CEO The CEO met the majority of his personal objectives which 0% as
comprised health and safety, development of the pipeline in threshold profit
support of the 2020 targets for new LEGOLAND parks, target was not

accommodation and Midway openings, visitor satisfaction achieved
and talent management.
CFQO: The CFO met the majority of her perscnal objectives which
compnsed simplifying processes, with a partcular focus on
budget and business plans, and assessing the future finance
organisation model to support Merlin's international growth
TOTAL 0% (CEQ)
0% (CFO)
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Scheme interests awarded during the financial year

Performance Share Plan awards
An award was granted under the PSP to selected senior executives, Including Nick Varney, on { April 20186,

Following her recrutment, as disclosed in fast year's Remuneration Report, a PSP award was granted to Anne-Francoise Nesmes
on | September 201 6.

These awards are subject to the performance conditions described below and will vest on | April 2019 and | Septernber 2019 respectively,

Maximum Face value End of
number of Face value {% of base Threshold vesting performance
Type of award shares (L) salary) (% of award) period
Nick Varney 0! Pe"f“":]a"ce 313,592 £1,453,500 250% For EPS element
shares 10% of award (max 50%)
29 December 2018
Anne-Francoise Performance For ROCE element
% 180,431 £866,250 225% 12 5% of award (max 50%)
Nesmes ¢ shares

EPS performance condition (50% of award) ROCE performance condrtion {50% of award)

Adjusted EPS growth % of award vesting Average ROCE % of award vesting

Below threshold

Threshold

Between threshold
and maximum

Maximum

<7% p.a.
cumulative growth

7% p.a.

cumulative growth

7% - 14% pa.

cumulative growth

14% p.a.

cumulative growth

0%

10%

10% to 50%
on shding scale

50%

Below threshold

Threshold

Between thresheld
and maximum

Maximum

<9%

9%

9% - 13%

13%

0%

12.5%

12.5% to 50%
on sliding scale

50%

Payments to past Directors
There were no payments to past Directors duning 2016,

Payments for loss of office

There were no payments for loss of office to Directors during 2016

Andrew Carr stepped down as a Board Director an 31 July 2016 and continued to work for the Company until 31 Ocreber 2016 1n
order to provide transitional support te the new CFO. His salary, pension and benefits until 31 July 2016 are included n the single totai
figure of remuneraticn on page 96.He receved an additional £111,622 for salary, pension and benefits earned as an employee between
| August and 31 October 2016, He receved no addional payments in relation to his notice period.
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As disclosed In last year's Remuneration Report, Andrew Carr was not ehgible for a bonus or PSP award in 2016 His outstanding PSP
awards will vest, to the extent that performance conditions are satisfied, on a time pro-rated basis and on the normal vesting date
The estimated vesting value of his 2013 PSP award, the performance period for which ended in 201 6. 15 included in the single total

figure of remuneration on page 26.

Statement of Directors’ shareholding and share interests

A shareholding requirement of 200% of base salary by the fifth anniversary of appointment applies to the Executive Directors. The CEO
had a shareholding that exceeded that requirement at 3|1 December 2016, The CFO joined in August 2016 and 1s in the process of
bullding up her shareholding te meet the requirement by her fifth anniversary.

Executive Directors are expected to achieve the sharehclding requirement primarily by retaiming at least 50% of any share awards that
vest under the PSP and the Deferred Bonus Plan (after seling sufficient shares to satisfy tax liabilities). Individuals are expected to be
compliant with their shareholding requirement within five years of that individuzal becoming subject to the requirement. The Committee

reviews ongoing indmdual performance against the shareholding requirernent at the end of each finanaial year,

Current shareholding requirements and the number of shares held by Directors are set out in the table below.

Number of shares

Interests in share incentive
schemes, awarded without
performance conditions at

Interests in share
incentive schemes,
awarded subject to
performance conditions

Value of shareholding at 3| Shares 3| December 2016 at 3| December 2016 @
December 2016 as a % of owned
salary (Shareholding outright at Deferred

Director requirement target) 3| December 2016 Sharesave Bonus " PSP
Nick Yarney % 4,949% (200%) 6,477,823 5816 66,086 1,234,085
:;;:;:g;fs‘j’“e 5% {200%) 4,500 - ; 181,452
Sir John Sunderland - 51122 - - -
Charles GUI:as;a - 31,746 - B - -
Ken H;ft;t;n - - 31,920 -- - o 7
Fru Hazlitt - 31,746 - - -
Trudy I;\aut|o _ - 11,250 - 7 - N _-
Rachel Chiang - - - - -
Seren ThoruphSerensen - - - - - -
A_n;jrewnCarr “ N 2.658% (ﬁOO%Z) A 2,085,123 5816 o -34.006 R 3;5,330

Mores e the rabic

Between 31 December 2016 and the date of this report there were no changes in the shareholdings outlined in the above table
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Qutstanding awards under the PSP

Maximum Dividend
Date Date number of equivalent  Performance
of grant of vesting shares shares ©® period Performance condition
Nick 12 November 2013 1 April 2017 560,952 18,326 2014-2018 for 7% ET:L?:J; if::
Varney 2 April 2015 2 Apnl 2018 328,846 8,807 2015-2017 growth mcreasing to 50%
1 April 2016 | April 2019 313592 3,562 2016-2018 )
vesting for [4% p.a.
cumutaoive growth
ROCE: |2 5% vests for
Andrew 12 November 2013 1 Apnl 2017 269,202 8,793 2014-2016 average ROCE of 9%
Carr 2 April 2015 2Apnl 2018 94,797 2,538 2015-2017 increasing to 50% vesting
for average ROCE of [3%
Full details of performance
Anne- condrhions can be found n the
Remuneration Reports for the
::mncouse | September 2016 | September 2019 180,431 1,021 2016-2018 year in which the grants
esMmes

was made

As disclosed in the 2013 Annual Report and Accounts the performance penod for the §2 November 2013 awards was the three
financial years to 3| December 2016. The calculation of the performance conditions 1s as follows
+ Adjusted EPS growth - by comparing EPS for the financial year ending 31 December 2016 (comprising 53 weeks) with EPS for the
financial year ending 28 December 2013, The Adjusted EPS for the financial year ended 28 December 2013, taking account of the
full year impact of the post Listing finanang structure was 15 7p
« Average ROCE - an average of ROCE for the three indmdual financial years ending 27 December 2014, 26 December 2015

and 31 December 2016 (53 weeks).

The compound annual growth rate of Adjusted EPS over the performance period was 9.8% and the average Return on Capital
Employed was also 9.8%. The performance conditions set out above yield a vesting of 46.5% of maxmurm,
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UNAUDITED INFORMATION

The information provided in this section of the Remuneration Report 1s not subject to audit.

Performance graph and CEO remuneration table

The chart below compares the Tetal Shareholder Return performance of the Company over the period from Listing to 31 December
2016 to the performance of the FTSE 350 Index. This index has been chosen because 1t 1s a recognised equity market index of which
Merlin 15 a member. The base paint in the chart for Merlin equates to the Offer Price of 315p,

GRAPH REMOVED

The table below summanises the CEC single figure for total remuneration, annual bonus payouts and PSP vesting levels as a percentage
of maximurm cppartunity over this period,

20130 2014 2015 2016
Salary and Benefits @ £000 75 596 605 604
Pension £000 18 127 128 128
Benus £000 58 859 - -
PSP Long Term Incentive Plan @ £000 nfa - - i, 193
CEQ single figure of remuneration £000 151 1,582 733 1,925
fo % of masmum opportny) it ppled m 2013 oo o o
PSP vesting outturn n/a {no award n/a (no award n/a (no award 46.5%
{as a % of maximum opportumty) vested in 2013) vested in 2014) vested in 2015)
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Percentage change in remuneration of the CEC

The table below indicates the change in the CEC's remuneration between 2015 and 2016 and the change in average remuneration for
other UK permanent empioyvees between 2015 and 2016. The Remuneration Committee believes that the UK workforce 1s the most
appropnate comparator for this analysis for the UK based CEO

Salary increase Benefits increase/decrease Annual bonus increase/decrease ®
CEO 1% 0% 0%
Average for all UK employees 1% 0% 0%

Relative importance of the spend on pay
This table 1llustrates the total expendrture on pay for all of Merlin's employees compared to distnbutions to shareholders by way of
dividend and share buyback. In order to provide context for these figures, underlying operating profit 1s also shown.

2015 2016
£m £m Increase/decrease
Employee costs 327 382 17.0%
Distribution to sh;rer;old;ers 64 67 - 47%
Underlying operating profit 291 320 9 7-%
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Consideration by the Directors of matters relating to Directors’ remuneration
The Committee has been chared throughout the year by Charles Gurassa, The Comrittee has comprised the Chairman of the Beard,
the Chairman of the Committee, Ken Hydon, Fru Hazlitt and Trudy Rautio.

The Committee met three times during 2016 The CEQ, CFQ, Group HR Director, Greup Compensation and Benefits Director,
Seren Thorup Serensen and the Group General Counsel and Company Secretary {in his role as secretary to the Cormmittee)
were also present at some of these meetings by invitation

The Committee 1s responsible for determining all aspects of Executive Director pay. ft also monitors pay arrangements for other senior
executives and oversees the operation of all share plans, Full terms of reference of the Committee are available on ocur website under
Investor Relations - Corporate Governance.

Delortte LLP was appointed by the Compary in 2013 to provide advice on executive remuneration matters, During the year

the Committee received independent and cbjective advice from Delortte, principally on the drafting of the rermuneration report,
shareholder consultation and market practice. Delotte was paid £56,800 in fees during 2016 for these services (charged on a tme
plus expenses basis) Delotte 15 2 founding member of the Remuneration Consultants Group and as such, voluntarly operates under
the code of conduct in relation to executive remuneration consuiting in the UK. In addition, other practices of Delortte, separate from
the executive remuneration practice, have provided indirect tax advice to the Company during the year

Shareholder voting on the Remuneration Report
At the relevant Annual General Meetings, strong shareholder support was received for cur resolutions on remuneration as
summarised below,

Votes for Votes against Yotes withheld
Approval of the Policy Report {2014) 896.7 million (99.4%) 5.2 milion (0.6%) 7.3 million
Approval of the Annual Report on 840.5 million (96.4%) 315 million (3.6%) 0.1 miflion

Remuneration {2016)

External Board appointments
Executive Directors are normally entitled to accept external appaointments outside the Company with the consent of the Board
Any fees receved may be retained by the Director

As at the date of this report, nerther of the Executive Directors held an external appointment for which they received a fee.
Annual General Meeting

The Annual Report on Remuneration section of this Remuneration Report will be submitted for an advisory shareholder
vote at our Annual General Meeting to be held on 13 June 2017

Cn behalf of the Board

Charles Gurassa

Chairman of the Remuneration Committee
I March 2017

103



NOMINATION

Committee Report

STATEMENT FROM THE CHAIRMAN OF THE NOMINATION COMMITTEE

Dear Shareholder

This report describes the activities of
the Nomination Committee during 201 6.
The Committee met twice during the
year and focused its attention on

Board appointments, succession

planning and diversity.

Board appointments
During the year the followng Board
appointments were made-

+ Rachel Chiang was appointed as
a Non-executive Director with
effect from | Jaruary 2016, and

¢ Anne-francoise Nesmes was
appointed as Chief Financial Officer
on | August 2016 to replace
Andrew Carr who retired as
Chief Financial Officer on
31 July 2016,

The Nomination Commttee completed
rigorous selection processes for these
appointrments To assist us we retaned
the services of search consuftancy firms,
Russell Reynolds (Rachel Chiang) and
Kom Ferry {Anne-Francoise Nesmes),

neither of which has any inks with Merlin,

These two Board appointments ensure
that its composition continues to bring
the appropnate balance of skills and
experience. Rachel Chiang brings
significant knowledge and experience

of the Asia Paafic market, particularly as
this region continues o be a key focus
of strategic developrnent. Anne-Francoise
MNesmes brings extensive finance and
international experience to the Board.

The Board is fully compliant with the
Board composition prowvisions of the
Code and reflects a wide diversity of
skills, experience, regional knowledge
and backgrounds,

Committee Memberships

Duning the year, a number of changes
were made to the membership of
the Committees.

Following the Nomination Committee
meeting on 24 February 2016, Fru Hazltt
stepped down from, and both Trudy
Rautio and Rachel Chiang joined the
Audit Committee, Trudy Rautio stepped
down from the Nomination Committee
and joined the Remuneration Commuttee,
Rachel Chiang joined the Health, Safety
and Security Committee,

Cn joining the Board on | August 2016
Anne-Francoise Nesmes joined the
Health, Safety and Security Committee.

Succession planning

The Board and Nominztion Committee
continued to assess the succession
planning arrangements during 2016,
focusing on Executive Director positions
as well as other serior manager roles
within the Group. This review identified
key individuals already in the Group,

for whom high level training and
development cpportunities have

been established and implemented.

We continue to discuss the Group’s
senior management and operational
structure and how that right
evolve as Merlin continues its
imternztional expansien,

The Nomination Committee 1s satisfied
that management has implemented
credible and effective succession planming
across its senior management and has a
management structure which 1s
appropriate to its strategy.

Diversity

Merlin's diversity policy. along wath the
Committee's Terms of Reference, was
reviewed during the year. Qur policy 1s for
our employees to have a diversity of
thinking, experience, gender, nationality
and cuttural background. Each Operating
Group has a Diversity Development Plan
which focuses on improving diversity
across the business. We believe a diverse
Board and management team Is more In
touch with our customers, employees and
investors and this policy is reflected in our
recrutment approach at all levels.

Sir John Sunderland
Chairman of the
Nomination Committee
| March 2017
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Report

Introduction

This section of the Annual Report and
Accounts includes additional information
required to be disclosed under the
Cormpares Act 2006, the DTRs,

the Code and the Listing Rules.

Certain information required to be
included in the Cirectors’ Report 1s
included n other sections of this
Annual Report and Accounts.

These sections provide an overview
of the strategy. development and
performance of the Company's
business in the period ended and as
at 31 December 2016 together with
infarmation on the appreach of the

Company to Corporate Governance and
the constitution, work and effectiveness of

the Board and 1ts principal Committees.

The following sections are therefore
incorporated by reference into this
Directors’ Report

= The Strategic Report on pages 2 to 59.

« The Corporate Governance
Statement on pages 60 to 61.

+ The section entitled ‘Board of
Directors’ on pages 62 to 65.

+ The Corporate Governance
Repert con pages 66 to 6%,

+ The Health, Safety and Securtty

Cormmittee Report on pages 70 to 75.

+ The Audt Committee Report on
pages 76 to B1.

* The Directors’ Remuneration
Report on pages 82 to 103,

+ The Nomination Committee
Report on page 104

The Compariy 1s required to provide
disclosures and information in refation to

a number of addtional matters which are
covered elsewhere in this Annual Report

and Accounts. These matters and
cross-references to the relevant sections
of this Annual Report and Accounts

are shown in the following table

Disclosure Section title Pages

Future Developments Strategic Report 21059

Research and Development Merlin Magic Making 20t0 23

Employee diversity Tearn Merlin 4310 46

and engagement

Greenhouse Gas Emissions ‘Beng a Force for Good' - Corporate 53 to 59
Soaal Responsibility The Merlin Way

Disabled persons ‘Being a Force for Good' - Corporate 531059
Soaal Responsibility The MerlinWay

Relationship Agreemenrits Corperate Governance Report 6610 69

{additional details)

Internal Controls Audit Committee Report 76 to Bl

Financal Instruments Note 4.3 to the Accounts 142 to 145

Share Capital and Note 45 to the Accounts 148 to 149

Movements therein

Subsidiary and Note 5.7 to the Accounts 157 to 162

Associated Undertakings

Directors

The names of the persons who, at any
time duning the finanaal year, were
Directors of the Company are.

Name

Sir John Sunderland
Nlc;c\.v'amey
Anne—Fra;‘wcows-e Nesr‘;wes M
Charles Gurassa

Ken Hydon

Fru Hazltt

Trudy Rautio

Yun (Rachel) Chiang

Saren Thorup Serensen

Andrew Carr

Andrew Carr was a Director from the
start of the financial year until 31 July
2016 Anne-Francoise Nesmes has been
a Drrector since | August 2016, Rachel
Chiang was appointed a Director with
effect from | January 2016.

Each Drrector in post at the tme of
the AGM offered thernselves for
re-election at the 2016 AGM of the
Company and their re-election was
approved by shareholders. All Directors
(other than Andrew Carr) remained in
office at the end of the financial year.
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Directors’ indemnities and insurance
The Articles of Association of the
Company permtt it to indemnify the
Eirectors of the Comnpany or any Group
cormpany aganst habihties arising from or
in connection with the execution of their
duties or powers to the extent permitted
by law. The Company has not given

any specific ndemnity in favour of

the Directors duning the year but the
Company has purchased Directors’

and Officers’ Liability Insurance during
the year, which provides cover for
habilties incurred by Directors in the
performance of their duties or powers.

No amount was paid under any Director's
mdemnity or the Directors’ and Officers’
Liability Insurance during the year other
than the applicable insurance premiums,

Appointment and removal

of Directors

A Director may be appointed by an
ordinary resclution of shareholders in a
general meeting following nomination by
the Board or a member (or members)
entitled to vote at such a meeting or
following retirement by rotation f the
Director chooses to seek re-election

at a general meeting.

In addition, the Directors may appoint

a Director to fill a vacancy or as an
additional Director, provided that the
indmvidual retires at the next AGM.

A Director may be removed by the
Company 1n certain crcumstances set
out in the Company's Articles of
Association or by a special resolution
of the Company. All Directors will stand
for re-election on an annual basis, in ine
with the recommendations of the Code.

Speafic detalls relating 1o KIRKEI and
their rights to appoint Directors are set
out In the Corporate Governance
section on page 66,

Share capital and related matters
The Articles of Assocation do not
contan any restrictions on the transfer
of shares n the Company other than
customary restrichons applicable where
any amount 1s unpad on a share (all the
issued share caprtat of the Company as
at the date of this Annual Report and
Accounts s fully pad). Each ordinary
share in the caprtal of the Company
ranks equally w all respects. No
shareholder holds shares carrying
special rights relating to the contrel

of the Company.

Amendment to the Company's
Articles of Association

The Company's Articles of Association
may only be amended by a special
resclution of s sharehelders passed at
a general meeting of its shareholders.

Power of Directors in respect

of share capital

The Directors may exercse all the
powers of the Company (including,
subject to obtaining the required
authority from the shareholders in
general meeting, the power to authorse
the issue of new shares and the purchase
of the Company's shares).

During the year, in connection with the
Company’s employee share incentive
plans, 2,063,234 ordinary shares of

| pence sach were 1ssued

Contracts with related parties

The only matenal agreement waith
related parties during the year was the
LEGOLAND Licence and Co-operation
Agreement (LCA}. This agreement was
entered Into an 24 August 2005 with
KIRKBI and sets out the rights granted
to the Group to use the LEGO and
LEGOLAND brands in connection
with the development, operation and
promotion of the Group's present and
future LEGOLAND businesses,

ft includes certan requirements for

the Group to develop LEGOLAND
attractions, certain cperational
requirements for those attractions, and
the nature of royatties due to KIRKBI

for the use of the rights. The LCA includes
rights for KIRKBI to terminate the LCA
on a change of control of Merln but

only if this would result in a Licensee

(as defined in the LCA) being

controlled by a LEGOC coempetitor

or an inappropriate party. The LCA
defines an inappropriate party as any
person or emtity (other than a financial
institution) where one-third of its revenue
is derived from the manufacture and sale
of tobacco, armaments andfor
pornographic material.

Details of the KIRKBI Relationship
Agreement are provided in the
Corporate Governance sechon
on page 66.

Significant contracts

There were no contracts of significance
during the year to which the Company,

or any cf its subsidiary undertakings, 1s a
party and in which a Director 15 or was

matenally interested.
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Change of control

The only other significant agreerments te
which the Company 15 a party that takes
effect, alters or terminates upon a change
of control of the Company following a
takeover bid, are:

+ a Mult-currency Facilities Agreement
entered into by the Group dated
25 February 2015 which replaced
the Group's existing debt facilities.
This includes provisions in relatron
tc a change of control er the sale of
all or substantiaily all of the Group's
assels, the occurrence of which will,
after a negotiation period, give the
lenders under the Agreement the
right to accelerate outstanding loans
and terminate commitrnents.
The outstanding senior unsecured
facilities comprise £250 million, $540
milion and €50 millien in floating rate
termn debt and a £300 million revolving
credit facility, both to mature 1in 2020.

« an Indenture dated as of |9 March
2015 in relation to an 1ssue of €500
rmillion 2.75% fixed rate notes due
in 2022 (the notes) under which, in
the event of a change of control of
the Company and a ratings event,
the holders of the notes may have
the nght to require that those notes
be repurchased at [01% of ther
principal nominal amount plus any
accrued and unpaid interest.

Further detalls on the Group's banking
faciies are shown in note 4.2 to the
finangal statemenis.

The Company does not have agreements
with any Director or employee that
would provide compensation for loss

of office or employment resulting

from a change of control,

Branches outside the UK
Merlin Entertanments plc has no
branches outside the UK.

Dividend

Aninternim dividend of 2.2 pence per
share was paid on 19 September 2016
to shareholders on the Register on

12 August 2016, A final dvidend for the
year ended 3| December 2016 of 49
pence per share will be recommended
for payment to shareholders. The final
dvidend will be proposed to shareholders
for approval at the next Annual General
Meeting of the Company.

Political donations
No political donations were made
during the vear,

Going concern

The Directors considler that the

Group has adequate financial resources
to continue operating for the next

twelve months and that 1t 1s therefore
appropriate to adopt the going concern
basis in preparing the financial statements,

The Directors have satsfied themselves
that the Group 1s n a sound financial
position and that 1t has access to sufficent
cash funds and borrowing faciliies and
can reasonably expect those facifities

1o be avalable to meet the Group's
foreseeable cash requirements.

The process followed by the Group in
the preparation of the Viability Statement
15 set out In the Riske and Uncertainties
section on page 49.

DIRECTORS' Report

Audit information

So far as the Directors are aware,
there 15 no relevant audt nfermation
of which the auditors are unaware,
The Directors have taken all rezsonable
steps to ascertan any relevant audit
information and ensure the auditors
are aware of such information

Re-appointment of auditors
As recommended by the Audit
Committee, a resolution for the
re-appomtment of KPMG LLP as
auditors to the Company will be
proposed at the 2017 Annual
General Meeting,

Approval of annual report

The Strategic Report, Corporate
Governance Statement and Repert and
the Directors’ Report were approved
by the Board on | March 2017

For and on behalf of the Board
Matthew Jowett

General Counsel and
Company Secretary

| March 2017

Merlin Entertainments plc
Registered number 08700412
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Responsibilities Statement

The Oirectors are responsible for
preparing the Annual Report and the
Group and Company financial statements
in accordance with applicable law

and regulations.

The Directors are required to prepare
Group and parent Company financal
statements for each financial year. For

this purpose, the Company 15 the parent
Company of the Group. The Group
financial statements are required to be
prepared in accordance with international
Financial Reporting Standards as adopted
by the EU {Adopted IFRS) and applicable
law, The Company has elected to prepare
the Company financial statements in
accordance with UK Accounting
Standards including FRS 101

‘Reduced Disclosure Framewark’.

The Directors must not approve the
financial statements unless they are
satisfied that they give a true and far
view cof the state of affairs of the Group
and Company and of the profit or loss of
the Group and Company for that period,
In preparing each of the Group and
Company financal statements, the
Directors are required to.

+ Select sutable accounting policies
and then apply them consistently,

« Make judgements and estmates
that are reascnable and prudent.

* For the Group financial statements,
state whether they have been
prepared in accordance with
Adopted IFRS.

+ For the Company finanoal staternents,
state whether applicable UK
Accounting Standards have been
followed, subject to any materal
departures disclosed and explained
in the Company financial statements.

+ Prepare the financial staterments on
the going concern basis unless it 15
inappropriate to presume that the
Group and the Company will
continue In business.

The Directors are respensible for
keeping adequate accounting records
that are sufficient to show and explain
the Company’s transactions and disclose
with reasonable accuracy at any time the
financal postion of the Company and
enable them to ensure that its financial
statements comply with the Companies
Act 2006, They have general responsibility
for taking such steps as are reasonably
open to them to safeguard the assets

of the Group and to prevent and

detect fraud and other irregularries,

Under applicable law and regulations,
the Directors are alsc responsible for
preparing a Strategic Report, Directors’
Report, Directors’ Remuneration Report
and Corporate Governance Statement
that complies with that law and

those regulations,

The Directors are responsible for
the mantenance and integrity of the
corporate and financial information
included on the Company's website,
Legislation in the WK governing the
preparation and dissemination of
financial statermenits may differ from
legislation in other jurisdictions.

Having taken adwce from the

Audit Commuttee, the Remuneration
Committee and the Health, Safety and
Security Committee as well as from

its legal and other professional adwisers,
the Board considers the Annual Report
and Financial Statements, taken as

a whole. to be fai balanced and
understandable and that it provides
the information necessary for
shareholders to assess the Group’s
position and performance, business
model and strategy.

Nerither the Company nor the Directors
accept (and they hereby exclude) any
hability to any person in refation to this
report except to the extent that such
hability 15 imposed by law and may not
be validly excluded.

The Board confirms to the best of its

knowledge that,

* The Group financial statements
contained N this repart (which have
been prepared in accordance with
Adopted IFRS), when taken as a whole,
give a true and fair wiew of the assets,
habilities, financial position and profit
of the Group.

+ The Company financial statements
(which have been prepared in
accordance with applicable UK
Accounting Standards), give a true
and far view of the state of affairs
of the Company.

+ The Directors’ Report and the other
sections of this report referred to
therein together represent a far
remew of the strategy. development
and performance of the business and
the position of the Group together
with a description of the principal
rnisks and uncertanties that it faces

Nick Yarney
Chief Executive Officer
| March 2017

Anne-Francoise Nesmes
Chief Financial Officer
| March 2017
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INDEPENDENT

Auditor’s Report

TO THE MEMBERS OF MERLIN ENTERTAINMENTS PLC ONLY

Opinions and conclusions arising from our audit
| Qur opimion on the financial statements 1s unmodified

We have audied the financial statements of Merlin
Entertainments plc for the 53 week period ended 31 December
2016 set out on pages |15 to 169.In our opinion.

* the financial statements give a true and farr view of the state
of the Group's and of the parent Company's affairs as at
31 December 2016 and of the Group's profit for the 53
week period then ended:

+ the Group financial statements have been properly prepared
in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards
as adopted by the Furopean Union,

* the parent Company financal statements have been properly
prepared in accordance with UK Accounting Standards,
including FRS 101 Reduced Disclosure Framework: and

« the financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with the requirements of the Comparues Act 2006; and,
as regards the Group financial statements, Article 4 of the
IAS Regulation.

2 Cur assessment of risks of material misstatement

The context for our audit 15 that there has been:

+ agenerally stable environment in which the Group
has operated;

+ no significant change to the Group's strategy and operations
that our audit has had to address (we have considered the
accesso® admissions system where 1t was relevant to our
audit in this period), and

» ashght, but not significant increase in our assessed
materiality given the growth of the Group in the period

We summarise below the nisks of matenal misstaternent,
{unchanged from 2015} that had the greatest effect on our
audit (in decreasing order of audt significance) and our key
audit precedures to address those risks,

OVERVIEW

Materiality: Group financial statements as a whole

¢ £14.5 mullion (201 5: £14.3 miliion)
+ 5.2% (2015: 6.0%) of Group profit before tax

Coverage

= 79% (2015:75%) of Total Profits and Losses

Total Profits and Losses coverage 15 colcufated by
considerng absolute profits and losses before tax, after
elrunating intra-group interest income and expense
forewgn exchange movernents on intra-group teans,
and intra-group dndends

RISK OF MATERIAL MISSTATEMENT vs 2015

Recurring risks

+ Carrying value of non-current assets 4»
* Revenue recognition «»
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The risk

Our response

Carrying value of non-current assets

£2958 millon (2015 £2.475 mulhon)

Refer to pages 76 ta §1 [Audit Cormmittee Report)
ond poges 136 to 138 (accountng poncy and

finanaal disclosures)

Risk vs 2015 4 p

ReVenUe reCOgnl[lOn
£1,457 million (2015 £!,278 mulhon)

Refer to pages 76 to 81 (Audit Committee Report)
and page 123 {accounting poficy)

Risk vg 2015 A b

Forecast based valuation:

A history of business combinations and the
capital imtensive nature of the business model
Increases the magnitude of non-current assets,

There 15 a risk that the future performance
may lead to the value of non-current assets
not being recoverable i full

The estimated recoverable amount 15 subjective
due to the inherent uncertainty Involved in
forecasting and discounting future cash flows

This uncertainty anses due to challenges in
forecasting - expected changes in visitation
at existing attractions, particularly where there

have been recent changes in the overall offering.

promations or planned customer expenience
impravements, Other factors such as the
unpredictable impact of competition, the
weather, and the political and economic
environment on trading performance

also add to the uncertainty

Speafically in relation to the Resort

Theme Parks goodwill, events during 2015 at
Alton Towers reduced valuation headroom,
disrupted previous trading patterns and
created greater uncertainty over forecasts.

Accurate recording:

Merlin's revenues arise from a number of
different sources, Iocations and systems,
sometimes featuring manual processes to
match cash payments to redemptions or
to transfer data to the finance systems.

The low value of ndivdual transactions means
individual errors would be insignificant, but
difficutt to detect. and the high volume of
transactions mean systemic falure could

lead to errors that aggregate rapidly into
material balances

Qur procedures included

+ Extrapolaung past forecastng accuracy:
assessing five years' historical accuracy of the
Group's forecasting, and subsequently bulding
comparable variations i forecasting accuracy
nte our own model that reperformad and
sensitised the valuation,

Challenging forecasts: comparing expected
changes in cash flows {from activitics such as
new promaotions and customer expeneance
Improvements) and the planned cost base
against the past results of similar activites
carried out by the Group,

+ Benchmarking assumptions: supported

by valuation experts, benchmarking Group
earnings multple and discount rates against
market data, ncluding publidy avalable
analysts’ reports and peer comparison,
Sensitivity analysis' calculating the impact of
changes In key assumpticns and performing
breakeven analysis of the earmings muliple.
discount rates and forecast cash flows.

+ Comparing valuations: comparing the sum
of all the discounted cash flows across the
Group to the Group's market caprtahisation
to assess the reasonableness of the
underlying assumptions, and

Assessing transparency: assessing whether
the Group's sensitvity disclosures regarding
the impairment testing adequately reflect the
risks inherent in the valuation of goodwill

+

Qur precedures are performed by each
component auditor, under guidance 1ssued

by the Group team, and included

+ System design® testing of the general IT
control environment of the systems used
to record revenue, followed by testing of
the controls that check completeness and
accuracy of revenue entries ansing from
these systems,

Control design' testing of the design,
implementaton and operating effectiveness
of manual controls supporting the systems,
ncluding recenciliatians of vl records

to revenue journal entries in the
accounting records,

Analytical review: predictive analytical
procedures {taking Into account factors
such as trends in seasonality, charges in
pricing and visitation), and

Tests of detal performing reconaliations
of total cash receved to revenue recorded,
confirming the appropriate tirming of sales
cut-off by checking the speafic posting of
revenue for days erther side of the period
end. and substantive testing of deferred and
accrued revenue balances through agreeing
back to ticketing systemn records and
checking underlying calculations

.

110



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the members of Merin Entertanments plc only

3 Our apphcation of materiahty and an overview of the scope of our audit

Materality of the Group financial statements

GRAPHS REMOVED

Matenalty for the Group financal statements as a whole was set
at £14,500,000 (2015 £14,300,000), determined with reference
to a benchmark of profit before tax, of which 1t represents 5.2%
(2015 6%) Thus 1s lower than the benchmark percentage used in
2015 to align with emerging industry consensus for audts of
businesses of this size and profile.

We reported to the Audit Committee any corrected or
uncorrected identified misstatements affecting profit with a value
in excess of £700,000 (2015 £715,000) or otherwise In excess
of £2.000000 (2015 £1,600000), in addimion to other audrt
misstatements that warranted reporting on qualitative grounds.

Scope of the Group audit

We audrted 79% (2015 75%) of the Total Profits and Losses
that made up Group profit before tax, 74% (2015 75%) of total
Group revenue and 70% (2015 72%) of total Group assets.

This included the audt, for Group reporting purposes, of the
finanaal information of certan components, it also induded audit
procedures on finance costs and assets anising on consclidation,
the total of these balances were audited at Group level

Audits for Group reporting purposes, ncluding those performed
by the Group audit team, were performed at components in the
following locations: Australia, China (including Hong Kong),
Denmark, Germany, ltaly, UK and USA

The remaining 21% (2015 25%) of Total Profits and Losses

that made up Group profit before tax, 26% (2015 25%) of total
Group revenue and 30% (2015 28%) of tctal Group assets were
represented by a large number of smaller reporting components.
None of these compaonents indmdually represent more than
1.8% (2015 4 4%) of any of the Total Profits and Losses that
made up Group profit before tax, total Group revenue or

total Group assets,

We cbtained further coverage by performing specified nisk-
focused audit procedures over the reasonableness of the financial
resuft and position at 22 of these reporting components covering
a further 8% (2015 7%) of Total Profits and Losses that made up
Group profit before tax. These components are largely Midway
attractions where, although individual sites tend to be relatively
small, the Group 1s growing via the roll out of new attractions.
We select these sites on a rotational basis, setting a finanaal
threshold on each of Group profit before tax, Group revenue
and Group assets and using our assessment of risk to select

a sample of stes from those that meet at least one of

these thresholds,

For the remaining components, analysis at an aggregated level
was performed to re-examine our assessment that there
were no significant risks of materal misstatemert wrthin
these components
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GRAPHS REMOCVED

Performance and oversight of component audits

The audits undertaken for group reporting purposes at the
key reporting components of the Group were all performed
to component matenalty levels, where applicable giving
consideration to the local statutory materality set by the
component teams where this was lower. These component
materiality levels were set individually for each component
by the Group audit team and ranged from £450,000 to
£4,500,000 having regard to the mix of size and risk

profile across components.

The Group audrt tearn carned out audrts for group reporting
purposes of the finanaal information of compenents covering
34% (2015 39%) of the Total Profits and Losses that made up
Group profit before tax, ncluding the only indmdually financially
significant component, Merlin Attractions Operations Limited.

The Group audit team also undertook all audit procedures

on certain total Group account balances as mentioned above,
gaining coverage over a further 3% (2015 6%) of the Total Profits
and Losses that made up Group profit before tax, The largest
compoenent audited by a component audit team represented

| 7% (2015 12%) of the Totat Profits and Losses that made up
Group profit before tax,

Detaled audit and specified procedure instructions were sent

to component auditors These nstructions covered the significant
audrt areas that should be addressed by these audits, which
included the relevant risks of matenal rmisstaterment detaled
above, and set out the information required to be reperted

back to the Group audit team.

The Group audit team visited two key component locatrons in
the USA and one in Denmark, which included inputting to the
audrt nisk assessment and strategy. Teleconferences were also
held with these component auditors and all other reporting
components that were not visited. During these meetings, the
findings reported to the Group audrt team were discussed in
more detall and any further work required by the Group audnt
team was then performed by the component auditor,
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4 Qur opinion on other matters prescribed by the
Companies Act 2006 is unmodified

In our opimion

*+ the part of the Directors’ Remuneration Report to be
audited has been properly prepared in accordance with
the Comparnias Act 2006, and

« the information given in the Strategic Report and the
Directors’ Report for the pericd s consistent with
the financial statements,

Based solely on the work required to be undertaken in the
course of the audit of the financial statements and from
reading the Strategic Report and the Directors’ Report
* we have not identified materal misstatements 1n

those reports; and
* in our opinion, those reports have been prepared

in accordance with the Companies Act 2006,

5 We have nothing to repart on the disclosures of
principal risks

Based on the knowledge we acquired during our audit, we have

nothing materal to add or draw attention to In relaton to.

* the Directors' Viability Statement on page 49, concerning
the principal risks, their management, and, based on that,
the Directors’ assessment and expectations of the Group
continuing In operation over the four years to 2020; or

+ the disclosures in note [.] of the financial statements
concerning the use of the going concern basis of accounting,

& WVe have nothing to repart in respect of the matters
on which we are required to report by exception

Under 15As (UK and Ireland) we are required to report to you
if, based on the knowledge we acquired durning our audit, we
have identified other information in the annual report that
contains a matenal inconsistency with either that knowledge
or the financal statements, a materal misstaterment of fact,

or that s otherwise misleading.

In particular, we are required to report to you if

* we have identified material Inconsistencies between the
knowledge we acquired duning our audr and the Drrectors’
staternent that they consider that the annual report and
financial staterments taken as a whole 15 fan balanced and
understandable and provides the information necessary for
shareholders to assess the Group's position and performance,
business model and strategy; or

« the section of the annual report describing the work of the
Audit Committee does not appropriately address matters
communicated by us to the Audit Committee

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Ta the members of Merlin Entertainments plc only

Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required to report to
you if,n our opnion’

+ adequate accounting records have not been kept by the
parert Company. or returns adeguate for our audrt have
not been recewved from branches not visited by us, or

+ the parent Company financial statements and the part of
the Directors’ Remuneration Report to be audited are not
In agreement with the accounting records and returns; or

= certan disclosures of Directors remuneration specified
by law are not made, or

» we have not receved all the information and explanaticons
we require for our audit.

Under the Listing Rules we are required to review

+ the Directors statement, set out on page 107, 1n relation
to going concern and longer term wviability. and

» the part of the Corporate Governance Statement on pages
&0 to 61 relating to the Company’s compliance with the
eleven provisions of the 2014 UK Corporate Governance
Code specified for our review.

WWe have nothing to report in respect of the above responsibilities

Scope and responsibilities

As explained more fully n the Directors’ Responsibilities
Statement set out on page 108, the Directors are respensible
for the preparation of the financial statements and for being
satisfied that they give a true and far view. A description of
the scope of an audit of financial statements 1s provided on
the Financial Reporting Counal's website at
www.fre.org.ukfauditscopeukprivate. This report 1s made
solely to the Company’s members as a body and 15 subject

to impaortant explanations and disdaimers regarding

our responsibilities, published on our website at
www.kpmg.comfuk/auditscopeukco2Cl4a which are
incorporated nto this report as if set out in full and should be
read to provide an understanding of the purpose of this report,
the work we have undertaken and the basis of our opinions

Hugh Green (Senior Statutory Auditor)
for and on behalf of KPMG LLP, Statutory Auditor

Chartered Accountunts
Gateway House, Tollgate
Chandlers Ford
Southampton

5053 376G

| March 2017

113



FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Table of contents

PRIMARY STATEMENTS

CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

CONSOUDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EGUITY
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS

SECTION | - BASIS OF PREPARATION

SECTION 2 - RESULTS FOR THE YEAR

2.1 PROFIT BEFORE TAX

22 EXCEPTIONAL {TEMS

23 FINANCE INCOME AND COSTS
24 TAXATICN

2.5 EARNINGS PER SHARE

SECTION 3 - OPERATING ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

3.1 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
3.2 GOODWILL AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS
33 IMPAIRMENT TESTING

3.4 WORKING CAPITAL

35 PROVISIONS

SECTION 4 - CAPITAL STRUCTURE AND FINANCING

4.1 NET DEBT

42 INTEREST-BEARING LOANS AND BORROWINGS
4.3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

44 LEASE OBLIGATICNS

4.5 EQUITY AND CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

4.6 SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTICONS

SECTION 5 - OTHER NOTES

5.1 INVESTMENTS

52 EMPLCYEE BENEFITS

5.3 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

54 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

5.5 NEW STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS

5.6 ULTIMATE PARENT COMPANY INFORMATION

5.7 SUBSIDIARY AMND JOINT YENTURLE UNDLRTAKINGS

IS
16
17
118
19

120

122
125
126
127
131

132
134
136
138
140

141
141
142
|46
148
149

152
153
155
156
156
157
157

114



CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

For the 53 weeks ended 31 Decernber 2016 (2015 52 weeks ended 26 December 2015)

2016 2015
Underlying  Exceptional Underlying  Excepticnal
trading items ¥ Total trading items ® Total

Note £m £m £m £m Em £m
Revenue 21 1,457 - 1,457 1,278 - 1,278
Cost of sales 2.1 (227) - (227) (193) - (193)
Groess profit 1,230 - 1,230 1,085 - 1,085
Staff expenses 2.1 (382) - (382) (327) - (327}
Marketing (75) - (75) {68} - {68)
Rent (93) - (93) (87) - (87}
Other operating expenses (229) - (229) (201} - (201)
EBITDA 21 451 - 451 402 - 402 J
Depreciation and amortisation 31,32 {131) - (131) (1 - U]
Operating profit 320 - 320 291 - 291
Finance income 23 3 - 3 5 I [
Finance costs 23 (46) - (46) (46) (14 (60}
Profit before tax 277 - 277 250 (LK) 237
Taxation 24 (66} - (66) (70} 3 (67)
Profit for the year @ 211 - 21t 180 (10) 170
Earnings per share
Basic earmings per share (p) 25 208 16.8
Diluted earnings per share {p) 2.5 20.7 16.8
Dividend per share @} (p) 45 7.1 6.5
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
fForthe 53 weeks ended 31 December 2016 (2015 52 weeks ended 26 Decemper 2015)

2016 2015
Note £m fm
Profit for the year 211 |70
Other comprehensive income
ftems that cannot be reclassified to the consofidated income stotement
Defined benefit plan remeasurement gains and losses 5.2 (6) (U]
Income tax on items relating to components of other comprehensive income 24 | -
) 0
ftems thet may be reclassified to the conselidated income statement
Exchange differences on the retranslanon of net assets of foreign operations 176 (36)
Exchange differences relating to the net investment in foreign operations (45) 3
Cash flow hedges - effectrve portion of changes in fair value 3) )
Cash flow hedges - reclassified to profit and loss 22 - 14
Income tax on items relatng to components of other comprehensive iIncome 24 n 2)
127 (23)
Other comprehensive income for the year net of income tax 122 (24)
Total comprehensive income for the year 333 146
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
At 31 December 2016 (2015 26 December 2015}

2016 2015
Note £m fm
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 31 1,841 1,495
Goodwill and intangible assets 32 1,G17 923
Investments 51 49 1
Other recewables 34 13 i
Deferred tax assets 24 38 35
2,958 2,475
Current assets
Inventories 34 36 30
Trade and other receivables 34 86 76
Derivatve financial assets 3 2
Cash and cash equivalents 4.1 215 152
340 260
Total assets 3,298 2,735
Current liabilities
Interest-bearing loans and borrowings 4.2 5 4
Derwative financial labilities 5 |
Trade and other payables 34 300 235
Tax payable 39 22
Pravisions 35 3 4
352 266
Non-current liabilities
Interest-bearing loans and barrowings 42 1,147 1.003
Finance leases 44 28 82
Other payables 34 28 24
Provisions 35 65 51
Employee benefits 52 1 5
Deferred tax habiliues 2.4 179 155
1,518 1,320
Total liabilities 1,870 1.586
Net assets 1,428 1,149
Issued capital and reserves attributable to owners of the Company 1,424 1,145
Non-controlling interest 4 4
Total equity 45 1,428 1,149

~
The Fmanoalf‘gggepi xéapproved by the Board of Directors on | March 2017 and were signed on its behalf by
VI

/4

Nick Varney
Chief Executive Offi€er

Anne-Francoise Nesmes
Chief Financial Officer
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

For the 53 weeks ended 31 December 2016 (2015 52 weeks ended 26 December 2015)

Trans- Total Non-
Share Share lation Hedging  Retained parent controlling Total
capital  premium reserve reserve earnings equity interest equity
Note fm £m £m £m £m £m im im
At 28 December 2014 10 - (an () 1,161 1,059 4 1,063
Profit for the year - - - - 170 170 - 170
Other comprehensive
income for the year net - - (34) 1 (h 24) - (249
of Income tax
Total comprehensive } } (34} 0" 169 146 ) 146
income for the year
Equity dividends 45 - - - - (64) (64) . (64)
Equity-settled
share-based payments 46 ) ) i ) 4 4 i 4
At 26 Decernber 2015 10 - (135) - 1,270 1,145 4 1,149
Profit for the year - - - - 211 211 - 211
Other comprehensive
income for the year net - - 130 (3) (%) 122 - 122
of iIncome tax
Toral comprehensive } ; 130 3) 206 333 ) 3133
income for the year
Shares 1ssued 45 - 2 . - - 2 . 2
Equity dividends 4.5 - - - - (67) (67) - (67)
Equity-settled
] . - ; . I . I
share-based payments 46 H
At 31 December 2016 4.5 10 2 (5) (3) 1,420 1,424 4 1,428
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OFf CASH FLOWS
For the 53 weeks ended 31 December 2016 (2015 52 weeks ended 26 December 2015)

2016 2015
Note £m £m
Cash flows from operating activities
Profit for the year 211 170
Adjustments for:
Deprecianien and amortisation 31,32 131 11
Finance income 23 (3) (6}
Finance costs 23 46 60
Taxation 24 66 67
451 402
Profit on sale of property, plant and equipment () -
Working capital changes 23 (19
Changes in provisions and other non-current liabilities 10 |
483 384
Tax pad (50} 59
Net cash inflow from operating activities 433 325
Cash flows from investing activities
Interest received | |
Acquisition of remaining share of joint venture 5.0 i -
Acquisition of investments 5.1 (32) (5)
Acquisition of property, plant and equipment (259 (215)
Disposal of property, plant and equipment 4 -
Net cash outflow from investing activities (287) 219)
Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from issue of share capital 4.5 2 -
Equity dwidends paid 45 {67) {64)
Proceeds from borrowmngs - 1,002
Financing costs - (14
Interest paid “n (42
Settlement of interest rate swaps 22 - (13)
Repayment of borrowings - (1.112)
Met cash outflow from financing activities (106) {243)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 40 (137)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 4.1 152 285
Effect of movements In foreign exchange 23 4
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 4.1 215 152
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SECTION | BASIS OF PREPARATION
53 weeks ended 3! December 2016 (52 weeks ended 26 December 2015)

I.1 Basis of preparation

Merlin Entertainments plc (the Company) 1s a company ncorporated in the United Kingdom and its registered office 1s 3 Market Close,
Poole, Dorset, BHI5 INQ.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared and approved by the Directors in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards as adopted by the EU (Adopted IFRS) and with those parts of the Companies Act 2006 applicable to companies
reporting under [FRS.

The Company has elected to prepare its parent company financial staternents in accordance with Financial Reporting Standard 101
Reduced Disclosure Framework {(FRS [C1)

This section sets out the Group’s accountung policies that relate to the financal statements as a whole. VWhere an accounting policy 1s
specific to one note, the pohicy 15 described in the note to which i relates. The accounting policies have, unless otherwise stated, been
applied consistently to all periods presented in these consolidated financal statements and have been applied consistently by all
subsidiaries and joint ventures,

The Group prepares its annual consolidated financial staterments on a 52 or 53 week basis. These consalidated financial staternents have
been prepared for the 53 weeks ended 31 December 2016 (2015 52 weeks ended 26 December 201 5}. The conschdated financial
statements are prepared on the histoncat cost basis except for dervative financial instruments and certain investments which are
measured at their far value

The consoldated financial statements are presented in Sterling,
All values are stated in £ million (£m) except where otherwise indicated

Going concern

The Group reported a profit for the year of £211 million (2015 £170 million} and generated operating cash inflows of £433 million
(2015 £325 mifion). The Group s funded by semor unsecured bank facifities due for repayment in 2020 and senior unsecured notes
due for repayment in 2022, The Group's forecasts show that it 15 expected to be able to operate wrthin the terms of these facilties,
Further detalls of these faclities are provided in note 4.2.

After reviewing the Group's statement of financial position, avallable faaltes, cash flow forecasts and trading budgets and making
appropriate enguines, the Directors believe the Group to be operationally and financially sound and have a reasenable expectation
that the Group has adequate resources to continue In operational existence for the next twelve months. Accordingly, the Group
continues to adopt the going concern basis in preparing 1ts consohdated financial statements.

Basis of consolidation
The consclidated financial statements comprise the financial statements of Merlin Entertainments plc and its subsidiaries at the end of
each reporting period and indude 1ts share of its joint ventures’ results using the equity method.

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The Group controls an entity when 1t 15 exposed 1o, or has rights to. variable returns
through its involvermnent with the entrty and has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the entity. The financal
statements of subsidaries are included in the consolidated financial statements from the date that control commences until the

date that control ceases.

All intercompany balances and transactions, including unrealised profits arising from ntra-group transactions, have been eliminated.
Where subsidiaries enter inte financial guarantee contracts to guarantee the indebtedness of other companies within the Group. these

are considered to be insurance arrangements and accounted for as such In this respect, the subsidiary concerned treats the guarantee
contract as a contingent hability untl such time as it becomes probable that it will be required to make a payment under the guarantee.
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SECTION | BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)
53 weeks ended 3! December 2016 (52 weeks ended 26 December 2015}

1.1 Basis of preparation (consnued}

Foreign currency

Foreign currency transactions are translated using the exchange rates prevaling at the dates of the transactions, Foreign exchange gans
and losses resulting from the settlernent of such transactions and from the translation at year end exchange rates of monetary assets
and habilites denorminated in foreign currencies are recognised in the Income statement, except when deferred in equrty as qualfying
net Investrnent hedges.

The resufts and financial position of those Group companies that de not have a Sterling functional currency are translated into Sterling
as follows:

+ Assets and liabilties are translated at the closing rate at the end of the reporting period

+ Income and expenses are translated at average exchange rates during the year,

« All resulting exchange differences are recognised in equity in the transiaion reserve,

The reporting date foraign exchange rates by major currency are provided in note 4.3.

Classification of financial instruments issued by the Group
Financial Instruments often consist of a combination of debt and equity and the Group has to decide how to attribute values to each.
They are treated as egurty only to the extent that they meet the following twe conditicns'

(1) they include no contractual cbhgations upen the Group to deliver cash or other financial assets or to exchange financial assets or
financial labilties with another party under conditions that are potentally unfavourable to the Group: and

{n} where the instrument will or may be settled in the Group's own equity mstruments, it.is ether a non-dervative that inchudes no
obligation to deliver a variable number of the Group's own equity instruments or 1s a dervative that will be settled by the Group
exchanging a fixed amount of cash or other financial assets for a fixed number of its own equity INstruments.

To the extent that this definition 1s not met, the proceeds of 1ssue are classified as a financial hability, and where such an instrument takes
the legal form of the Company’s own shares, the amounts presented in these financial statemenits for called up share caprtal and share
premium account exclude amounts in relation to those shares.

Finance payments associated with financal habilities are dealt with as part of finance costs Finance payments associated with financial
instruments that are classified n equity are diadends and are recorded directly in equrty.

Judgements and estimates

The preparation of financial statements regquires management to exerase judgement In applying the Group's accounting policies, It also
requires the use of estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets, iabilities, ncome and expenses, Actual results
may differ frorn these estimates.

In this regard the following areas involve a higher degree of judgement, estimation or complexity and are explained in more detail m
the related notes'

+ Taxation (note 2.4) - recognition of deferred tax balances and accounting for tax risks

+ Imparrment testing (note 3.3) - estmation of discounted cash fiows when caiculating the value in use of assets.

Cther judgements and estimates which are less significant include.

» Provisions (note 35) - estmated outflow to settle the cbiigation and where relevant, the appropriate discount and nflation rates to apply.

* Interest-bearing ioans and borrowings {note 4.2) - expected period of borrowings when calculating the effective interest rate on
those borrowings.

Share-based payment transactions (note 4.6) - estimation of future perfarmance when estimating vesting rates on share schemes.

= Investments {note 5.1) - expected period of and eventual return on investrments when calculating the effective interest rate for
Interest iIncome recognised,

+ Employee benefits (note 5.2) - assumed discount rate, inflation rate and mortality when valung defined benefit habilities.

New standards and interpretations

A full st of new accounting standards and mterpretations can be found in note 5.5, This ncludes standards that have been implemented
In the year, which have had no significant impact. It also includes those standards that will be implemented next year or in future years,
including our assessment of the potential Impacts of the new standards on Revenue and Leasing.
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SECTION 2 RESULTS FOR THE YEAR
53 weeks ended 31 Decernber 2016 (52 weeks ended 24 December 2015)

2.1 Profit before tax

Segmental information

An operating segment, as defined by IFRS 8 ' Operating Segments’, is a component of the Group that engages in business activities from
which it may earn revenues and incur expenses The Group 1s managed through its three Operating Groups, which form the operating
segments on which the information shown below is prepared. The Group determines and presents operating segments based on the
inforration that 1s prowided internally to the Chief Executive Officer (CEQ), who 15 the Group's chief operating decision maker, and
the Board. An operating segment’s results are reviewed regularly by the CEO to make decisions about resources to be allocated to
the segment and assess ts performance, and for which discrete financial information is avallable Performance is measured based on
segment EBITDA, as included in internal management reports Segment operating profit is included below for information purposes.

Midway LEGOLAND Resort Segment Other
Attractions Parks Theme Parks results items (0 Total
£m £m £m fm £m fm
2016
Segment revenue 638 495 322 1,455 2 1,457
Segment profic, being segment EBITDA 236 193 70 499 (48) 451
Segment depreciation and amortisation (64) (28) (32) (124) N (130
Segment operating profic 172 165 38 375 (55) 320
2015
Segment revenue 561 429 285 1,275 3 1,278
Segment profit, being segment EBITDA 221 169 47 437 3% 402
Segment depreciation and amortisation (54) (23) (29) {106} (5) (1
Segment operating profit 167 146 18 331 (40) 291

" Cther tems include Merlin Magic Making, head office costs and various other costs, which cannot be directly attributed to the reportable segments

Geographical areas
While each Operating Group 1s managed on a worldwide basis, part of our strategy 15 to diversify geographically across the four regions
shown below. The information presented is based on the geographical locations of the visitor attractions concerned,

Geographical infermation

Non-current Non-current

Revenues assets Revenues assets

2016 2016 2015 2015

£Em £m £m £m

United Kingdom 486 8814 467 851
Contnental Europe 367 919 300 764
North America 404 628 336 48|
Asia Pacific 100 443 175 333
1,457 2.871 1,278 2,429

Deferred tax {note 2.4} 38 35
Investments (note 5.1) 49 1
2,958 2,475
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SECTION 2 RESULTS FOR THE YEAR (contnued)
53 weeks ended 31 December 2014 (52 weeks ended 26 December 2015}

2.1 Profit before tax (conunued)

Revenue accounting policy

Revenue arises from the operation of wisitor attractions and theme park resorts, Revenue represents the amounts received
from customers (excluding VAT and similar taxes) for admissions tickets, accommaodation revenue, retal, food and beverage
sales and sponsorship.

Ticket revenue 1s recognised at point of entry. Revenue from the sale of annual passes i1s deferred and then recognised over the
period that the pass is valid, Retall and food and beverage sales revenues are recognised at the point of sale. Accommodation revenue
15 recognised at the time when a customer stays at Merlin accommodation. Sponsorship revenue 1s recognised over the refevant
contract term From time to time, the Group enters inta service contracts for attraction develepment and revenue 15 recognised
under these contracts on a percentage completion basis, Service contract revenue in 2G16 and 2015 1s not material.

The IASB has issued IFRS |5 ‘Revenue from contracts with customers’ which will become effective from the 2018 accounting penod.
Detalls on our assessment of the impact of this new standard and how we are approaching its implementation are set out in note 5.5.

Cost of sales

Cost of sales of £227 mifion (2015 £193 million) represents variable expenses (excluding VAT and similar taxes) incurred from revenue
generating activities. Retall inventory, food and beverage consumables and costs associated with the delivery of accommodation are the
principal expenses iIncluded under this category

Operating expenses

Staff numbers and costs
The average number of persons employed by the Group (ncluding Directors) during the vear, analysed by category. was as follows.

2016 2015
Operations 17,422 16,980
Attraction management and central administration 2,067 1.841
19,489 18,821

The aggregate payroll costs of these persons were as follows.
2016 2015
£m £m
WWages and salaries 321 279
Share-based payments (note 4.6) I 4
Social security costs 39 34
Other pension costs 1 10
382 327
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SECTION 2 RESULTS FOR THE YEAR {continued)
53 weeks ended 31 December 2016 (52 weeks ended 26 Decernber 2015)

2.1 Profit before tax cononued)

Related party transactions

Key management comprises Executive and Non-executive Directors of the Board and the members of the Executive Commuittee,
Detalls of the remuneration, shareholdings, share options, pension contributions and payments for loss of office of the Executive
Directors are included in the Directors’ Remuneration Report on pages 82 to 103,

The rermuneration of key management was as follows.

2016 2015
£m £m
Key management emoluments including social security costs 4.8 42
Contribunions to money purchase pensten schemes 0.2 0.3
Share-based payments and other related payments 28 1.4
7.8 59

Auditor's remuneration
2016 2015
£m £m
Audit of these financial statements 1.3 1.2
Audit of financial statements of subsidiaries 0.3 0.3
Other assurance services 0.3 0.4
Orther services relating to taxaucn compliance 0.4 0.4
23 23
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SECTION 2 RESULTS FOR THE YEAR (contnved)
53 weeks ended 31 December 2016 (52 weeks ended 26 December 2015)

2.2 Exceptional items

Accounting policy

Due to their nature, certain one-off and non-trading items have been classified separately as exceptional tems in order to draw them
to the attention of the reader In the judgement of the Directors this presentation shows the underlying performance of the Group
more accurately,

Exceptional items
There were no exceptional tems in 2016. The following iterns were exceptional In 2015 and were shown separately on the face of the
consohdated incorme statement

2016 2015
£m £m
Within finance income and costs
Foreign exchange gan - i
Cash flow hedges - reclassified to profit and loss - 14
Exceprional items before income tax - 13
Income tax credit on excepuonal items above - 3)
Exceptional items for the year - g

As part of the refinancing undertaken dunng 2015, the Group incurred net exceptional finanang costs of £13 milhon The Group
restructured s interest rate swaps as part of a wider refinanang of the debt faclittes, and paid a net £13 million to cash settle certan
swaps In respect of these swaps, £14 million had previously been hedge accounted through equity and was therefore recycled through
the income statement, This was then offset by foreign exchange gains of £1 millen as part of the wider refinanang,
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SECTION 2 RESULTS FOR THE YEAR (contnusd)
53 weeks ended 31 December 2016 (52 weeks ended 26 December 2015}

2.3 Finance income and costs
Accounting policies

Income and costs

Finance income comprises nterest income from financial assets and investments, applicable foreign exchange gains and gains on hedging

Instruments that are recogrised In the Income statement, Finance costs comprise interest expense, finance charges on finance leases,

applicable foreign exchange losses and losses on hedging instruments that are recognised in the mcome statement Interest income

and interest expense are recognised as they accrue, using the effective interest method,

Capitalisation of borrowing costs

Where assets take a substantial time to complete, the Group capitalises borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,

construction or production of those assets.

Finance income

2016 2015
£m £m
Underlying trading
In respect of assets not held at for value
Interest income 2 2
Other
Net foreign exchange gatn | 3
3 5
Exceptional items
Other
Net foreign exchange gain {note 2.2} - |
3 6
Finance costs
2016 2015
£m im
Underlying trading
In respect of liabihtres not held at fair value
Interest expense on financial labilives measured at amorused cost 43 44
Other interest expense 3 2
46 46
Exceptional items
In respect of habilites not held at fair value
Cash flow hedges - reclassified to profit and loss (note 2.2) - 14
46 60

Caprtalised borrowing costs amounted to £2 million in 2016 (2075 £2 miflion), wath a capitalisation rate of 2.9% (2015 2 2%). Tax rehef

on caprtalised borrowing costs amounted to £1 millon in 2016 (2015 £nl).
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SECTION 2 RESULTS FOR THE YEAR {continued)
53 weeks ended 31 December 2016 (52 weeks ended 26 December 2015)

2.4 Taxation

Accounting policies
The tax charge for the year is recognised in the iIncome statement and the statement of comprehensive income, according to the
accounting treatment of the related transaction, The tax charge comprises both current and deferred tax

Current tax 15 the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the year using tax rates substantively enacted at the end of the
reporting period. and any adjustment 1o tax payable in respect of previous periods.

Deferred tax 1s provided on certan temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial

reporting purposes and taxation purposes respectively. The following temporary differences are not provided for the intial recognition
of goodwill; the imtial recognition of assets or liabilities that affect nether accounting nor taxable profit other than in a business
combination; and differences relating to investments in subsidiaries and jont ventures to the extent that they will probably not reverse
in the foreseeable future. The amount of deferred tax provided s based on the expected manner of realisation or settlement of

the carrying amount of assets and labilies, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting period.

After considening forecast future profits, deferred tax assets are recognised where it 15 probable that future taxable profits will be
avallable against which those assets can be utihsed. This assessment 1s made after considering a number of factors, ncluding the
Group's budget and strategic plan.

A current tax provision Is recognised when the Group has a present obligation as a result of a past event and 1t 15 probable that the
Group will be required to settle that obligation. Tax provisions are based on management's judgement of the amount of tax payable and
the likelihood of settlement in relation to matters which have yet to be concluded. These include matters ansing from ongoing audts. as
well as other uncertain postions, A combination of In-house tax experts, previous experience and professional firms 1s used when
assessing tax risks, It 1s currently unclear when these matters will be settled.

Recognised in the income statement

2016 2015
£m £m

Current tax expense
Current year 63 &0
Ad|ustment for prior periods 2 “4
Total current iIncome tax 65 56
Deferred tax expense
Ongination and reversal of temporary differences 7 7
Changes in tax rate 5 -
Adjustment for prior periods )] 4
Total deferred tax | I
Total tax expense in income statement 66 67
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SECTION 2 RESULTS FOR THE YEAR {continued)
53 weeks ended 31 December 2016 (52 weeks ended 26 Decermber 20! 5)

2.4 Taxation (conunued)

Reconciliation of effective tax rate

2016 2016 2018 2015

% fm % £m

Profit before tax 277 237
Income tax using the UK domestic corporation tax rate 20 0% 56 20.3% 48
Non-deductible expenses 9 9

Income not subject to tax (12) 4)
Effect of tax rates in foreign jurisdictions 19 18
Effect of changes i tax rate (5) -
Unrecognised temporary differences () -
Effect of recognising deferred tax assets previously unrecognised (n &)
Adjustment for prior periods | -
Total tax expense in income statement 238% 66 28.1% 67

The effective tax rate (ETR) reflects updates to the headline UK rate, including the effect on the measurement of deferred tax

The difference between the reported ETR of 23.8% and the UK standard tax rate of 20.0% s largely attrbutable to the Group's
geographic mix of profits and reflects higher rates in certan junsdictions. such as the US. In addition, the reported rate 1s favourably
affected by the Group’s internal financing arrangements which have been put in place to suppert development and ongong funding

needs In overseas territories. This is offset by non-deductible expenses which primarily arise as a result of depreciation on capital
expenditure from continued investment in our attractions.

The Group's ETR has fallen from 27.9% (based on underlying resufts) to 23.8%, primanly due to the restructure of the Group's external

debt and internal financing arrangements in 2015 In addition, the revaiuation of ceferred tax liabiitties due to the future fall in the ttalan
tax rate resulted in a one off benefit.

The Group's future ETR will primarily be affected by the geographic mix of profits and any changes to local tax rates, particularly in the
USA. Other significant factors include the ability to continue current finanang arrangements and changes to local or international tax laws.

Recognised directly in equity through the statement of other comprehensive income

2016 2015

£m £m

Foresgn exchange translauon differences relating to the net investment in foreign operations | |
Effective poruon of changes in fair vajue of cash flow hedges - '
Remeasurement gains and losses on defined benefit plans (1 -
Total tax expense in statement of other camprehensive income - 2
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SECTION 2 RESULTS FOR THE YEAR (continued)
53 weeks ended 31 December 2016 (52 weeks ended 26 December 2015)

2.4 Taxation (conunued)
Deferred tax assets and liabilities

Recognised deferred tax assets and habiities
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are attributable to the following

Assets Liabilities Net

2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015

£m £m £m £m £m £m
Property, plant and equipment 20 21 (148) (123) (128) (102)
Qther short term temporary differences 42 32 (6} (6) 36 26
Intangible assets - - (50 (47) (50) 4N
Tax value of loss carry-forwards | 3 - - I 3
Tax assets/(liabilives) 63 56 (204) (176) (1410 (120)
Set-off tax (25) (21) 5 21 - -
Net tax assets/(liabilities) 38 35 (179) {155) (141) (120)

Other short term temporary differences primarily relate to financial assets and liabilities and various accruals and prepayments.

Set-off tax 15 separately presented to show deferred tax assets and labilities by category before the effect of offsetting these amounts

in the staternent of financial pesition where the Group has the right and intention to offset these amounts,

Movement in deferred tax during the current year

Recognised Effect of
in other movements
27 December Recognised in  comprehensive in foreign 31 December
2015 income income exchange 2016
£m £m £m £m im
Property, plant and equipment (102} (5) - 21 (128)
Other short term temporary differences 26 4 | 5 36
Intangible assets 47 2 - (5) (50)
Tax value of loss carry-forwards 3 (2) - - |
Net tax assets/(liabilities) {120) (1} | (21) (141)

In 2016 movements recognised in the income statement in respect of property, plant and equipment were principally due to tax
allowances utilised in the UK and USA offset by the impact of rate reductions in ttaly. Moverments in other short term temporary

differences were mainly due to providing for future deductions in respect of employee share options.
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SECTION 2 RESULTS FOR THE YEAR {contnued)
53 weeks ended 31 December 2014 (52 weeks ended 26 December 2015)

2.4 Taxation (continued)

Meovement in deferred tax during the previous year

Recognised Effect of
in other mavements
28 December Recognised in  comprehensive in foreign 16 December
2014 income income exchange 2015
£m £m £m £m £m
Property, plant and equipment (84) (18) - - (102)
Other short term temporary differences 24 4 @) - 26
Intangible assets (47 - - . (47)
Tax value of loss carry-forwards - 3 - - 3
Net tax liabilities (107) {n ) - (120)

In 2015 movemerits in net deferred tax labilities recognised in iIncome i respect of property, plant and equipment were principally due
to tax allowances utilised in the UK and USA. Net deferred tax asset movements in other short term temporary differences were
primarly due tc movements i financial assets and labilities, accruals and prepayments in the USA,

Unrecognised deferred tax assets

2016 2015

£m £m

Praperty, plant and equipment 2 3
Other short term temporary differences 16 16
Intangible assets - l
Tax value of loss carry-forwards 57 47
75 &7

Net unrecognised tax assets

The unrecognised deferred tax assets relating to loss carry-forwards include £2 millien (2015 £1 muflion) expiring in G-5 years and
£2 milkon (2015 £1 muflion) expirng 6-10Q years. The remaining losses and other timing differences do not expire under current

tax legislation.

The tax losses arose in jurisdictions which are not expected to generate taxable profits n the foreseeable future and therefore
there 15 currently no expectation that the losses will be utilised.
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SECTION 2 RESULTS FOR THE YEAR (continued)
53 weeks ended 31 December 2016 (52 weeks ended 26 December 2015)

2.5 Earnings per share

Accounting policy

Basic earnings per share Is calculated by dividing the profit for the year attnbutable to ordinary shareholders by the weighted average
number of erdinary shares in issue during the year. Diluted earnings per share 1s calculated by dwiding the profit for the year attributable
to ordinary shareholders by the weighted average number of ordinary shares in i1ssue during the year plus the weighted average number
of ordinary shares that would be issued on the conversion of ail dilutive potertial ordinary shares into ordinary shares.

Adjusted earnings per share 1s calculated 1n the same way except that the profit for the year aftributable to ordinary shareholders 1s
adjusted for exceptional items (see note 2.2)

The following reflects the income and share data used in the basic and diluted earnings per share computations

2016 2015

£m £m

Profit attributable to ordinary shareholders 211 170
Exceptional tems net of tax (see note 2.2) - 10
Adjusted profit attributable to ordinary shareholders 211 180
2016 2015

Basic weighted average number of shares 014,358,232 1,013,746,032
Dilutive potenual ordinary shares 3,785,770 1,720,789
Diluted weighted average number of shares 1,018.144,002 1.015.466.821

Share incentive plans (see note 4.6} are treated as dilutive to earnings per share when, at the reporting date, the awards are both In the
money’ and would be issuable had the performance period ended at that date.

in 2016 and 2015, the PSP has a dilutive effect as the performance measures have been partially achieved. The DBR CSOP and AESP are
diutive as certan option tranches are 'In the money', after accounting for the value of services rendered in addition to the option price.

Earnings per share

2016 2015

Pence Pence

Basic earnings per share on profit for the year 20.8 168

Exceptional items net of tax - 1.0

Adjusted earnings per share on adjusted profit for the year 208 17.8
Diluted earnings per share

2016 1015

Pence Pence

Diluted earnings per share on profit for the year 207 168

Excepuonal items net of tax - 1.0

Diluted adjusted earnings per share on adjusted profit for the year 20.7 178
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SECTION 3 OPERATING ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
53 weeks ended 31 December 2016 (52 weeks ended 26 December 2015)

3.1 Property, plant and equipment

Accounting policies
Property, plant and equipment (PPE) are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses

Where components of an item of PPE have different useful ives, they are accounted for separately.

The intial cost of PPE includes all costs incurred in bringing the asset into use and includes excernal costs for the acquistion,
construction and commissioning of the asset, internal project costs (primarily staff expenses) and capitalised borrowing costs.

Assets acquired through business combinations

At the tme of a business combination PPE s separately recognised and valued. Given the specialised nature of the PPE acquired, farr
values are calculated on a depreciated replacement cost bass, The key estimates are the replacement caost, where industry specific
indices are used to restate onginal histone ¢ost, and depreciation, where the total and remaining economic useful lives are considered,
together with the residual value of each asset. The total estmated ves applied are consistent with those set out below, Residual values
are based on ndustry speafic indices,

New sites

Caprtal expenditure on new attractions ncludes all the costs of bringing the tems of PPE within that attraction into use ready for the
opening of the attraction. Pre-opening costs are only capitalised to the extent they are required to bring PPE into its working condition.
Other pre-cpening costs are expensed as incurred.

On inception of a lease for a new site, the estimated cost of decommissiening any addmions 15 included within PPE and depreciated
over the lease term. A corresponding provision is set up as disclosed in note 3.5.

Existing sites
Subsequent expenditure on items of PPE in our existing estate can be broadly split into two categories.

+ (apnal expendriture which adds new items of PPE to an attraction or which extends the operational ife of, or enhances existing
terms of PPE s accounted for as an addition to PPE Exampies of such expenditure include new nides or displays and enhancements
to rides or displays, which increase the appeal of our attractions to visitors,

+  Expendture which 1s incurred to mantan the tems of PPE in a safe and useable state and to maintain the usefut Iife of items of PPE
s charged to the Income statement as incurred Examples of such expenditure include regular servicing and maintenance of builldings,
rides and displays and ongoing reparrs to tems of PPE

Depreciation

Land 1s not depreciated. Assets under construction are not depreciated until they come into use, when they are transferred to bulldings

or plant and equipment as approprate. Depreciation 1s then charged to the income staternent on a straight-ine basis over the estmated
useful ives of each part of an tem of PPE. Asset lives for plant and equipment vary depending on the nature of the asset, from short hfe
assets such as IT assets, up to long term infrastructure assets. No residual values are typically considered.

The estimated useful lives are as follows,

Asset class Depreciation palicy

Freehoid / long leasehold buildings 50 years

Leasehold buildings 20 - 50 years {dependent on Ife of lease)
Plant and equipment 5 - 30 years

132



SECTION 3 OPERATING ASSETS AND LIABILITIES (contnued)

3.1 Property, plant and equipment (contnued)

Property, plant and equipment

53 weeks ended 21 December 2016 (52 weeks ended 26 December 201 5)

Land and Plant and Under
buildings equipment construction Total
£m £m Em £m

Cost
Balance at 28 December 2014 919 954 91 1,964
Additions 25 42 151 218
Movements in asset retirement provisions 3 - - 3
Disposals (6) (10) - (16)
Transfers 53 88 (141) -
Effect of movements in foreign exchange (17 (16} n (34)
Balance at 26 December 2015 977 1,058 100 2,135
Acquisition of remaning share of joint venture {note 5.} - 1 - |
Addwiens 13 55 205 73
Movements 1n asset retirement provisions (note 3.5) 5 | - 6
Disposals 5 8 - (13)
Transfers 39 86 (125) -
Effect of movements in foreign exchange 157 116 10 283
Balance at 3| December 2016 1,186 1,309 190 2,685
Depreciation
Balance at 28 December 2014 187 367 - 554
Depreciation for the year - owned assets 28 78 - 106
Depreciauon for the year - leased assets | 3 - 4
Disposals (8} (10) - (1é)
Effect of movements in foreign exchange - {8) - (8
Balance at 26 December 2015 210 430 - 640
Depreciation for year - owned assets 38 87 - 125
Depreciauon for year - leased assets ! 3 - 4
Disposals {3) {7) - (19)
Effect of movements in foreign exchange 35 50 - 85
Balance at 31 December 2016 281 563 - 844
Carrying amounts
At 28 December 2014 732 587 9l 1,410
At 26 December 2015 767 628 100 1,495
At 31 December 2016 905 746 190 1,841
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SECTION 3 OPERATING ASSETS AND LIABILITIES (convnveq)
53 weeks ended 31 December 2016 (52 weeks ended 26 December 2015)

3.1 Property, plant and equipment (cononued)

Crepreciation is calculated in line with the policy stated abave. During the year the Group reviews useful economic Iives and tests PPE
for impairment in accordance with the Group’s accounting pelicy, as referred to in note 3.3. As a result ne material adjustrments were
made in erther 2015 or 2016.

The Group leases buildings and plant and equipment under finance lease agreemenits secured on those assets. At 31 December 2016
the net carrying amount of leased bulldings was £16 millon (2015 £16 midkon) and the net carrying amount of leased plant and
equipment was £29 million (2015 £30 million). Further details in respect of leases and lease obligations are provided in note 4.4

Capital commitments

At the year end the Group has a number of outstanding capital comrmitments in respect of capital expenditure at rts existing attractions,
including accommodation, and for Midway attractions that are under construction, These are expected to be settled within two financial
years of the reporting date These amount to £82 millon (2015 £32 miffion) for which no provision has been made.

At year end foreign exchange rates, the Group 1s expecting to nvest a further £62 millien {2015 £26 rmifon) in the LEGOLAND
Japan Resort. In addition, at year end foreign exchange rates, the Group 15 intending to invest £72 milhon (2015 £62 rruthon) in
LEGOLAND Korea.

3.2 Goodwill and intangible assets

Accounting policies

Geoodwill represents the difference between the cost of an acquisition and the far value of the identfiable net assets acquired less
any contingent liabilties assumed. Goodwill s stated at cost less any accumulated impairment losses, Goodwill 15 allocated to groups
of cash-generating unts and 1s not amortised but 1s tested annually for impairment. In respect of joint ventures, the carrying amount
of goodwill s mcluded in the carrying amount of the Investment In the joint venture,

Where they arise on acquisition, brands have been valued based on discounted future cash flows using the relief from royafty method,
including amounts nto perpeturty. Currently all such brands held are regarded as having indefinite useful economic lives. This 1s based
upon the strong historical performance of the brands over a number of economic cycles, the ability to roll cut our brands, and the
Drirectors’ intentions regarding the future use of brands. The Directors feel this s a surtable policy for a brands business which invests
in and mantans the brands, and foresee no technological developments or competitor actions which would put a finte life on the
brands. The brands are tested annually for mpairment.

Expenditure on internally generated goodwill and brands 1s recognised in the income statement as an expense as incurred.

Other intangble assets comprise software licences, sponsorship nights and other contract based ntangible assets, They are amortised on
a straght-hne basis from the date they are avalable for use. They are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and impairment losses

The esumated useful fives of other intangible assets are as foliows.

Asset class Estimated useful ife
Licences Life of hcence {up to |5 years)
Other intangible assets Relevant contractual period (up to 30 years)
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SECTION 3 OPERATING ASSETS AND LIABILITIES (contrued)
53 weeks ended 3/ December 2014 (52 weeks ended 26 December 2015}

3.2 Goodwill and intangible assets (conunued)

Goodwill and intangible assets

Intangible assets

Gaodwill Brands Other Total
Em £m £m £m

Cost
Balance at 28 December 2014 925 186 26 1,137
Additions - - 3 3
Effect of movements in foreign exchange ()] {4 (n (24)
Balance at 26 December 2015 906 182 28 IL1é
Additions - - | |
Effect of movements in foreign exchange 87 14 4 105
Balance at 3| December 2016 993 196 33 1,222
Amortisation
Balance at 28 December 2014 17t 12 12 195
Amortisation for the year - - | |
Effects of movements in foreign exchange (2) - N 3)
Balance at 26 December 2015 169 12 12 193
Amorusation for the year - - 2 2
Effect of movements in foreign exchange 8 | | 10
Balance at 3|1 December 2016 177 13 15 205
Carrymng amounts
At 28 December 2014 754 174 14 942
At 26 December 2015 737 170 16 923
At 3| December 2016 816 183 18 1,017

Intangible assets are tested for mparrment in accordance with the Group's accounting policy, as referred to in note 3.3, As a result of
these tests, no imparment charges have been made in the year {2015 £nil),

Goodwill

Goodwill 1s allocated to the Group's operating segments which represent the lowest level at which it is monitored and tested for
imparrment. i 15 denominated in the relevant local currencies and therefore the carrying value 1s subject to movernents in foreign

exchange rates.

2016 2015

£m £m

Midway Actractions 572 524
LEGOLAND Parks 42 37
Resort Theme Parks 202 176
816 737
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SECTION 3 OPERATING ASSETS AND LIABILITIES (conznued)
53 weeks ended 31 December 2016 (52 weeks ended 26 December 2015)

3.2 Goodwill and intangible assets (conunued)

Brands
The Group has valued the following acquired brands, all with indefinite useful economuc lives They are all dencminated in their relevant
local currencies and therefore the carrying value 1s subject to movements in foresgn exchange rates,

2016 2015
£m £m

Midway Attractions
Madame Tussauds 29 26
SEA LIFE 16 15
London Eye 10 10
Other 8 8
63 59

Resort Theme Parks
Gardaland Resort 49 42
Alton Towers Resort 32 32
THORPE PARK 15 15
Heide Park 12 1o
Other 12 12
120 Tl
183 170

The Madame Tussauds brand value 1s predominantly related to the London attraction but includes value wdentified with the Group's
other Madarne Tussauds attractions. The SEA LIFE brand is related to the Group's portfolio of SEA LIFE attractions The London Eve,
Gardaland Resort, Alten Towers Resort, THORPE PARK and Heide Park brands all arise from those specific wisitor attractions.

3.3 Impairment testing

Accounting policies

The carrying amounts of the Group’s goodwill, Intangible assets and PPE are reviewed at the end of each reporting period to determine
whether there 1s any indication of impairment. If any such indication exists or if the asset has an indefinite Iife, the asset's recoverable

amount 15 estimated.

The process of impairment testing 1s to estimate the recoverable amount of the assets concerned, and recognise an impairment loss
whenever the carrying amount of those assets exceeds the recoverable amount.

The level at which the assets concerned are reviewed varies as follows:

Asset

Goodwill Goodwll 1s reviewed at an Operating Group level, being the refevant grouping of cash-generating units {CGUs) at
which the benefit of such goodwill arises A CGL) 15 the smallest identifiable group of assets that generates largely
independent cash inflows, being the Group's individual attractions

Brands Brands are reviewed individually.

PPE PPE 1s reviewed at an attraction level,
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SECTION 3 OPERATING ASSETS AND LIABILITIES (continued)
53 weeks ended 31 December 201 6 (52 weeks ended 26 December 2015)

3.3 Impairment testing (contirued)

For assets that are in continuing use but do not generate largely independent cash inflows, the recoverable ameunt 1s determined for
the CGU to which the assets belong

Impairment losses are recognised in the income statement They are allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of goodwill, and then
to reduce the carrying amount of ather intangible assets and other assets on a pro rata basis,

Caleulation of recoverable amount

In accordance with accounting standards the recoverable amount of an asset 1s the greater of its value v use and its fair value less costs
to sell. To assess value in use, estimated future cash flows are discounted to therr present value using an appropnate pre-tax discount
rate. The Group uses a multiple of EBITDA to estimate fair value which 15 based on the Group's average market caprtalisation as a
multtiple of the Group's underlying EBITDA, The Group's nternally approved five year business plans, being the current year and four
future years, are used as the basis for these calculations, with cash flows beyend the four year cutlook penod being extrapolated by
using a long term growth rate.

Common assumptions have been adopted for the purpose of testing goodwill across the business and for testing brand values where

their risk profiles are similar The key assumptions and estimates used when calculating the net present value of future cash flows from
the Group's businesses are as follows

Estimate

Future cash flows Assumed to be equivalent to the operating cash flows of the businesses less the cash flows in respect of capital
expenditure The Group uses EBITDA as a proxy for the operating cash flows of its attrachions as they are not

significantly impacted by movements in working capital

Growth in EBITDA EBITDA 15 forecast by an analysis of both projected revenues and costs Visttor numbers and revenue projections are
based on market analysis, nduding the total available market, historic trends, competition and site developrment

actvity, both in terms of caprtal expenditure on rides and attractions as well as marketing activity,

Operating costs projections are based on historical data, adjusted for variations in visitor numbers and planned
expansion of site actrities as well as general market conditions

Twming and quantum of future
capital and maintenance
expenditure

Long term growth rate

Discount rates to reflect
the risks involved

Projections are based on the attractions’ long term development plans, taking inte account the capital investrment
necessary to mantain and sustan the performance of the attractions’ assets,

A growth rate of 2.5% (2015 2 5%) was determined based on management’s long term expectations, taking accourit
of historical averages and future expected trends in both market development and market share growth

Based on the estimated weighted average cost of capital of a 'market partiapant’ within the main geographical
regions where the Group operates, these are drawn from market data and businesses in similar sectors, and
adjusted for asset speafic risks. The key assumptions of the ‘market particpant’ include the ratio of debt to equity
finanang, nsk free rates and the medium term risks assoaated with equity investments, Net present values are
calculated using an appropriate pre-tax discount rate of between 9.0% and 12.9% (2015 9 1% and 12 7%}, derived
from the Group's post-tax weighted average cost of capital of between 7 1% and 9 6% (2015 7 2% and 9 4%}

Sensitivity analysis

Imparment reviews are often sensitive to changes in key assumptions. Sensitivity analysis has therefore been performed on the

calculated recoverable amounts considering incrernental changes in the key assumptions of EBITDA, discount rate and long term
growth rate in relation to value 1n use calculations,

When reviewing the outputs of the sensitivity analysis, particular focus 1s given to material amounits where headroom 1s more limited
As In prior years, this solely relates to goodwill attributed to the Resort Theme Parks Operating Group (RTP) where the headroom is
£26 million (2015 £55 mithon). The Midway Attractions and LEGOLAND Parks Operating Groups, as well as ndmdual brands, show
considerable headroom and are not sensitive to even significant changes in any of the key assurptions
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3.3 Impairment testing (contnued)

For RTP where recoverable amount was based upon value in use, testing was performed on forward locking data extracted from the
Group's strategic plan. As this plan was prepared before the peak summer trading seascn, revised amounts have been included in the
four year outlook periad that reflect management’s latest best estimates of future performance These take Into account trading in this
first full year following the accident at Alton Towers n 2015 This first full year of trading aiso informs management's forecasts of the
ongoing anticipated recovery of Alton Towers,

In undertaking sensrtivity analysis for RTP consideration has been given to increases in discount rates, movements in EBITDA and long
term growth rates At the year end the Directors consider that the forecasts used reflect the current best estimate of future trading in
RTP K 1s noted however that the calculations are inherently sensitive to the pace of the recovery at Alton Towers While in the short
term a delay in the pace of the ongoing recovery would be highly unlkely to affect valuations by a substantial amocunt, longer term
shortfalls that affect the outlook for the fourth year of the plan {which drives the terminal value} would have a more significant impact.
If EBITDA for RTP as a whole were forecast to be 3% (2015 6%) lower than currently anticipated for 2021, headroom would be
absorbed in full. While 1t 15 not impossible for such a shortfall to eacur the Directors do not consider it to be probable based on the
strength of the product development, diversity across the businesses in RTP and our proven track record in scaling our cost base to
respond to changing demand.

Discount rates have been derived from market data As these rates are intended to be long term in nature they are expected to be
reasonably stable n the short term, however market discount rates could increase in future If the discount rate used across RTP had
been higher by a factor of 3% (2015 6%). headroom would have been absorbed in full. The Directors have formed therr best estimate
of the discount rate and do not consider that such a move in the rate 1s appropnate, but it 1s not impossible that a different view of
discount rates could be required in the future.

The long term growth rate, which 1s applied to the cash flows of the final year in the business plan, was determined based on
management’s long term expectations, taking account of historical averages and future expected trends in both market developrment
and market share growth, The Directors do not consider it probable that this rate will prove to be inappropriate in the future, but note
that if crcumstances caused the rate to lower to 21% (2015 | 7%}, headroom would be absorbed in full

3.4 Working capital

Accounting policies

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost is measured using the first-in first-out prinaiple and includes
expendrture mncurred In acquinng the inventories and bringing them to their present lecation and condition.

Trade and other receivables

Trade recevables are recognised and carried at the onginal invoice amount less an allowance for any amounts considered by
management 1o be uncollectible. Bad debts are written off when identified, Other recenvables are stated at their amortised cost less

impairment losses.

Inventories

W0le 2015

Em fm

Maintenance inventory 9 7
Goods for resale 27 23
36 30
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3.4 Working capital (conunued)

Trade and other receivables

Current assets

Non-current assets

2016 2015 2016 2018
£m £m £m £m
Trade recewables 20 20 - -
Other recewvables 29 25 - -
Prepayments and accrued income 37 31 13 I
86 76 13 B
Ageing of trade recevables

The ageing analysis of trade recevables, net of allowance for non-recoverable amounts, s as follows
2016 2015
£m £m
Nerther past due nor impaired 13 10
Up to 30 days overdue 4 8
Between 30 and 60 days overdue 1 |
Over 60 days overdue 2 |
20 20

Trade and other payables

Current liabilities

MNon-current liabilities

2016 2015 2016 2015

£m £m £m £m

Trade payables 63 41 - -
Accruals 139 108 | 2
Deferred income 84 72 - -
Other payables 14 14 27 22
300 235 28 24

Accruals

Accruals comprise balances in relation to both operating and capital costs incurred at the reporting date but for which an invoice

has not been recerved and payment has not yet been made.

Deferred income

Deferred ncome comprises revenues received or invoiced at the reporting date which relate to future periods. The main components
of deferred iIncome relate to advanced ticket revenues in respect of online bookings and annual pass purchases, pre-booked

accommodation, and certain sponsorship and simiar arrangernents,
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3.5 Provisions

Accounting policy

Prowisions are recognised when the Group has legal or constructive obligations as a result of past events and 1t 1s probable that
expendrture will be required to settle those obligations. They are measured at the Directors’ best estimates, after taking account
of information avalable and different possible ocutcomes.

If the effect 1s material, provisions are deternined by discounting the expected future cash flows at a pre-tax rate that reflects current

market assessments of the time value of money and, where appropriate. the risks speaific to the hability

Provisions

Asset retirement

provisions Other Total
£m £m £m
Balance at 27 December 2015 40 15 55
Provisions made during the year 3 2 8
Utihsed during the year - (2) @
Unused amounts reversed - [4}] (n
Unwinding of discount 2 - 2
Effect of movements in foreign exchange 4 2 6
Balance at 31 December 2016 52 16 68
2016
Current - 3 3
Non-current 52 13 65
52 16 68
2015
Current - 4 4
Non-current 40 Il 51
40 15 55

Asset retirement provisions

Certain attractions operate on leasehold sites and these provisions relate to the anticipated costs of removing assets and restoring

the sites concerned at the end of the lease term. These leases are typically of a duration of between ten and 60 years.

They are established on inception and reviewed annually. The prowvisions are discounted back to prasent value with the discourt then
being unwound through the income statement as part of finance costs The cost of establishing these prowisions 15 caprtalised within

the cost of the related asset.

Qther

Other provisions largely relate to the estimated cost arising from open insurance claims, tax matters and legal 1ssues.

There are no anticipated future events that would be expected to cause a material change in the timing or amount of outflows

associated with the provisions.
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4.1 Net debt

Analysis of net debt

Net debt 15 the total amount of cash and cash equivalents less interest-bearmg loans and borrowings and finance lease labilites. Cash
and cash equivalents comprise cash balances, call deposits and other short term iquid iInvestments such as money market funds which
are subject 1o an insignificant risk of a change in value

Effect of

27 movements 31

December Net Non-cash in foreign December

2015 cash flows movement exchange 2016

£m £m fm £m £m

Cash and cash equivalents 152 40 - 23 215
Interest-bearing loans and berrowings (note 4.2) (1,007) - ) (141) {1.152)
{855) 40 (4) (118) (937)

Finance leases {note 4.4} (82) - () (3) (88)
Net debt (937) 40 (5) (123) (1,025)

T As disclosed in note 4.2 a substantial proportion of the Group's borrowings are denominated in Euros and US Dollars,

4.2 Interest-bearing loans and borrowings

Accounting policy

Interest-bearing loans and borrowings are intially recogrised at far value less attributable fees These fees are then amortised through
the income statement on an effective interest rate basis over the expected life of the loan (or over the contractual term where there 15
no clear indicaton that a shorter Iife 1s appropriate). If the Group subsequently determines that the expected ife has changed, the

resulting adjustment to the effective interest rate calculation 15 recognised as a gain or loss on re-measurement and presented
separately in the Income statement.

Interest-bearing loans and borrowings

2016 2015
£m £m

Non-current
Floating rate bank faciiues due 2020 723 640
£300 mullion floating rate revolving credit facility due 2020 - -
€500 million fixed rate notes due 2022 424 363
1,147 1,003

Current

Interest payable 5 4
1,152 1,007
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4.2 Interest-bearing loans and borrowings (conunued)

The Group's facilities are:

+ Bark faclities comprising £250 milhon, $540 million and €50 million floating rate term debt to mature in March 2G20. The relevant
floating nterest rates are LIBOR, the USD benchmark rate and EURIBOR, which were 0.37%, 0.99% and (0.32)% respectively at
31 December 2016 (2015 059%, 057% and (0 13)%). The margin on the bank facilities 1s dependent on the Group's adjusted
leverage ratio and at 31 December 2016 was 2.0% (2015 20%)

+ A £300 millon mutti-currency revolving credit facility. The margin on this faaility 15 also dependent on the Group's adjusted leverage
ratio and at 3} Decemnber 2016 was at a margin of |.75% (2015 1 75%) over the same floating interest rates when drawn

« A bond in the form of €500 million seven year notes with a coupon rate of 2.75% to mature in March 2022,

The fees reiated to the facities are being amortised to the maturity of the debt as the debt 1s currently expected to be held for its full
term. The borrowings under the bank facilties {including the revolving credit facility) and the €500 million bonds are unsecured but
guaranteed by the Company and certain of rits subsidharies,

The Group 1s required to comply with certain financial and non-financial covenants in the bank facities, including a requirement to
mamntan certan ratos of EBITDA to both net finance costs and net debt. tt s also required to comply with certain non-financial
covenants in the €500 million notes. All covenant requirements were satisfied throughout the year,

4.3 Financial risk management

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk 15 the rnisk that the Group would not have sufficient funds to meet its financial obligations as they fall due. The Group's
Treasury Department produces short term and long term cash forecasts to identify liquidity requirements and headroom, which are
reviewed by the Group's Chief Financial Officer. Surplus cash is actively managed across Group bank accounts to cover local shortfalls
or invested in bank deposits or other short term iquid investments such as money market funds n some countries bank cash pooling
arrangemenits are In place to optimise the use of cash.

As at the reporting date the Group had £215 millen of cash and cash equivalents (2015 £152 miflion) and a £300 million revotving
credit facility, of which £nil was drawn down (2015 £300 muflion of which £mif drawn down), In order to meet its obligations and
commitrments that will fall due.

The following table sets out the contractual maturities of financial habilities, including interest payments. This analysis assumes that
interest rates prevailing at the reporting date remain constant,

0to <| | to <2 2to <5 5 years Contractual
year years years and over cash flows
fm £m £m £m £m
2016
Floating rate bank facilities due 2020 (20) (20) (754) - (794)
€500 million fixed rate notes due 2022 (12) (12 (24) (444) (492)
Finance lease habilities (] {7) (20) (170) (204)
Trade payables and derivatives (66) (3) “4) - (73)
(105) (42) (802) (614) {1,563)
2015
Floating rate bank facihties due 2020 (7 (17 {685} - 719
€500 millon fixed rate notes due 2022 (10) (10 @an (382) (433)
Finance lease liabilities (6) (6) 19 (162) (193)
Trade payables and derwatives (45) (4) (8) - (57}
(78) 37) (743) (544) {1.402)
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4.3 Financial risk management (conunued)

Interest rate risk
The Group 15 exposed to interest rate risk on both interest bearing assets and liabilities, The Group has a policy of actively managing its
interest rate risk exposure using a combination of fixed rate debt and interest rate swaps.

At 31 December 2016 the Group had €500 million of fixed rate debt (2015 €500 mifion). Taken together with those floating rate bank
faciities that have been swapped to a fixed rate using interest rate swaps {the accounting of which 15 set out below), In aggregate 74%
(2015 75%) of the year end interest-bearning loans and borrowings Is at a fixed rate for a weighted average period of 4.2 years

(2015 5 2 years).

Interest rate swaps are recognised at far value which 15 determined by reference to market rates. The fair value 1s the estimated
amount that the Group would receve or pay to exit the swap, taking inito account current interest rates, credit risks and bid/ask spreads.
Following instial recognition, changes in fair value are recognised immediately in the income statement, except where the Group adopts
hedge accounting,

When hedge accounting, the Group formally documents the relationship between the hedging instruments and hedged rtems.

h rmakes an assessment, at inception and on an ongoing basis, as to whether the hedging instruments are expected to be ‘highly effective’
in offsetting the changes in the fair value or cash flows of the respective hedged rtems during the Ife of the hedge The effectve portion
of changes in fair value 1s recognised In other comprehensive income and presented in the hedging reserve in equity. Any ineffective
portion of changes in far value s recognised immediately in profit or loss The amount recogrised in other comprehensive income 1s
removed and included in profit or loss In the same penoed as the hedged cash flows affect profit or loss. If the hedging instrument no
longer meets the ¢riteria for hedge accounting, cumulative gains or losses previously recognised in other comprehensive ncome

would be recogmised immediately 10 profit or loss, All interest rate swaps held by the Group are hedge accounted.

Sensitivity analysis

Based on the net debt position as at 31 December 2016, taking into account interest rate swaps, each 100 basis points (bp) fall or rise in
market interest rates would result in an increase or decrease in net interest paid of £1 milion (2015 £nif). This has been calculated by
applying the interest rate change to the Group's variable rate cash, borrowings and dervatives.

Foreign currency risk
As the Group operates internationally the performance of the business 15 sensitive to movements in foreign exchange rates The Group's
potential currency exposures comprise transaction and translation exposures.

The Group ensures that its net exposure to foreign currency balances is kept to a minimal level by using foreign currency swaps to
exchange balances back into Sterling or by buying and selling foreign currencies at spot rates when necessary. The fair value of foreign
exchange contracts 1s the present value of future cash flows and 1s determined by reference to market rates At 3| December 2016 the
fair value of foreign currency swaps was £1 million (2015 £1 muihion)

Transaction exposures
The revenue and costs of the Group's operations are denorminated pnimarily in the currencres of the relevant local territones.
Any significant cross-border trading exposures are hedged by the use of forward foreign exchange contracts,

Translation exposures

The Group's results, as presented in Sterling, are subject to fluctuations as a result of exchange rate movements, The Group does
not hedge this translation exposure to its earnings but, where material, may carry out net asset hedging by borrowing in the same
currencies as the currenaies of its operating units. The Group's debt s therefore denominated in Eures, US Dollars and Sterling
and at 31 December 2016 consisted of €550 million, $340 milhon and £25C million

Gains or losses arise on the retranslation of the net assets of foreign operations at different reporting dates and are recognised

within the consclidated staternent of comprehensive iIncome They will predominantly relate to the retranslation of opening net assets
at closing foreign exchange rates, together with the retranslation of retained forexgn profits for the year (that have been accounted
for in the consolidated income statement at average rates) at closing rates. Exchange rates for major currencies are set out on the
following page.
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4.3 Financial risk management (conunued)

Gains or losses also anse on the retranslation of foreign currency denominated borrowings designated as effective net investrnent
hedges of overseas net assets. These are offset in equity by corresponding gains or losses arising on the retranslation of the related
hedged foreign currency net assets. The Group also treats specific iIntercompany loan balances, which are not ntended to be repaid in
the foreseeable future, as part of its net investment. In the event of a foreign entity being sold or a hedging item being extinguished, such
exchange differences would be recognised in the income staternent as part of the gain or loss on sale

The following exchange rates have been used in the translation of the results of foreign operations:

Weighted Weighted
Closing rate average rate Closing rate average rate Closing rate
for 2014 for 2015 for 2015 for 2016 for 2016
US Dollar 1.56 1.54 1 49 137 1.24
Euro 1.28 139 I 36 1.23 117
Australian Dollar 1.92 204 2.05 1.83 1.71

The Sterling equivalents of financial assets and labiliies denorminated in foretgn currencies were

Carrying value

Sterling Euro US Dollar Other Total
£m £Em £m £m £m
2016
Cash and cash equivalents 17 10 27 6l 215
Floating rate bank faciiies due 2020 (248) (42) (433) - (723)
€500 rmillion fixed rate notes due 2022 - (424) - - (424)
Finance lease habihtes (54 (349 - - (88)
{185) (490) (406) 6l (1.020)
2015
Cash and cash equivalents 90 7 10 45 152
Floating rate bank facriities due 2020 (247) (36) (357) - (640}
€500 million fixed rate notes due 2022 - (363) - - (363)
Finance lease habiltwes (54) (28) - - (82)
(211) (420) (347) 45 {933)

Sensitivity analysis on foreign currency risk

A 10% strengthening of all currencies aganst Sterling would increase net debt by £83 million (2015 £72 mulion) As described ahove,
gans or losses in the income statement and equity are offset by the retranslauon of the related foreign currency net assets or specific
intercormpany loan balances.

A 10% strengthening of all currenties aganst Sterling would reduce the far value of foreign exchange contracts and result in a charge
to the income staternent of £5 milion (2015 £4 milon).
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4.3 Financial risk management (contnued)

Credit risk

Credit nisk 1 the risk of financial loss to the Group If a customer or counterparty to a financial nstrument fails to meet its contractual
obligations, Credit sk 1s imited to the carrying value of the Group's monetary assets, The Group has imited credit risk with its
customers, the vast majority of whom pay in advance or at the time of their visit. There are credt pohaes in place with regard to

its trade recevables with credit evaluations performed on customers requiring credit over a certaim amount

The Group manages credit exposures in connection with finanang and treasury activities iIncluding exposures arising from bank
deposits, cash held at banks and dervative transactions, by appraisal, formal approval and ongoing monitoring of the credit position
of counterparties, Counterparty exposures are measured aganst a formal transaction hmit appropriate to that counterparty's
credit position

The Group robustly apprases investments before they are made to ensure the associated credit risk 1s acceptable. Performance

of investments are closely monitored, in some cases through Board participation, to ensure returns are 1n line with expectations and
credt nisk remains acceptable. There were no overdue amounts in respect of investments and no impairments have been recorded
(2015 £n). The Group has no collateral in respect of its investrents.

Fair values

Fair value hierarchy

The Group analyses financial nstruments in the following ways:

* Level | uses unadjusted gquoted prices in active markets.

+ Level 2, uses inputs that are derved directly or indirectly from cbservable prices {other than quoted prices).
= Level 3 uses nputs that are not based on observable market data.

Fair value versus carrying amounts

The fair values of financial assets and liabilities are presented in the table below, together with the carrying amounts shown in the
statement of financial position. Short term recevables, payables and cash and cash equivalents have been excluded from the following
disclosures on the basis that their carrying amount 1s a reasonable approximation to far value,

2016 2015
Carrying Fair Carrying Fair
Fair value amount value amount value
hierachy im £m £m £m
Held at amortised cost
Floating rate bank facilities due 2020 Level 2 (723) (724) (640} {631)
€500 million fixed rate notes due 2022 Level | (424) (445) {363} (358)
Finance lease habilities Level 3 (88) (88) (82) 82)
Investments Level 3 37 37 - -
Held at fair value
Derwative financial instruments Level 2 2 ) | |
Investments Level 3 12 12 Il Il
{1,188) (1.210) (1,.073) (1,059)

The farr values shown above for the bank faciliies and fixed rate notes have been calculated using market values. The far values of the
finance leases are determined by reference to similar lease agreements, There 1s no difference between the carrying value and the fair
value of investments that has been estimated by reference to discounted cash flows,

There have been no transfers between levels in 2016 or 2015
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4.4 Lease obligations

Accounting policies

Leases in which the Group assumes substantizlly all the risks and rewards of ownership of the leased asset are classified as finance
leases. All cther leases are classified as operating leases. Where land and bulldings are held under finance leases the accounting
treatment of the land 1s considered separately from that of the bulldings. Leased assets acquired by way of finance lease are stated

at an amount equal to the lower of therr fair value and the present value of the mimimum lease payments at nception of the lease,
less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, In January 2016 the IASB issued IFRS |6 ‘Leases’ which 1s expected to become
effective from the 2019 accounting period. Detals on our assessment of the impact of this new standard and how we are approaching
its )mplementation are set out in note 5.5.

Finance lease payments
Minmum lease payments are apportioned between the finance charge and the reduction of the outstanding liability. The finance charge
is allocated during the lease term so as to produce a constant penedic rate of nterest on the remaining balance of the lzbility

Operating lease payments

Payments made under operating leases are recognised in the ncome statementt on a straght-ine basis over the term of the lease.
Lease incentives received and predetermined non-contingent rent increases are recognised in the income statement as an integral part
of the total lease expense over the lease term. This therefore excludes the potential Impact of future performance or rent increases
based on inflationary indices.

Lease arrangements

The Group's mast significant lease arrangements relate to a sale and leaseback transaction undertaken during 2007, involving the PPE
of certain attractions within the Midway Attractions and Resort Theme Parks Operating Groups. The leases are accounted for as
finance ar operating leases depending on the speafic arcumstances of each fease and the nature cf the attraction. For certain of the
sites an indvidual lease agreement 15 split for accounting purposes as a combination of finance and operating leases, reflecting the
varied nature of assets at the attraction. During 2012 the Group undertook a further sale and leaseback transaction of the
LEGOLAND Windsor Hotel. This 15 being accounted for as an operating lease

EFach of these sale and leaseback agreements runs for a period of 35 years from inception and allows for annual rent ncreases
based on the inflationary index in the United Kingdorn and fixed increases in Cortinental Europe. The Group has the option, but 1s
not contractually required, to extend each of the lease agreements indwvidually for two further terms of 35 years, subject to an
adjustment to market rates at that tme.

The Group also enters into operating leases for sites within the Midway Attractions Operating Group and central areas. These are
typically of a duration between ten and 60 years, with rent increases determined based on local market practice. In addition 16 a
fixed rental element, rents within the Midway Attractions Operating Group can also contan a performance related element, typically
based on turnover at the site concerned. Options 1o renew leases exist at these sites In line with local market practice in the
territories concerned.

The key contractual terms in relation to each lease are considered when calculating the rental charge over the lease term. The potential
impact on rent charges of future performance or Increases based on nflationary indices are each excluded from these calculations,

There are no significant operating restrictions placed on the Group as a result of its lease arrangements.

Lease costs and commitments

During 2016 £96 millon {2015 £89 million) was recognised as an expense in the iIncome statement in respect of operatng leases.

Of this £13 million (2015 £12 milhon) was contingent on performance.

The lease cammitments in the following tables run to the end of the respective lease term and do not Include possible lease renewals.

Where relevant, the lease commitments noted do not include the potential impact of future performance or rent increases based on
inflationary indices
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4.4 Lease obligations (conunued

Finance leases

These tables provide information about the future minimum lease payments and contractual terms of the Group's finance lease labilities,

as follows.

Future Present value Future Present value

minimum lease of minimum  minimum lease of minimum

payments Interest lease payments payments Interest  lease payments

2016 2016 2016 2015 2015 2015

£m £m £m £m £m £m

Less than one year 7 7 - 6 [ -
Between one and five years 27 27 - 25 25 -
More than five years 258 170 88 244 162 82
292 204 88 275 193 82

Nominal Year of 2016 2015

Currency interest rate maturity £m £m

Finance lease habihties GBP 5 64% 2042 54 54
Finance lease habilities EUR 911% 2042 34 28
88 82

The nominal interest rate for finance leases in the table above represents the weighted average effective interest rate. This 1s used

because the table above aggregates finance leases with the same maturity date and currency

Operating leases

The minimum rentals payable 35 lessee under non-cancellable operating leases are as follows:

2016 2015

£m £m

Less than one year 83 76
Between one and five years 329 291
More than five years 1,325 1,271
1,737 1,638

The Group has alsc entered into lease agreements as part of the developments of LEGCLAND Japan and LEGOLAND Korea which
are being developed under the Group's ‘operated and leased” model. Following the opening of the parks, the Group’s local operating
company in each territory will lease the site and park infrastructure from each of the development partners for a period of 50 years.
The feases will be accounted for as finance or operating leases from the date the parks start operating depending on the specific
arcumstances of each lease and the nature of the assets at the attractions.
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4.5 Equity and capital management

Capital management

The caprtal structure of the Group consists of debt which includes borrowings (see note 4.2}, cash and cash equivalents and equity
attnbutable to equity holders of the parent Company, as disclosed below The Group's objective when managing capital 1s to mantain
a strong capital base so as to ensure investor and credtor confidence and to sustain future development of the business, to provide
returns for sharehoiders, and to optimise the capital structure to reduce the cost of capital. There are no externally imposed capital
requirements on the Group.

To enable the Group to meet its abjective, the Directors montor returns on capital through constant review of earnings generated
from the Group’s capital nvestment programme and through regular budgeting and planning processes, manage caprtal In a manner
so as to ensure that sufficient funds for capital investmertt and working capital are avalable, and the requirements of the Group's
debt covenants are met,

The Group does not routinely make additional 1ssues of capital, other than for the purpose of rasing finance to fund significant
acquisitions or developments intended to increase the overall value of the Group.

Share plans have been created to allow employees of the Group te partiapate in the ownership of the Group's equity instruments,

in order to ensure employees are focused on growing the value of the Group to achieve the ams of all the shareholders. The Group's
equity-settled share plans are settled either by the issue of shares by Merlin Entertanments plc or by the purchase of shares in

the market.

Share capital and reserves

Share capital
2014 2016 2015 2015
Nurnber £m Number £m
Ordinary shares of £0 0l each
On issue and fully paid at beginning of year 1,013,746,032 10 1,013,746,032 10
Issued 1n the year 2,063,234 - - -
On issue and fully paid at end of year 1,015,809,266 10 1,013,746,032 10

Issue of new shares
During the year the Company issued 2,063,234 ordinary shares for consideration of £2 milllon (taken to the share premium account)
in connection with the Group's employee share incentive plans (note 4.6)

Ordinary shares
The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive dividends as declared from time to tme and are entitled to one vote per share

at general meetings of the Company.

Fach ordinary share in the caprtal of the Company ranks equally In all respects and no shareholder holds shares carrying special rights
relating to the coritrol of the Company.

The Company has entered into 2 Relationship Agreement with its major shareholder, KIRKBL in connection with the exercise of its rights
as a major shareholder in the Company and the right to appoirt Directors to the Board

The nominal value of shares in 1ssue 15 shown in share caprtal, with any additional consideration for those shares shown in share premium,
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SECTION 4 CAPITAL STRUCTURE AND FINANCING (contnued)
53 weeks ended 31 December 2016 (52 weeks ended 26 December 2015}

4.5 Equity and capital management (conunued)

Dividends
Cividends are recognised through equity on the earlier of their approval by the Company's shareholders or their payment

2016 2015

£m £m

Final dividend for the 52 weeks ended 27 December 2014 of 4.2 pence per share - 43
Interim dividend for the 52 weeks ended 26 December 2015 of 2.1 pence per share - 21
Final dividend for the 52 weeks ended 26 December 2015 of 4.4 pence per share 45 -
Interim dividend for the 53 weeks ended 3| December 2016 of 2.2 pence per share 22 -
Total dividends paid 67 64

The Directors of the Company propose a final dividend of 4.9 pence per share for the year ended 31 December 2016 (2015 4 4 pence
per share). The total dvidend for the current year, subject to approval of the final dividend, will be 7.1 pence per share (2015 65 pence
per share).

Translation reserve

The translation reserve of £(5) milion (2015 £(135) milfion} comprises all foreign exchange differences ansing from the transiation of
the financial statements of foreign operations, primarily relating to the statement of position at reporting dates. The reporting date
foreign exchange rates by major currency are provided in note 4 3.

Hedging reserve
The hedging reserve of £(3) million (2015 £ni) compnses the effective portion of the cumulative net change In Interest rate swaps
related to hedged transactions that have not yet occurred.

4.6 Share-based payment transactions

Accounting policy

The farr value of the share plans 15 recogrised as an expense over the expected vesting pericd with a corresponding entry to retaned
earnings, net of deferred tax, The fair value of the share plans s determined at the date of grant. Non-market based vesting conditions
{Le. earnings per share and return on capital employed targets) are tzken into account in estimating the number of awards ikely to vest,
which 1s reviewed at each accountng date up to the vesting date, at which point the estmate 1s adjusted to reflect the actual awards
issued. No adjustment 1s made after the vesting date even if the awards are forfaited or are not exercised.

The Group operates cash-settled versions of the employee incentive plans for employees in certan territories. The 1ssues and resulting
charges of these plans are not material to the financial statements.

Equity-settled plans

The Group operates four employee share incentive plans' the Performance Share Plan (PSP), the Deferred Bonus Plan (DBP), the
Company Share Option Plan {CSOP) and the All Employee Sharesave Plan (AESP) as set out in the Directors’ Remuneration Report
and the tables below. A summary of the rules for the plans and the performance condmions attaching to the PSP are given in the
Directors’ Remuneration Report,
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SECTION 4 CAPITAL STRUCTURE AND FINANCING (continued)
53 weeks ended 31 December 2016 (52 weeks ended 26 December 2015)

4.6 Share-based payment transactions (convnued)

Analysis of share-based payment charge

2016 2015
im £m
PSP 7 I
DBP | -
CSOP | |
AESP 2 2
I 4
Analysis of awards
Average
remaining Number Number
Exercise Period when contractual of shares of shares
Date of grant price (£) exercisable fife (years) 2016 2015
PSP November 2013 - September 2016 - 2017 - 2019 1.2 7.430,215 5,633,093
DBP March 2015 - March 2016 - 2018 - 2019 1.3 308,272 361,734
CS0OP November 2013 - September 206 315-48] 2017 - 2026 8.0 3.893.704 3,192,347
AESP January 2014 - March 2016 296 -3.53 2017 - 2019 1.6 6311715 5,502,199
Total 17,943,906 14,689,373
The weighted average exercise prices {WAEP)} over the year were as foliows,
PSP DBP CSOP AESP

Number Number Number WAEP (£) Number WAEFP (£)
At 28 December 2014 3,611,209 - 2,305,252 319 3,180,962 298
Granted during the year 2,426,028 383,843 1,083,850 4,38 2823813 3.24
Forfeited during the year (404,144) (22,109 (196.755) 346 (473,386) 311
Exeraised during the year - - - - (4.213) 2.98
Expired during the year - - - - (24,997) 298
At 26 December 2015 5,633,093 361,734 3,192,347 3.58 5.502,199 3.10
Granted during the year 2,300,004 27,519 1,337,925 4.6l 1,692,389 319
Forfeited during the year (502,882) (5.518) (382,014) 3.89 (530,897) 3.13
Exercised during the year - (75,463) (239,561) 319 (235,360} 313
Expired during the year - - (14,993) 3.61 (116,616} 3.10
At 3| December 2016 7,430,215 308,272 3,893,704 393 6311715 312

Exerasable at end of year
At 26 December 2015 - - - - - -
At 3| December 2016 - - 1,584,579 315 - -

" NIl cost options
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SECTION 4 CAPITAL STRUCTURE AND FINANCING (contrued)
53 weeks ended 31 December 2016 (52 weeks ended 26 December 2015)

4.6 Share-based payment transactions (conunued)

The farr value per award granted and the assumptions used in the calculations for the significant grants in 2015 and 2014 are as follows'

Share price Fair Expected

Exercise at grant value per dividend Expected  Award life Risk free

Scheme Date of grant price (£) date (£) award (£) yield volatility (years) rate
PSP 2 April 2015 - 4.47 447 nfa nfa 30 nfa
| Aprif 2016 - 465 4.65 nfa nfa 30 nfa

DBP 25 March 2015 - 4.45 4.45 nfa nfa 30 nfa
24 March 2016 - 4.54 4.54 nfa nfa 30 nfa

CSOP | Aprid 2015 442 4.42 0.99 | 4% 24% 47 | 0%
| April 2016 4,60 4.65 0.91 | 4% 21% 446 0.7%

AESP |7 February 2015 343 4.04 071 I 5% 18% 22 0.7%
17 March 2015 323 4.38 1.20 |.4% 20% 33 09%

16 February 2016 353 4.15 0.77 16% 21% 22 04%

16 March 2016 315 4.62 1.46 | 4% 21% 33 07%

The key assumptions used in calculating the share-based payrments were as follows

+  The binormial valuation methodclogy 15 used for the PSE CSOP and DBE The Black-Scholes model 15 used to value the AESE
+ The expected volatility 1s based on the historical volatility of the Company’s shares

+ The risk free rate 15 equal to the prevalling UK Gilts rate at grant date, which s commensurate with the expected term

» Expected forfeiture rates are based on recent experience of staff turnover levels,

» Behavioural expectations have been estimated in estimating the award life

» The charge is spread over the vesting period on a straight-line basis.
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SECTION 5 OTHER NOTES
53 weeks ended 31 December 2016 (52 weeks ended 26 December 2015)

5.1 Investments

Accounting policy

The Group holds investments in two forms Investments in loan notes are accounted for as financial assets at historic cost with interest
accrued on an effective interest rate basis This calculation requires estimation of the expected period over which the investment will
be held together with the value of the investment at the end of that perod. Interest on loan notes is recognised within finance ncorme
(see note 2.3},

Minority equity investments are accounted for as ‘available for sale’ financizl assets at far value They are not consolidated.

As no observable market data 15 available for these minority equity holdings, fair value 1s determined by reference to discounted future
cash flows, with moverents recorded in other comprehensive income. No far value movements have been recorded and there 1s no
matenal sensitivity 1o the assumptions used.

LEGOLAND LEGOLAND Big Bus

Malaysia Korea Tours Totat

£m fm £m £m

Balance at 27 December 2C15 8 3 - I
Additons - - n 32
Interest income recewvable - - | |
Maovements in fair value - N . -
Effects of movement in foreign exchange | - 4 5
Balance at 31 December 2016 9 3 37 49

LEGOLAND Malaysia

The Group has a minortty equrty nvestment in IDR Resorts Sdn Bhd. (IDR). IDR and tts subsicharies are deermed to be related parties
as together they own LEGOLAND Malaysia (see note 5 3)

LEGOLAND Korea
The Group has a minonty equity iInvestment in the consortium company developing LEGOLAND Korea.

Big Bus Tours Group Holdings Limited

In 2016 the Group invested $44 million (£32 milhon) in Big Bus Tours Group Holdings Limited, the leading globat owner-operator of
Hop On Hop OFf Ciiy Tours. The investment was substantially all in the form of loan notes. The transaction also provided Merlin with
a mincrity equity investment valued at £nil.

Investments in joint ventures

On 16 June 2016 the Group acquired the remaining 50% of the SEA LIFE Helsinki joint venture (2015 carrying value of £ni)
The consideration was £1 million, settled In cash and the fair value of the net assets acquired was £1 million, SEA LIFE Helsinks
was accounted for as 2 wholly owned subsidiary from 16 June 201 6.
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SECTION 5 OTHER NOTES (conunced)
53 weeks ended 31 December 2016 (52 weeks ended 26 December 2015}

5.2 Employee benefits
Accounting policies

Defined contribution pension schemes

In the case of defined contribution schemes, the Group pays fixed contributions Into a separate fund on behalf of the employee and has
no further obligations to them The risks and rewards associated with this type of scheme are assumed by the members rather than the
employer, Cbligations for contributions to defined contribution pension schemes are recognised as an expense In the income statement
as incurred.

Defined benefit pension schemes

A defined berefit scheme 15 a post-employment benefit scheme other than a defined contribution scheme. The Group's net ebligation
15 calculated for each scheme by estimating the amount of future benefit that employees have earned In return for their service in the
current and prior periods, That benefit 1s discounted to determine 1ts present value and offset by the far value of ary scheme assets.
The calculation 1s performed by a gqualfied actuary using the projected unit credit method. All actuarial gains and losses are recognised
in the period they occur directly in equity through other comprehensive income.,

Defined contribution pension schemes
The Group operates a number of defined contribution pension schemes and the total expense relating to those schemes in the current
year was £11 milhon (2015 £10 miiion).

Defined benefit pension schemes

The principal scheme that the Group operates 15 a closed scheme for certain former UK employees of The Tussauds Group, which was
acquired n 2007. The scheme entitles retired employees to receive an annual payment based on a percentage of final salary for each
year of service that the employee provided. The pension schemes have not directly invested in any of the Group's own financial
instruments or in properties or other assets used by the Group

The rost recent full actuanal valuation of the scheme was carried out as at | January 2013 As a resutt, the Group agreed to pay deficrt
reduction contributions of £455,500 per annum until 2018, together with an additional one-off payment of £350,000 which was paid in

2014. The 2016 valuation 15 currently being finalised. We do not anticipate any matenial increase in ongoing contributions as a resuft.

The Group expects £.1 millon in ongoing contributions te be paid to its defined benefit schemes in 2017, The weighted average
duration of the defined benefit obhigation at 31 December 2016 was 2| years (2015 20 years).

The assets and habilties of the schemes are.

2016 2015

£m im

Equites 22 19

Corporate bonds and cash 6 5

Property 4 4

Fair value of scheme assets 32 28
Present value of defined benefit obligations (43) (33)
Net pension liability (k1) (5)
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SECTION 5 OTHER NOTES (cnunved)
53 weeks ended 31 December 2016 (52 weeks ended 26 Decemnber 201 5)

5.2 Employee benefits (conunued)

Maovement in the net pension liability

Present value Present value of

of scheme  defined benefit Net pension

assets obligations liability

fm £m Em
At 28 December 2014 18 (33) (5)
Net interest | n -
Contnbutions by employer | - |
Benefits paid oy | -
Remeasurement loss {1 - )
At 26 December 2015 28 (33 5
Net interest | mn -
Contributions by employer | - |
Benefits pard (N b -
Remeasurement gain/(loss} 3 &) (6)
Effect of movement in foreign exchange - n ()]
At 3| December 2016 EY) {43) (n

The amount recognised in the income statement was £nif (2015 £nif). The amount recognised in the statement of other comprehensive
income was a loss of £6 milion (2015 loss of £1 rmiban}. This primarily resufts from changes in actuanal estimates in respect of
discount rates.

Actuarial assumptions
Principal actuanal assumptions {expressed as weighted averages) at the year end were

2016 2015
Discount rate 27% 3.9%
Future salary increases 3.7% 3.5%
Rate of price inflation 3.4% 3.2%

Assumptions regarding future mortality are based on published statistics and mortality tables. For the Tussauds Group scheme the
actuarial table used 1s 52PxA The mortality assumption adopted predicts that a current 65 year old male would have a life
expectancy to age 87 and a female would have a Iife expectancy to age 89.
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SECTION 5 OTHER NOTES (ccronued)
53 weeks ended 3! December 2016 (52 weeks ended 26 December 2015)

5.3 Related party transactions

Identity of related parties
The Group has related party retationships with a major shareholder, key management personnel, joint ventures and IDR Resorts Sdn.
Bhdl All dealings with related parties are conducted on an arm’s length basis.

Transactions with shareholders
During the year the Group entered into transactions with a major shareholder, KIRKBI Irvest A/S, and the LEGO Group, a related party
of KIRKBI Invest A/S,

Transactions entered into, including the purchase and sale of goods, payment of fees and royalties, and trading balances outstanding
at 31 December 2016 and 26 December 2015, were 23 follows'

Goods and services

Amounts owed Amounts owed
by related Purchases to related
Sales party and royalties party
£m £m im £m

2016
KIRKBI Invest A/S | 2 I 5
LEGO Group | | 51 3
2 3 62 8

2015
KIRKEI Invest A/S - - 9 2
LEGO Group | I 47 2
| | 56 4

Transactions with key management personnel
Key management of the Group, being the Executive and Non-executive Directors of the Board, the members of the Executive
Committee and ther immediate relatves control + 2% (2015 1 7%) of the voting shares of the Company,

The details of the remuneration, Long Term Incentive Plans, shareholdings, share options and pension entitlements of indmvidual Directors
are incduded in the Directors’ Remuneration Report on pages 82 to 103. The remuneration of key management 15 disclosed in note 2.1.

Transactions with other related parties

As part of the agreement for the development and operation of LEGOLAND Malaysia, the Group has subscribed for share capital in
IDR Resorts Sdn. Bhd. (IDR) which tegether with its subsiciaries owns the park (see note 5.1). On this basis, IDR and its subsidiaries
are deemed 10 be related parties.

Transactions entered into, ncluding the purchase and sale of gonds, payment of fees and trading balances outstanding at 31 December
2016 and 26 December 2015, are as follows:

2016 2015

£m £m

Sales to related party 6 5
Amounts owed by related party 2 3
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SECTION 5 OTHER NOTES (continued)
53 weeks ended 3! December 2016 (52 weeks ended 26 December 2015}

5.4 Contingent liabilities
The Group has no material contingent liabilities.

At 26 December 2015 the Group disclosed a contingent hability relating to the acadent at Alton Towers Resort on "The Sriler’ nde,
This was settled in 2016,

5.5 New standards and interpretations

The following standards and interpretations, 1ssued by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) or the International
Financial Reporting Interpretations Committee, have been adopted by the Group with no significant impact on its conselidated
financial staterments.

+ IFRS Il Joint arrangements' - accounting for acquisitions of interests in joint operations.

+ |AS 156 Property, plant and equipment and IAS 38 Intangtble assets’ - clarification of acceptable methods of depreciation
and amortisation.

+ 1AS 27 Separate financial statements’ - equity method.

» IFRS 5 ‘Nor-current assets held for sale and discomtinued operations' - changes in method for disposal.

= IFRS 7 'Financial Instruments Disclosures’ - continuing involvement for servicing contracts.

* IAS |9 Employee Benefits - discount rate in a regional market sharing the same currency - e.g. the Eurozone.

= IAS | ‘Presentation of financial statements’ - disclosure intiative

EU endorsed IFRS and imterpretations with effective dates after 31 December 2016 relevant to the Group will be implemented in
the financial year when the standards become effective.

The IASB has ssued the following standards, amendments to standards and interpretations that will be effective for the Group as from
| January 2017. The Group does not expect any significant impact on s consolidated financial statements from these amendments,

» IAS 7 ‘Statement of cash flows' - disclosure intiative,
= IAS 12 ‘Income taxes’ - recognition of deferred tax assets for unrealised losses

During 2014 the IASB 1ssued IFRS |5 ‘Revenue from contracts with customers’, which will becomne effective from the 2018 accounting
period. Therefore the new standard will be relevant to the 2017 comparative period in that year's financial statements, The Group's
revenue 15 generated by high volumes of low value cash transactions. These are predominantly in respect of visits to the Group’s
attractions, stays In the Group's accommadation, or spend on retal sales or food and beverage while at an attraction. They require
very Iimted judgement on the timing or pattern of revenue recognition compared to other industry sectors. The Group considers
that the implementation of this new standard will not have any significant impact on the consolidated financial staterents.

In January 2016 the IASB ssued IFRS 16 ‘Leases', which 15 expected to becorme effective from the 2019 accounting period and will
result In significant changes to the presentation of the Group's consofidated financial statements, Under IAS 17 the Group has lease
commitments of £1,737 million (see note 4.4). Under IFRS 16 the Group's lease commitments will be accounted for 'on balance sheet’.
Typically IFRS 16 will result in an increase in reported EBITDA as rentals will predominantly be accounted for as finance costs rather
than as an operating expense. A combination of the ‘front loading’ impact of those finance costs together with depreciation charged
on the right of use asset also may resaft In an inbal reduction in reported earmings albert this would even out over the lease term.

We are currently performing impact assessments and financial modelling on the potential impact of the new standard, Substantially all

of the Group’s lease costs and ongoing commitments are in respect of leases for attractions and support functions so our intial focus
has therefore been on significant sites within the portfolio. We will expand this review across the estate during 2017.
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SECTION 5 OTHER NOTES {continued)
53 weeks ended 31 December 2016 (52 weeks ended 24 Decernber 2015)

5.5 New standards and interpretations (contnued)

IFRS 9 ‘Financial instruments’ is effective for annual periods beginning on or after { January 2018, with early adoptron permitted.

The Group currently plans to apply IFRS 9 intially on | January 2018 The actual impact of adopting IFRS 9 on the Group’s consolidated
financial staternents in 2018 15 not known and cannot be rehably estimated because it will be dependent on the financial Instruments
that the Group holds and econemic conditions at that time as well as accounting elections and judgements that it will make in the
future. The new standard may require the Group to revise its accounting processes and internal controls related to reporting financial
instruments, Based on 1ts preliminary assessment, the Group's accounting for investments may be altered, but 1s not expected to

be material.

5.6 Ultimate parent company information

The largest group in which the results of the Company are cansolidated is that headed by Merhin Entertanments plc, incorporated in
the United Kingdom. No ather group financial statements include the results of the Company.

5.7 Subsidiary and joint venture undertakings

The Group has the following investments in subsidiaries and joint ventures

Country of Class of Ownership Ownership
Subsidiary undertaking incorporation share held 2016 2015
AAE Unit Trust Australia " - 100.0% 100.0%
AQDEV Pry Limited Australa ® Ordinary 100.0% 100 0%
Aquia Pty Ltd Austraha Ordinary 100.0% 100.0%
Australian Alpine Enterprises Holdings Pty Ltd Austraha @ Ordinary 100.0% 100 0%
Australian Alpine Enterprises Pty Ltd Austraha Ordinary 100.0% 100.0%
Australian Alpine Reservation Centre Pey Ltd Australia " Ordinary 100.0% 100.0%
Falls Creek Ski Lefts Pry Ltd Awustrala Ordinary 100.0% 100 0%
Gebi Falls Creek Pty Ltd Austraha @ Ordinary 57.0% 57.0%
Hotham Hesghts Developments Ltd Awustralia @ Ordinary 65.0% 65.0%
Mawarra Tree Topps Pty Ltd Austraha " Ordinary 100.0% 100.0%
LEGOLAND Discovery Centre Melbourne Pry Lud Australia @ Ordinary 100.0% 100.0%
Limlimbu Ski Flats Ltd Australia @ Ordinary 64.0% 64.0%
Living and Lessure Austraha Limited Austraha Ordinary 100.0% 100.0%
Living and Lessure Austraha Trust Austraha " - 100.0% 100.0%
Living and Leisure Austraha Management Limited Austraha Ordinary 100.0% 100.0%
Living and Leisure Finance Trust Austraha - 100,0% 100.0%
LLA Aquariums Pry Limited Austraha Ordinary 100.0% 100.0%
Melbourne Underwater World Pty Ltd Australia Ordinary 100.0% 100.0%
Melbourne Underwater World Trust Australia - 100.0% 100.0%
ME LoanCeo (Australia) Pty Limited Austraha @ Ordinary 100.0% 100.0%
Merfin Entertainments (Australiz) Pty Led Austraha Ordinary 100.0% 100.0%
MHSC DP Pty Ltd Austraha " Ordinary 100.0% 100.0%
MHSC Hotels Pty Ltd Australia Ordinary 100.0% 100.0%
MHSC Properues Py Lud Australia Ordinary 100.0% 100 0%
MHSC Transportation Services Py Lrd Austraha Ordinary 160 0% 100 0%
Mount Hotham Management and Reservauon Pty Led Austraha Ordinary 100 0% 100 0%
Mount Hotham Skang Company Pty Ltd Austraha Ordinary 100 0% 100 0%
MUW Holdings Pty Lrd Australia " Ordinary 100 0% 100 0%
Northbank Development Trust Austrahia Y - 100 0% 100 0%
Northbank Place (Vic) Pry Ltd Austraha Crdinary 50 0% 50.0%
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SECTION 5 OTHER NOTES (continued)

53 weeks ended 31 Decemnber 2016 (52 weeks ended 26 December 201 5)

5.7 Subsidiary and joint venture undertakings (contnued)

Country of Class of Ownership Ownership
Subsidiary undertaking incorporation share held 2018 2015
Oceans Austraha Pty Ltd Austraha Ordinary 100.0% 100.0%
COceams Australia Unit Trust Austraha - 100.0% 100.0%
Oceams Developments Pty Ltd Austraha Ordinary 100.0% 100.0%
Oceanis Foundauon Pry Ltd Austraha 1 Ordinary 100.0% 100.0%
Oceanis Holdings Limited Austraha ! Ordinary 100.0% 100.0%
Oceams Korea Unit Trust Austraha @ - 100.0% 100.0%
Oceanis NB Pry Lud Austraha Ordinary 100.0% 100.0%
Oceanis Northbank Trust Austraha - 100.0% 100.0%
Oceams Unit Trust Austraha - 100.0% 100.0%
Parkehorn Properties Pty Ltd Austraha Ordinary - 100.0%
Sydney Actractions Group Pty Ltd Austraha @ Ordinary 100.0% 100.0%
Sydney Tower Observatory Pty Limited Austraha @ Ordinary 100.0% 100.0%
Sydney Wildlfe World Pty Limited Austraha Ordinary 100.0% 100.0%
The Otway Fly Py Ltd Austraha Ordinary 100.0% 100.0%
The Otway Fly Uit Trust Austraha - 100.0% 100.0%
The Sydney Aquarum Company Pry Limited Australia @ Ordinary 100.0% 100 0%
Underwater World Sunshine Coast Pty Ltd Austraha i Ordinary 100.0% 100 0%
US Fly Trust Austraha " - 100.0% 100 0%
White Crystal (Mount Hotham) Pry Ltd Australa ¥ Ordinary 82 6% 82.6%
Madame Tussauds Austria GmbH Austria ¢ Ordinary 100 0% 100.0%
MT Austria Holdings GmbH Austria ¥ Ordinary 100 0% 100 0%
SEA LIFE Centre Belgium N.V. Belgium @ Ordinary 100 0% 100.0%
Christchurch Investment Company Limited Br|t|shl:i':;‘g£ @ Ordinary 100 0% 100.0%
Merln Entertainments (Canada) Inc Canada ® Ordinary 100 0% 100.0%
Madame Tussauds Exhibinon (Beijing) Company Lirited China ('@ Ordinary 100 0% 100.0%
Madame Tussauds Exhibiion {Shangha) Company Limited China " Ordinary 100.0% 100.0%
Madame Tussauds Exhibiuon {(Wuhan) Company Limited China Ordinary 100.0% 100.0%
Merlin Entertainments Hong Kong Limited China ® Ordinary 100.0% 100.0%
Mer{in Exhibitton {Chongqing} Company Limited China 4 Ordinary 100.0% 100.0%
Merlin Indoor Children's Playground (Shanghai} Company Limited China ' Ordinary 100.0% 100.0%
Shanghar Chang Feng Oceanworld Co. Ltd China (¢ Ordinary 100.0% 100.0%
LEGOLAND ApS Denmark Ordinary 100.0% 100 0%
Merhin Entertainments Group Denmark Holdings ApS Denmark 7 Ordinary 100.0% 100 0%
SEA LIFE Helsinks Oy ¥ Finland ©'® Ordinary 100.0% 50.0%
SEA LIFE France SARL France % Ordinary 100 0% 100 0%
Dungeon Deutschland GmbiH Germany “% Ordinary 100 0% 100.0%
Heide-Park Soltau GmbH Germany 29 Ordinary 100 0% 100.0%
LEGOLAND Deutschland Freizertpark GmbH Germany @2 Ordinary 100.0% 100.0%
LEGOLAND Deutschland GmbH Germany ¥ Ordinary 100.0% 100.0%
LEGOLAND Discovery Centre Deutschland GmbH Germany 2% Ordinary 100.0% 100.0%
LEGOLAND Holidays Deutschland GmbH Germany ¥ Ordinary 100.0% 100.0%
LLD Share Beteiligungs GmbH Germany % Crdinary 100.0% 100 0%
LLD Share GmbH & Co.KG Germany @2 Ordinary 100.0% 100 0%
Madame Tussauds Deutschland GmbH Germany % Ordinary 100.0% 100.0%
Merlin Entertamments Group Deutschland GmbH Germany % Ordinary 100.0% 100.0%
SEA LIFE Deutschland GmbH Germany % Ordinary 100 0% 100.0%
SEA LIFE Konstanz GmbH Germany % Ordinary 100.0% 100.0%
Tussauds Deutschland GmbH Germany @ Ordinary 100 0% 100.0%
Tussauds Heide Metropole GmbH Germany @ Ordinary 100 0% 100.0%
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SECTION 5 OTHER NOTES (conunueq)

5.7 Subsidiary and joint venture undertakings (conunued)

53 weeks ended 31 December 2016 (52 weeks ended 26 December 2015)

Country of Class of Ownership Ownership
Subsidiary undertaking incorporation share held 2016 2015
Merlin Entertainments India Private Limited India Ordimary 100.0% 100 0%
Merlin Entertainments Ireland | Limited Ireland ¢ Ordinary 100.0% 100 0%
Merlin Entertamments Ireland 2 Limited Ireland ¢ Ordinary 100.0% 100.0%
SEA LIFE Centre Bray Limited Ireland 27 Ordinary 100.0% 100.0%
Gardaland Srl Italy @® Ordinary 99.9% 99.9%
Incoming Gardalang §.r.l, Italy 129 Ordinary 99.9% 99.9%
Merlin Attractions ltaly S.rl. Italy ©® Ordinary 100.0% 100.0%
Merlin Entertamments Group ltaly S.rl. [ealy @ Ordinary 100.0% 100.0%
Merlin Water Parks S.rl Iealy @& Ordinary 100.0% 100.0%
Ronch: del Garda §.p.A lealy Ordinary @ 49.4% i 49.4%
Ronchi S.p A. lealy 2% Ordinary 90.4% 90.4%
LEGOLAND Japan Lirited Japan &P Ordinary 100.0% 100.0%
Merlin Entertanments (Japan} Limited Japan &% Ordinary 100.0% 100.0%
Merlin Entertainments Group Luxembourg 3 5.4 vl Luxembourg #¥ Ordinary 100.0% 100.0%
Merlin Lux Finco t S rl. Luxembourg Ordinary 100.0% 100.0%
Merlin Lux Finco 2 §.3ri. Luxembourg & Ordinary 100.0% 100.0%
LEGOLAND Malaysia Hotel Sdn, Bhd Malaysia &4 Ordinary 100.0% 100.0%
Merlin Entertanments Group (Malaysia) Sdn. Bhd Malaysa Ordinary 100.0% 100.0%
Merlin Entertainments Studios {Malaysia) Sdn. Bhd Malaysia ¢4 Ordwnary 100.0% 100.0%
Amsterdam Dungeon BV, Netherlands ¢ Ordinary 100 0% 100.0%
Madame Tussauds Amsterdam B.Y. Netherlands @ Ordinary 100.0% 100 0%
Merlin Entertamments Holdings Nederland B.V. Netherlands @7 Ordinary 100 0% 100.0%
SEA LIFE Centre Scheveningen B V. Netherlands % Ordinary 60.0% 60.0%
Auckland Aquarium Limited New Zealand % Ordinary 100.0% 100 0%
Merhin Entertainments (New Zealand) Limited New Zealand #% Ordimary 100 0% 100.0%
Meriin Entertainments (SEA LIFE PORTO) Unipessoal Lda Portugal Ordinary 100.0% 100 0%
Merlin Entertainments Singapore Pre. Ltd Singapore Ordinary 100.0% 100.0%
Busan Aquaria Twenty One Co. Ltd South Korea “2 Ordinary 100 0% 100.0%
LEGOLAND Korea LLC South Korea *3 Ordinary 100.0% 100.0%
Merhin Entertainments Korea Company Limited South Korea % Crdinary 100.0% 100.0%
SLCS SEA LIFE Centre Spain S.A. Span 4 Ordinary 100.0% 100.0%
Merlin Entertanments (Thadand} Limited Thailand %% Ordinary 100.0% 100.0%
Siam Ocean World Bangkok Co Ltd Thaland Ordinary 100.0% 100.0%
Istanbul Sualti Dunyas: Turizm Ticaret A.S Turkey “9 Ordinary 100.0% 100.0%
Madame Tussauds Museum LLC UAE ¢8 - < 48,0% -
Merlin Holdings Limited UAE & Ordinary 0% -
Alton Towers Limited UK &9 Ordinary 100 0% 100 0%
Alton Towers Resart Operations Limited UK @ Ordinary 100.0% 100 0%
Chareoal CLG | Limuted (company hmited by guarantee) UK 49 - 100.0% 100 0%
Charcoal CLG 2 Limited (company hmuted by guarantee} UK % - 100 0% 100.0%
Charcoal Holdco Limited UK “2 Ordinary 100 0% 100.0%
Charcoal Midco | Limited UK “9 Ordinary 100.0% 100.0%
Charcoal Newco | Limited UK 3 Ordinary 100.0% 100.0%
Charcoal Newco |a Limited UK 49 Ordinary 100.0% 100.0%
Chessington Hotel Limited UK @9 Ordinary 100.0% 100.0%
Chessington World of Adventures Limited UK & Ordinary 100.0% 100.0%
Chessington World of Adventures Operations Limited UK 49 Ordinary 100.0% 100.0%
Chessington Zoo Limited UK 9 Crdinary 100.0% 100 0%
CWA PropCo Limiged UK @9 Ordinary 100.0% 100 0%
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SECTION 5 OTHER NOTES (conunued)

53 weeks ended 31 December 2016 (52 weeks ended 26 Decernber 201 5)

5.7 Subsidiary and joint venture undertakings (continued)

Country of Class of Ownership Ownership
Subsidiary undertaking incorporation share held 2016 2015
Iconic Images International Limited UK &% QOrdinary 100.0% 100.0%
KZ China Holdco Limited UK #9 Ordinary - 100.0%
KZ Mexico Hotdco Limited ' UK 49 Ordinary - 100.0%
LEGOLAND US Holdings Limited UK 4% Ordinary 100.0% 100.0%
LEGOLAND Windsor Park Limited UK #2 Ordinary 100.0% 100.0%
London Aquarium (South Bank) Limited UK #» Ordinary 100.0% 100.0%
London Dungeon Limited UK #» Ordinary 100.0% 100.0%
London Eye Holdings Limited UK 4% Ordinary 100.0% 100.0%
London Eye Management Services Limited UK 1% Ordinary 100.0% 100.0%
Madame Tussaud’s Limited UK o7 Ordinary 100.0% 100.0%
Madame Tussauds Touring Exhibinon Limited UK Ordinary 100.0% 100.0%
M.E.G H. Limited U o Ordinary - 100.0%
Merhn Attractions Management Limited UK 4 Ordinary 100.0% 100.0%
Merhn Artractions Operatuons Limited UK Ordinary 100.0% 100.0%
Merhn Entertainment Limited UK U9 Ordinary 100.0% 100.0%
Merlin Entertainments (Asia Pacific} Limited UK = Ordinary 100.0% 100 0%
Merlin Entertainments (Blackpool} Limited UK Ordinary 100.0% 100.0%
Merlin Entertamments (Dungeons) Lirmited UK 9 Ordinary 100.0% 100.0%
Merlin Entertainments (NBD) Limited UK 9 Ordinary 100.0% 100.0%
Merhn Entertainments (SEA LIFE) Limited UK “% Ordinary 100.0% 100.0%
Merhn Entertainments Crown (UK} Limited UK 42 Ordinary 100.0% 100.0%
Merhin Entertainments Developments Limited UK @ Ordmary 100.0% 100.0%
Merlin Entertainments Finance Limited ¥ UK @3 Ordinary - 100.0%
Merlin Entertainments Group Employee Benefit Trustees Limited UK “ Ordinary 100.0% 100.0%
Merlin Entertainments Group Holdings Limited UK &% Ordinary 100.0% 100.0%
Merlin Entertainments Group International Limited ¥ UK 9 Ordinary - 100.0%
Merhn Entertamments Group Limited UK @ Ordinary 100.0% 100.0%
Merhin Entertainments Group Cperatiens Limited UK 49 Ordinary 100.0% 100.0%
Merlin’s Magic Wand Trustees Limited UK o Ordinary 100.0% 100.0%
Merhn UK Finco | Limited UK & Ordinary 100.0% 100.0%
Merhin UK Finco 2 Limited UK, “% Ordinary 100.0% 100.0%
Merlin US Holdings Limited UK @ Ordmary 100.0% 100.0%
SEA LIFE Centre {Blackpool) Limited UK 49 Ordinary 100.0% 100.0%
SEA LIFE Centres Limited (fermerly Tussauds Hotels Umited) UK #» Ordinary 100.0% 100.0%
SEA LIFE Trustees Lamited UK 49 Ordinary 100.0% 100.0%
The London Planetarium Company Limited UK #2 Ordinary 100.0% 100.0%
The Millennium Wheel Company Limited UK &9 Ordinary 100.0% 100.0%
The Seal Sanctuary Limiced UK #9 Ordinary 100.0% 100 0%
The Tussauds Group Limited UK #% Ordinary 100 0% 100 0%
Thorpe Park Operations Limited UK “2 Ordinary 100 0% 100.0%
Tussauds Attractions Limited UK @% Ordmnary 100.0% 100 0%
Tussauds Group (UK) Pension Plan Trustee Limited UK #% Ordmnary 100.0% 100 0%
Tussauds Holdings Limited UK “® Ordmary - 100.0%
Tussauds Limited UK #% Ordmnary 100 0% 100 0%
Tussauds Theme Parks Limited '¢) UK #® Ordwary - 100 0%
Warwick Castle Lirited UK t9 Ordnary 100 0% 100.0%
Wizard AcquisinonCo Limited UK = Ordinary - 100.0%
Wizard BondCo Limited UK % Ordinary - 100.0%
Wizard EquityCo Limited ! UK Ordinary - 100.0%
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SECTION 5 OTHER NOTES (conrued)
53 weeks ended 31 December 2016 (52 weeks ended 26 December 2015)

5.7 Subsidiary and joint venture undertakings (contnued)

Country of Class of Ownership Ownership
Subsidiary undertaking incorporation share held 2016 20615
Wizard NewCo Limited UK 4% Ordinary - 100.0%
Lake George Fly LLC USA 6% - 100.0% 100.0%
LEGOLAND Calforria LLC USA &1 - 100.0% 100.0%
LEGOLAND Duscovery Center Arizona LLC LISA 61 - 100.0% 100.0%
LEGOLAND Discovery Center Boston LLC USA @1 - 100.0% 100.0%
LEGOLAND Discovery Centre (Dallas) LLC USA &I - 100.0% 100.0%
LEGOLAND Discovery Centre (Meadowlands) LLC USA &t - 100.0% 100.0%
LEGOLAND Discovery Center Michigan LLC USA &I - 100.0% 100.0%
LEGOLAND Discovery Center Philadelphia LLC USA €1 - 100.0% 100.0%
LEGOLAND Discovery Centre US LLC USA &1 - 100.0% 160.0%
Madame Tussauds Hollywood LLC USA €0 - 100.0% 100.0%
Madame Tussaud LasVegas LLC USA &b - 100.0% 100.0%
Madame Tussauds Nashwville LLC USA £ - 100.0% -
Madame Tussaud's New York LLC LSA &1 - 100.0% 100.0%
Madame Tussauds Orlando LLC USA 51 - 100.0% 100.0%
Madame Tussauds San Franasco LLC USA &1 - 100.0% 106 0%
Madame Tussauds ¥Washington LLC UsSA & - 100.0% 100 0%
Merlin Entertainments Crown {US) Inc USA &1 Ordinary 100.0% 100.0%
Merlin Entertainments Group Florida LLC USA, 51 - 100 0% 100 0%
Merlin Entertainments Greup US Holdings Inc LISA &1 Ordinary 100 0% 100 0%
Merlin Entertainments Group US LLC USA 61 - 100.0% 100 0%
Merlin Entertainments Group VWheel LLC USA ©0 - 100 0% 100 0%
Merhn Entertainments North America LLC USA 1 - 100 0% 100.0%
Merlin Entertainments Short Breaks LLC USA 61 - 100.0% -
Merlin Entertainments US NewCo LLC USA &0 - 100 0% 100.0%
San Francisco Dungeon LLC USA &Y - 100 0% 100.0%
SEA LIFE Charlotte LLC LISA &1 - 100.0% 100.0%
SEA LIFE Meadowlands LLC USA &Y - 100.0% 100.0%
SEA LIFE Michigan LLC USA 61 - 100.0% 100.0%
SEA LIFE Minnesota LLC UsaA &Y - 100.0% 100.0%
SEA LIFE Orlando LLC USA &0 - 100.0% 100.0%
SEA LIFE US LLC USA &9 - 100.0% 100.0%
The Tussauds Group LLC USA &1 - 100.0% 100 0%
Joint venture
Pirate Adventure Golf Limited UK 0% Ordmary 50 0% 50 0%

# Merhn Entertanments plc has control over this entity via control of the immediate parent entity and the control that the immediate parent
entity has over the subsichary entity

® Merlin Entertamments Group Luxembourg 3 $a rl 1s held by the Company All other subsidiaries are held by intermediate subsicharies.

9 Merlin Entertainments ple has 100% of the benefical ownership of these entities,

@ Company dissolved in 2016

e

Company disposed of n 2016,
" The Group acquired the remaining 50% of the SEA LIFE Helsinki joint venture in 2016
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SECTION 5 OTHER NOTES (continued)
53 weeks ended 31 December 2016 (52 weeks ended 26 Decemmber 2015}

5.7 Subsidiary and joint venture undertakings (contnued)
Registered offices

" Level 11,50 Queen Strect, Melbourne, VIC, 3000, Australa

T Level 16,201 Elizabeth Street, Sydney, NSW. 2000, Australia

" Jlreland Street BrightVIC, 3741, Australia

* Falls Creek Road, 3499 Falls Creek, Victoria, Austraha

* Doncaster Road 861, 3109 Melbourne - Doncaster East. Victona, Australia

¥ Riesenradplatz 5-6, 1020 Wien, Vienna, Austria

' Koning Albert | Laan | 16,8370, Blankenberge, Belgium

% PQ.Box 3340, Road Town, Tortola, British Virgin slands

% Suite 5300 Commerce Court West, |99 Bay Street, Teronto, ON, M5L 182, Canada

1% No.4,6,8 10,12, 14, 16, 18 Qranmen Avenue, Dongcheng District, Beyying, China

e IOV New World Bulding, No 2-68 Naming X1 Road, Shangha 200003, China

12 21, Han Street, Wuchang Distrect, {Shops 40/41/42) Building 5, Lot ]2, Wuhan, China

7 Shop Pi0I, The Peak Tower, The Peak, Hong Kong

44411, Fu 9, No 133, Nanpin Road, Nan'an District, Chongging, China

1 12-25,2F 3F Parkude Plaza, Putuo District, Shanghai, China

1189, Dadhue Road, Pu Tuo District, Shanghar, 200062, China

T Aastvey 10, 7190 Billund, Denmark

" Toltie 10, Helsinki 00510, Finland

" Centre Commercial Val d'Europe. Espace 502, 14 cours du Danube Serris, 7711 MARNE LAVALLEE, France
0 Cremon i 1, 20457 Hamburg, Germany

<" Heidenhof |, 29614 Soltau, Germany

' Legoland Allee, 89312, Gunzburg, Germany

Prinzregentenstrasse |8, 80538 Munich, Germany

=4 Klein Vehedig, Hafenstrasse 9, 78462 Konstanz, Germany

1 44 Regal Bulding, Connaught Place, New Delti, Central Delni DL, 110001, Indiz

120 gth Floor, 2 Grand Canal Square, Dublin 2, Ireland

12 First Floor, Fitzwitton House, Witton Place, Dubhn 2, Ireland

# - Via Derna 4, Castelnuove del Garda, 37014, Verona, ltaly

N ViaVivaldi n7, Castelnuovo del Garda Verona, 3701 4. Verona, ftaly

0 Loc Ronchi, Castel del Garda Verona, 37014, Verona, haly

22241 Kimpoufutou Minate-ku, Nagoya-shi, Japan

3 sland Mall, Decks Tokyo Beach, 1-6-1 Daiba, Minato-ku. Tokyo, Japan

H o Polars-Vertige Bullding, 2-4 rue Eugene Rupprt, L-2453, Luxembourg

34 Suite 2-4, Level| 2, Tower Block, Menera Milenium, Jalan Damanlela, Pusat Bandar Damansara, 52490 Kuala Lumpur, Mataysia
1 Fred. Roeskestraat 123, 1076 EE Amsterdam, Netherlands

3¢ Dam 20 GEBOUW P&C, 1012 NP Amsterdam, Netherlands

7 Croeselaan |8, Ltrecht, Netherlands

U8 Rekin 78, 1012 KW Amsterdam, Netherlands

¥ tevel i2,55 Shortland Street, Auckland 1010, New Zealand

- Averida Dra Boawista 3265, 7th Floor 4100 - 137 Porto, Portugal

410, Chang Business Park Central 2, #05-01, HansaPont@CBR 486030, Singapore

“0 1411-4, Jung |-dong, Haenudee-Gu, Busan, Republic of Korea

3 Yoseon-dong, 8F Maoorim Bulding, 16 Joongang-ro, Chuncheon-si, Gangwon-do, Republic of Korea
" Puerto Manna, Benalmadena-Costa, 29630 Benalmadena, Malaga. Spain

“5 989 Sam Discovery Certer 6th, 6Ath, 7th and 8th Floors, Rama | Road, Kwaeng Pathumwan, Khet Pathumwan, Bangkok 10330, Thaland
1 B1-B2 Floor Siam Paragon, 99| Rama | Road, Khweng Patumwan, Bangkok 10330, Thaland
U0 Kocatepe Mah, Pasa Cad, Forum Istanbul AVM No 5/5, Bayrampasa, Turkey

8 Office 1601, 48 Bury Gate, Burp Khalifa, Dubar, United Arab Ermirates

@3 Market Close, Poole, Dorset, BHIS NG, United Kingdom

S0 80 State Street, Albany, New York 2207-2543, United States

e 1209 Orange Street, Wilmington, New Castle County, Delaware, 19801, Urited States

52 No 7, Jalan LEGOLAND, Bandar Medini Iskandar Malaysia, 79250 Iskandar Puten, johor, Mataysia
¥4 Emaar Sauare, Building 3, Level 5, PO Box 37172, Dubar, United Arab Ermirates
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MERLIN ENTERTAINMENTS PLC COMPANY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Cormpany Staternent of Finanaal Posttion at 31 December 2016 (2015 26 December 2015)

2016 2015
Note £m £m
Non-current assets
Investments m 3,126 3,115
Other recevables v 1,214 1,062
4,340 4,177
Current assets
Other receivables v 4 31
4 31
Total assets 4,344 4,208
Current liabilities
Interest-bearing loans and borrowings Vi 5 4
Other payabies ¥ 2 9l
7 95
Neon-current liabilities
Interest-bearing loans and borrowings vi 1,147 1,003
Total liabilities 1,154 1,098
Net assets 3,190 3,110
Issued capital and reserves attributable to owners of the Company Vil 3.190 3,110
Total equity 3,190 3,110

The notes on pages 165 to 169 form part of these financial statements,

The parent Cormpany financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors on | March 2017 and were signed on its behalf by.

Nick Varney
Chief Executive Officer

Anne-Francoise Nesmes
Chief Financial Officer
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MERLIN ENTERTAINMENTS PLC COMPANY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Company Statement of Changes in Equity at 31 December 2016 (2015 26 December 201 5)

Share Share Retained Total
capital premium earmngs equity
Note £m £m £m £m
At 28 December 2014 10 - 3,157 3,167
Profit for the year - - 3 3
Total comprehensive income for the year - - 3 3
Equity dividends - - (64} {64)
Share ncentive schemes.
Mevement in reserves for lil - - 4 4
employee share schemes
At 26 December 2015 10 - 3,100 3,110
Profit for the year - - 134 134
Total comprehensive income for the year - - 134 134
Shares 1ssued - 2 - 2
Equity diwidends - - (67} (67)
Share incentive schemes
Movement in reserves for n - - Il I
employee share schemes
At 3| December 2016 vii 10 2 3,178 3,190
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NOTES TO MERLIN ENTERTAINMENTS PLC COMPANY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

i Accounting policies

These financial statements were prepared n accordance with Financial Reporting Standard 101 Reduced Drsclosure Framewcerk
{(FRS 101). The amendments to FRS 101 (2015/16 Cycle) ssued in July 2016 have been apphed.

In preparing these financial statements, the Company applies the recognmion, measurement and disclosure requirements of International
Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the EU (Adopted IFRSs), but makes amendments where necessary in order to comply
with Companies Act 2006 and has set out below where advaritage of the FRS 101 disclosure exemptions has been taken.

The consoldated financial statements of Merlin Entertainments plc are prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards and are avalable to the public and may be obtained from 3 Market Close, Pocle, Dorset, BHI5 FNQ. Cornpany financial
statements have been prepared and approved by the Directors in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards as
adopted by the EU (Adopted IFRSs),

In these financial statements, the Company has applied the exemptions available under FRS 101 in respect of the following disclosures:
« Cash flow statement and related notes,

« Disclosures in respect of transactions with wholly owned subsidiaries;

» Disclosures in respect of caprtal management,

» The effects of new but not yet effective IFRSs,

» Disclosures in respect of the compensation of key management personnel

As the consolidated financial statermerits of Merlin Entertainments ple nclude the equivalent disclosures, the Company has also taken the
exemptions under FRS 101 avalable in respect of the following disclosures

+ |IFRS 2 ‘Share-based payment’ in respect of group setiled share-based payments:

« Certan discdosures required by IFRS 13 "Farr value measurement’ and the disclosures required by IFRS 7 ‘Finanaial nstrument Disclosures”.

The accounting policies set out below have, unless atherwise stated, been applied consistently to all penods presented in these
financial staternents.

These financial staternents have been prepared for the 53 weeks ended 31 December 2016 (2015 52 weeks ended 26 December 201 5)

The Directors have taken advantage of the exemption available under s408 of the Companies Act 2006 and have not presented a profit
and loss account of the Company.

A summary of the Compary's significant accounting policies 1s set out below.

Investments in subsidiaries

Investments In subsidiaries are stated at cost, less prowision for impairment. The carrying amount of the Company’s investments in
subsidiaries 1s reviewed annually to determine whether there 1s any Indication of impairmenrt. If any such indicabon exists the investment's
recoverable amount 1s estimated. If the carrying value of the Investment exceeds the recoverable amount, the investment 1s considered
to be impaired and 15 written down to the recoverable amount. The impairment loss 1s recognised in the income statement,

Foreign currency

Foreign currency transactions are translated nto the functional currency using the exchange rates prevaling at the dates of the
transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from the translation at year
end exchange rates of monetary assets and habilities denominated in foreign currencies are recognised in the income staterment
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NOTES TO MERLIN ENTERTAINMENTS PLC COMPANY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(contnued)

i Accounting pOliCiES {contnued)

Taxation

Tax on the profit or loss for the year comprises current and deferred tax, Tax s recognised in the income statement unless it relates to
items recognised directly In equity, when 1t 1s recognised directly in equrty, or when it relates to items recognised in other comprehensive
ncome, when 1t 1s recognised through the staterment of comprehensive income.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the year, using tax rates substantively enacted at the end of the
reporting period. and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous periods.

Deferred tax 1s provided on certan temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and labilities for financial

reporting purposes and taxaton purposes respectively. The following temporary differences are not prowided for. the intial recognrtion
of goodwill the Inttial recognition of assets or habilities that affect nerther accounting nor taxable profit ether than in a business
combination, and differences relating to investments in subsidianies and joint ventures to the extent that they will probably not reverse
in the foreseeable future The amount of deferred tax provided is based on the expected manner of realisation or settlement of the
carrying amourtt of assets and habilities, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting period.

After considering forecast future profits, deferred tax assets are recognised where it 1s probable that future taxable profits will be
available against which those assets can be utilised

Share-based payments
The far value of equity-settled share-based payments 15 recogrused as an employee expense with a corresponding increase in equity.
The fair value 1s measured at grant date and charged as the employees become uncenditionally entitled to the rights

The Group’s equity-settled share plans are settled either by the 1ssue of shares by Merlin Entertanments plc or by the purchase of
shares in the market, The fair value of the share plans Is recognised as an expense over the expected vesting period net of deferred tax
with a corresponding entry to retaned eammgs, The far value of the share plans 15 determined at the date of grant. Non-rnarket based
vesting condmions (e, earnings per share and return on capital employed targets) are taken into account n esumating the number of
awards hkely to vest The estimate of the number of awards lkely to vest is reviewed at each accounting date up to the vesting date,

at which pomt the estimate 15 adjusted to reflect the actual awards ssued No adjustment 1s made after the vesting date even If the
awards are forfeited or are not exercised,

The Group operates cash-settled versions of the employee incentive schemes for employees in certain terrtories. The 1ssues and
resulting charges of these schemes are not matenal to the financial statements

Loans to group undertakings
Loans to group undertakings are recognised mtially at far value and subsequently at amortised cost using the effective interest rate
method, less provision for imparrment.

Classification of financial instruments issued by the Group
Financial instruments often consist of a combination of debt and equity and the Group has to decde how to attnbute values to each.
They are treated as equity only to the extent that they meet the following twe conditions:

() they include no contractual obiigations upon the Group to deliver cash or other financial assets or to exchange financial assets or
financial labilmes with another party under conditions that are potentially unfavourable 1o the Group; and

(1) where the instrument will or may be settled in the Group’s own equity instruments, it s erther a non-derivative that includes no
obligation to deliver a varable number of the Group's own equity Instruments or 15 a derivative that will be settled by the Group
exchanging a fixed amount of cash or other financial assets for a fixed number of its own equity Instruments.

To the extent that this defintion 15 not met, the proceeds of ssue are classified as a finanaal lability, and where such an instrument takes
the jegal form of the Company's own shares, the amounts presented in these financial statements for called up share caprtal and share

premium account exclude amounts n relation to those shares.

Finance payments associated with financial labilities are dealt with as part of finance costs, Finance payments assccated with finanaal
instruments that are classified in equity are dividends and are recorded directly in equity.
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NOTES TO MERLIN ENTERTAINMENTS PLC COMPANY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(continued)

i Accounting policies (conunued)

Interest-bearing loans and borrowings
These are initially recognised at the prnapal value of the loan concerned, less any related fees. These fees are then amortised through

the Income statement on an effective interest rate basis over the expected life of the loan (or over the contractual term where there
15 no clear indication that a shorter Ife is appropriate)

If the Group subseguently determines that the expected Iife has changed. the resufting adjustment to the effective interest rate
caleulation s recognised as a gain or loss on re-measurement and presented separately in the ncome statement.

Dividends

Dradends are recognised through equity on the earlier of therr approval by the Company's shareholders or therr payment.

ii Employees

The average number of employees of the Company during the year was nine (2015 seven). All employees were Directors of the Company.
The ermployment costs of the Direciors of the Company have been borne by Merlin Entertanments Group Limrted for their services

to the Group as a whole. The costs related to these Directors are included withir the Directors' Rernuneration Report on pages 82
te 103 Ore Director accrued benefits under defined contnbution schemes during the year (2015 one)

iii Investment in subsidiary undertaking

Shares in
subsidiary
undertaking
£m

Cost and carrying value
At 28 December 2014 3101
Capital contributions to subsidiaries 4
At 26 December 2015 3,115
Caprtal contributions to subsidiaries N
At 3| December 2016 3,126

Where subsiciary undertakings iIncur charges for share-based payments in respect of share options and awards granted by the Company, 2
capital contribution in the same amounit 1s recegnised as an investment in subsidiary undertakings with a corresponding credrt to
shareholders’ equity.

The subsidiary undertaking at the year end 1s as follows.

Country of Description
Company Activicy incorporation Shareholding  of shares held
Merlin Entertanments Group Luxembourg 3 5.3 rl. Holding company Luxembourg 100.0% Ordinary

A full list of Group companies 1s Included in note 5.7 of the consolidated financial statements on page 157,
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NOTES TO MERLIN ENTERTAINMENTS PLC COMPANY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

{contnued)

iv Other receivables

Current assets Non-current assets
2016 2015 2016 2015
£m £m £m £m
Amounts owed by group undertakings 4 3l 1,214 1,062

Amounts owed by group undertakings comprise funds loaned by the Company te fellow group undertakings. The non-currerit joans have
maturities of 2020 and 2022 and carry interest rates that are based on the costs of serviang the external bank faciities and loan notes.

v Other payables

2016 2015
£m im
Amounts owed to group undertakings | 90
Accruals | |
2 9l
vi Borrowings
2016 2015
Em £m
Non-current
Floaung rate bank faciliues due 2020 723 640
£300 millhon floating rate revolving credit faciity due 2020 - -
€500 mullion fixed rate notes due 2022 424 363
1,147 1,003
Current
interest payable 5 4
{152 1,607

The facilities are.

+ Bank faclives comprising £250 muliicn, $540 million and €50 million floating rate term debt to mature in March 2020, The refevant
floating interest rates are LIBOR, the USD benchmark rate and EURIBOR, which were 0.37%, 0.99% and (0.32)% respectively at
31 December 2016. The margin on the bank facilities 15 dependent on the Group's adjusted leverage ratio and at 31 December
2016 was 2.0%,

« A £300 million mutt-currency revolving credit facility The margin on this facility 1s also dependent on the Group's adjusted leverage
ratio and at 31 Decemnber 2016 was at a margin of | 75% over the same floating interest rates when drawn,

= Abond in the form of €500 millon seven year notes with a coupon rate of 2.75% to mature in March 2022,

The fees related to the facilities are being amortised to the maturty of the debt as the debt is currently expected to be held for its full
term The borrowings under the bank facilities (including the revolving credit facilty) and the €500 million bonds are unsecured but
guararteed by the Company and certain of its subsidiares.

The Company 1s required to comply with certain financial and non-financial covenants in the bank faciliies, ncduding a requirement to

maintan certan ratios of EBITDA to both net finance costs and net debt. It 15 also required ta comply with certain non-financial
covenants in the €500 millon notes, All covenant requirernents were satisfied throughout the year
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NOTES TO MERLIN ENTERTAINMENTS PLC COMPANY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(conunued)
vii Equity
Share capital
2016 2016 2015 2015
Number £m Number Em
Ordinary shares of £0 01 each
At beginning of the year 1,013,746,032 10 1,013,746,032 10
Shares issued 2,063.234 - - -
At end of the year 1.015,809,266 10 1,013,746,032 10

Issue of new shares

During the year the Company 1ssued 2,063,234 ordinary shares for consideration of £2 milhon (taken to the share premium account)
In connection with the Group’s employee share incentive plans (note 4.6).

Ordinary shares

The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receve dividends as declared from time to time and are entitied to one vote per share

at general meetings of the Company

Retained earnings

The profit after tax for the vear in the accounts of Merlin Entertainments plcis £134 multion (2015 profit after tax of £3 mulion).

All of the Company’s retained earnings are distmbutable (with the exception of those movements In reserves for employee share schemes).

Dvidends

2016 2015

fm £m

Final dwvidend for the 52 weeks ended 27 December 2014 of 4.2 pence per share - 43
Interim dividend for the 52 weeks ended 26 December 2015 of 2 | pence per share - 21
Final dwidend for the 52 weeks ended 26 December 2015 of 4.4 pence per share 45 -
Interim dividend for the 53 weeks ended 3| December 2016 of 2 2 pence per share 22 -
Total dividends paid 67 64

The Directors of the Company propose a final dmdend of 49 pence per share for the year ended 3| December 2016 (2015 44 pence
per share). The total dwidend for the current year, subject to approval of the final dividend, will be 7.1 pence per share (2015 6 5 pence

per share)

In making this propaosal the Drectors have considered the resources avalable to the Company and its subsidiaries Specifically they
have taken account of the Company’s significant distrbutable profits, as noted above, as well as the position and hquidity of the Group
disclosed in the consoldated statement of financial postion as explained in the Group going concern disclosures on page | 20.
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FINANCIAL RECORD

2016 2015 2014 2013 2012
Em £m £m £m £m

Resutts
Revenue 1,457 1,278 1,249 1,192 1,074
Underlying EBITDA 45| 402 41 390 346
Underlying operating profit 320 291 311 290 258
Operatng profit 320 291 311 260 199
Profit before tax 277 237 226 172 98
Adjusted earnings per share (p} 208 178 177 169 nfa
Dividend per share {p) 71 65 6.2 nfa nfa
Consolidated statement of financial position
Property, plant and equipment 1,841 1,495 1,410 1,321 1,290
Intangible assets 1,017 923 942 9%| 970
Cash and cash equivalents 215 152 285 264 142
g::sca‘:;e;;r':;:::;‘sbea ring 1147 1,003 NEY 1179 1,333
Total equity 1,428 1,149 1,063 944 617
Consolidated statement of cash flows
Net cash flow from operaung acuvities 433 325 357 365 348
Changes n working capital 23 (19 (4) 30 24
Net increase/(decrease) in cash 40 (137) le 125 81

and cash equivalents
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Foreign exchange rate sensitivity
The Group's ncome statement 1s exposed to fluctuations in foreign currency exchange rates principally on the translation of our

non Sterling earnings. The tables below show the impact on 2015 revenues and EBITDA of re-translating them at 2016 fereign

exchange (FX) rates.

OTHER FINANCIAL INFORMATION

%age Yeage

2015 2016 movement Revenue 2015 2016 movement EBITDA

average average n FX impact average average in FX impact

Currency FX rates FX rates rates £m Currency FX rates FX rates rates £m
usD | 54 137 11.3% 42 usD 1.54 137 11 3% 17
EUR 139 123 11.5% 30 EUR | 40 1.21 13.4% 12
AUD 2.04 | 83 10.4% 9 AUD 206 1.81 12.1% 3
Other 20 Other 7
Increase in 2015 revenues at 2016 FX rates 101 Increase in 2015 EBITDA at 2016 FX rates 39

Return on capital employed (ROCE)

The return 15 based on underlying operating profit after tax. Tax 15 calculated for the purpeses of ROCE by applying the Group's

underlying ETR for the year (2016 238%, 2015 27 9%) to the Group's underlying operating profit,

The capital employed element of the calculation 15 based on average net operating assets for the relevant period between the opening
and dlosing statements of financial position Net operating assets include all net assets other than deferred tax, dervative financial assets

and habilties, and net debt,

On a 52 week basis no change in net assets Is assumed, except for the 53rd week return, which has adjusted net debt.

2016 2016
(53 weeks) (52 weeks) 2015
£m £m £m
Underlying operating profit 320 302 29|
Taxaton (76) (72) [¢:1D)]
Return 244 230 210
Net assets 1,428 1,414 1,149
Less
Deferred tax assets (38) (38) (35)
Deferred tax habilities 179 179 155
Net debt {note 4.1} 1,025 1,039 937
Derwative financial assets (3) (3) 2)
Derivative financsal habilities 5 5 |
Net operating assets at the period end 2,59 2,59 2,205
Capital employed 1401 2,401 2,160
ROCE 10.2% 9.6% 9.7%
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GLOSSARY

Key terms Deefinition

Adjusted EPS Adjusted earnings per share 15 calculated by dviding the profit for the year attributable to
ordinary shareholders, adusted for exceptional items, by the weighted average number
of ordinary shares in 1ssue during the year

Capex Capital Expenditure

Cluster A group of attractions located in a aity close to one ancther

Constant currency growth

DreamWorks Tours - Shrek’s Adventure!

EBITDA

EPS

Exceptional items

Existing estate (EE)
Hngil-year

IP

IPC

KIRKEBI

KPI

LDC

Lead price

Like for ke (LFL)

Listing
Little Big City
LLP

Merhn Magic Making {MMM)

Using 2016 exchange rates,
This attraction opened in 2015 It s part of the Midway Attractions Operating Group.

Profit before finance income and costs, taxation, depreciation and amortisation and
after taking account of attributable profit after tax of joint ventures

tarnings per share

Due to thew nature, certain one-off and non-trading rtems can be cassified as exceptional
in order 1o draw them to the attention of the reader and to show the underlying business
performance more accurately

EE comprises all attractions other than new openings
Year of high spend In caprtal investment cycle of an attraction

Intellectual Property.

Initial Pubhe Offering.

KIRKBI owns 75% of LEGO A/S and owns 29 83% of the share caprtal of
Merhn Entertanments ple

Key Performance Indicator.

LEGOLAND Discovery Centre attractions These are part of the Midway Attractions

Operating Group

Face value of a ticket, which may then be discounted.

2016 LFL growth refers to the growth between 2015 and 2016 on a constant currency
basis using 20| 6 exchange rates and includes alf businesses owned and operated before
the start of 2015

Listing on the London Stock Exchange

This 1s a new attraction opening in 2017 It 1s part of the Midway Attractions Operating Group.

LEGOLAND Parks Operating Group

MMM 15 the unique resource that sits at the heart of everything Merlin does It 1s our specialist
in-house site-search and business development, creative design, production, and project
managerment team MMM also pursues acquisition and investment opportunities
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Key terms

GLOSSARY

Drefinition

Merlin's Magic Wand (MMW)

Midway or Midway attractions

MT
MNet Promoter Score

New Business Development (NBD)

ROCE

ROIC

Rooms

RPC
RTP

S5LC
Second gate

Top Box

Underlying

Visitors

YWizard Wants 10 Know (YWWTK)

MMW forms a key element of Merlin's Corporate Soaal Responsibility comrmitrent
Qur very own children's charity delivers magical experiences around the world to children
who are disadvantaged through sickness and disability.

The Midway Attractions Operating Group and/or the Midway attrachions wathin it
Midway attractions are typically smaller, indoar attractions located in city centres or resorts

Madame Tussauds attractions These are part of the Midway Attractions Operating Group.

How we measure the propensity of our customers to recommend our attractions.

NBD relates to attractions that are newly opened or under development for future opening,

together with the addition of new accommeodation at existing sites, New cpenings can incdude

both Midway attractions and new theme parks, NBD combines with the existing estate to
give the full estate of attractions,

Return on Caprtal Employed The profit measure used in calculating ROCE 1s based on

underlying operating profit after tax The capital employed element of the calculation 1s based

on average net operating assets which include all net assets other than deferred tax, denvative

financial assets and labilitres, and net debt.
Return on Invested Capital Incremental EBITDA divided by the capital invested

A single accommodation unit at one of our therme parks. for example a hotel room,
lodge or ‘glamping’ tent

Revenue per capita, defined as visitor revenue divided by number of visitors

Rescrt Theme Parks Operating Group.

SEA LIFE Centre aquarum attractions. These are part of the Midway Attractions
Operating Group.

A visitor attraction at an existing resort with a separate entrance and for which addtional
admission fees are charged

The highest level of customer satisfaction that we record in our customer surveys

Underlying information presented excludes exceptional items that are classified separately
within the financial statements

Represents all indmdual visits to Mertin owned or operated attractions

WWTK 1s our annual online employee survey

Tarms used
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SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION

Share listing
The Company's shares are listed on the London Stock Exchange.

Share register and registrars

The Company's share register 15 mantained and administered
in the UK by Computershare Investor Services PLC
{Computershare) at the following address

Telephone.

+44 (0)370 703 6259

Computershare
Investor Services PLC

The Pavilions Investor Centre:

Bridgwater Road www.investorcentre.co.uk/contactus
Bristol Website:

BS99 627 www.computershare.com

Computershare operates a portfolo service for Merlin

shareholders called Investar Centre, This provides our

shareholders with online access to information about their

investments as well as a facility to help manage their

holdings online, such as being able to:

* Update dividend mandate bank nstructions and review
dmidend payment history.

* Update member detalls and address changes.

* Regster to receive Company communications electronically,

Computershare also offers an internet and telephone share
dealing service to existing shareholders which can also be

accessed through the Investor Centre.

Dividends

Anrtermm dwidend of 2.2 pence per share was pad on {9 September

2016 to shareholders on the share register on 12 August 2016,

A final dividend for the year ended 31 December 2016 of 49
pence per share will be recommended to shareholders for
approval at the 2017 Annual General Meeting of the Company.

Dividend Re-Investment Plan

The Company has a Dwvidend Re-Investment Plan (DRIP)
which allows holders of ordinary shares, who choose to
participate, to use therr cash dividends to acquire additional
shares in the Company which will be purchased on therr behalf
by the DRIP administrator. Further nformation in relation to
the DRIP will be sent to shareholders in advance of the 2017
Annual General Meeting,

Financial calendar
The principal dates in our financial calendar for 2017 are
as follows,

Preliminary Announcement of Results 2 March
Trading Update I3 June
Annual General Meeung 13 June
Interim Results Announcement 4 August
Trading Update 5 October

Shareholder communications

We encourage cur shareholders to recerve therr communications
from the Company electronically using emall and web-based
communications This means that mformation about the
Company can be receved as soon as 1t Is avallable. The use

of electronic commurications alse reduces costs and the

impact on the environment Shareholders can regster for
electronic communications through Investor Centre or by
contacting Computershare Shareholders with any queries
regarding their shareholding should contact Computershare.

The Investor Relations section of our corporate website also
cortains information which shareholders may find helpful
{www.merlinentertainments.biz/investor-relations)

Annual General Meeting (AGM)

The AGM of the Company will be held on |3 June 2017 at
LEGOLAND Windsor, Winkfield Road, Windser, Berkshire,
SL4 4AY at 2 00pm. The Notice of AGM will be sent to
shareholders separately.

Registered in Company number

England and WWales 08700412
EPIC/TIDM ISIN

MERL GBOOBDZT6P24
LEI

549300ZTIOVEFOEWVOOT

Registered office

Merlin Entertainments plc
3 Market Close, Pocle
Dorset, BHIS INQ

Telephone. +44 (0)1202 440082
Email. investor.relations@merlinentertainments.biz
Website, www.merlinentertainments,biz

Head of investor relations
Simon Whrttington

Company secretary
Matthew Jowett

External auditors
KPMG LLP

Gateway House, Tollgate
Chandlers Ford
Southampton

SO53 3TG

Telephone
+44 (0)23 8020 2000

Joint corporate brokers
Barclays Bank PLC
5 Noerth Colonnade

Citigroup Global Markets Limited
Crtigroup Centre, Canada Square

Canary Wharf Canary Wharf
London London
El44BB El4 518
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LOGO REMOVED

LOGO REMOVED

LEGE (including MNINJAGO Star Wars, Bauman ond The LEGO Mowie) - LEGO, the LEGO logo, the
Buck and Knob configurations, the Minifigure, NINJAGO and LEGOLAND are trademarks of the
LEGO Group ©2017 The LEGO Group

THE LEGO® BATMAN MOVIE @ & ™ DC Cormes Wormer Bros Enterranment Inc
& The LEGO Group All Rights Reserved

THE LEGO® MOVIE © & ™ LEGO Group & Wamer Bios Entertamment Inc ANl Rights Reserved
Star Wars @ & ™ 2017 Lucasfilm Lid Al nghts reserved

Drearmworks {including Shrek, How to Trom Your Dragon and Kung Fu Panda) - Snrek Kung fu
Panda, How Ta Tran Your Dragon © DreamWorks Arnimanan LLC All Rights Resenved

Ghostbusters ™ & © 2017 Columbia Pictures Industies, fnc Alf Rights Reserved
The Gruffole - © 1999 & TM Jubo Donaldson & Axel Scheffler Licensed by Magic Light Pictures Lo
The Madarme Tussauds nnoges shown defnct wox figures areated ond owned by Madame Tussauds

London Eye concerned and designed by Marks Barfeld Architects
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Registered office

Merlin Entertanments ple
3 Market Close

Poole

Dorset

BHIS ING

United Kingdom

Registered number- 08700412
Registered in England and Wales

www.merlinentertainments.biz

LOGO REMOVED
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